
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
JULY 12, 2010 

CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
  

 





 

 

      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 12, 2010 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

C-1 Presentations: 1 

(a) Presentation Recognizing Sam Lamerato, Superintendent of Fleet 
Maintenance and the City of Troy’s Fleet Division for placing #1 in the 100 
Best Fleets Award Program sponsored by Government Fleet Magazine. ............ 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 Bostick Rochester Road Development, LLC – Rescind Plant Rehabilitation 
Exemption Certificate – 1400 Rochester Road 1 

E-2 Axle Tech International, LLC – Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate – 1400 
Rochester Road 2 



 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 3 

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 4 

G-1 No Postponed Items 4 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 4 

H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: Board of Zoning Appeals 4 

H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: 5 

(a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled ............................................................... 5 
(b) City Council Nominations: None Scheduled ......................................................... 5 

H-3 Adoption of Amended Rules of Procedure for the City Council 5 

H-4 Pre-Medicare Reinsurance Subsidy Availability 5 

H-5 Driving While Distracted Ordinance 6 

H-6 Request for Closed Session 6 

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 7 

I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 7 

I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 7 

I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 7 

I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 7 

I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 7 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Printing of Troy 
Today, Quarterly Newsletter: ................................................................................ 7 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for 
Membership Dues and Membership Renewals Southeast Michigan Council of 
Governments (SEMCOC) ..................................................................................... 8 



 

 

I-5 Application for New SDM License for E-Mart, LLC 8 

I-6 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Detention Purposes for Stone 
Haven Park Site Condominium – Mondrian Properties Stone Haven Development, 
LLC, Section 20, Sidwell #88-20-20-226-080 9 

I-7 Request for Recognition as Nonprofit Organization Status from Leonette 
Ciepielowski – Chairman of Troy Youth Assistance 9 

I-8 Request for Recognition as Nonprofit Organization Status from Diane Claeys of 
Troy Women’s Charitable Association 9 

I-9 Liberty Investments I, LLC v. City of Troy 9 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 10 

J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 10 

J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
some future point in time): None Submitted 10 

K. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 10 

K-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 10 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 10 

L-1   No Council Comments Advanced 10 

M. REPORTS 10 

M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 10 

(a) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – March 8, 2010 ............................................. 10 
(b) Election Commission/Final – March 29, 2010 .................................................... 10 
(c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – May 12, 2010 ......... 10 
(d) Library Advisory Board/Final/Amended – May 13, 2010 .................................... 10 
(e) Planning Commission/Draft – June 8, 2010 ....................................................... 10 
(f) Planning Commission/Final – June 8, 2010 ....................................................... 10 
(g) Library Advisory Board/Draft – June 10, 2010 .................................................... 10 
(h) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – June 14, 2010 ............................................. 10 



 

 

(i) Election Commission/Draft – June 24, 2010 ...................................................... 10 

M-2 Department Reports: 10 

(a) 2010 Second Quarter Litigation Report .............................................................. 10 
(b) City Council Expense Report – Month of July 2010 ........................................... 10 

M-3  Letters of Appreciation: 10 

(a) E-mail Received from Sue and Mike Quinn Commending the Troy Police 
Department ......................................................................................................... 10 

(b) Note of Appreciation to the 2010 Board of Review from a Hardship Recipient .. 10 

M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 10 

M-5  Michigan Public Service Commission – Notice of Hearing for the Electric  
Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-16262 10 

M-6  Troy/Birmingham Transit Center – Joint Troy Planning Commission and 
Birmingham Planning Board Meeting Schedule 11 

M-7   Discontinue Service-Niles Community High School, School Resource Officer 11 

M-8   Program Year 2010 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Allocation 11 

M-9  Placement of Historical Marker on Krell Property Site – (North Side of Square 
Lake, East of Livernois at John’s Market 88-20-03-301-077) 11 

M-10  Business Attraction Project: Witzenmann, USA 11 

M-11  Cost of Organizational Restructuring 11 

M-12  Report Regarding Comments Made by Mr. Benjamin Blaszak at the June 28, 2010 
City Council Special Study Meeting 11 

N. STUDY ITEMS 11 

N-1  Restructuring of the Engineering Department 11 

N-2  Project Update – Zoning Ordinance Comprehensive Rewrite (File Number: Z-234) 11 



 

 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 11 

O-1 Closed Session – Andrew Zurowski v. City of Troy 11 

P. ADJOURNMENT 11 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 11 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 12 

Monday, July 26, 2010 Regular City Council ......................................................... 12 
Monday, August 9, 2010 Regular City Council ...................................................... 12 
Monday, August 23, 2010 Regular City Council .................................................... 12 
Monday, September 13, 2010 Regular City Council .............................................. 12 
Monday, September 27, 2010 Regular City Council .............................................. 12 
Monday, October 4, 2010 Regular City Council .................................................... 12 
Monday, October 18, 2010 Regular City Council .................................................. 12 
Monday, November 8, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................. 12 
Monday, November 22, 2010 Regular City Council ............................................... 12 
Monday, December 6, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................. 12 
Monday, December 20, 2010 Regular City Council ............................................... 12 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 12, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
(b) Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of _______________  
at the Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, July 12, 2010 and the Closed Session of 
Monday, July 12, 2010 due to____________. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  
C-1 Presentations:  
(a) Presentation Recognizing Sam Lamerato, Superintendent of Fleet Maintenance and the 

City of Troy’s Fleet Division for placing #1 in the 100 Best Fleets Award Program 
sponsored by Government Fleet Magazine. 

  
D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Bostick Rochester Road Development, LLC – Rescind Plant Rehabilitation 

Exemption Certificate – 1400 Rochester Road 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 12, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
October 19, 2009, granted a Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate to Bostick Rochester 
Road Development, LLC, for property known as 1400 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Parcel #s 88-
20-34-226-048 and 88-20-34-226-057; and 
 
WHEREAS, The State Tax Commission subsequently denied said exemption, stating that the 
developer does not qualify for this type of exemption; and 
 
WHEREAS, The tenant, Axle Tech International, LLC, has agreed to modify their lease, and 
apply for the exemption themselves, in keeping with the State Tax Commission’s interpretation 
of the exemption law; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council has found that IT IS NECESSARY TO RESCIND the Plant 
Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (PREC) for Bostick Rochester Road Development, LLC, in 
order to allow Axle Tech International, LLC, the opportunity to apply for the exemption; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS the Plant 
Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate granted on October 19, 2009 to Bostick Rochester Road 
Development, LLC, for property located at 1400 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083; 
 
FINALLY, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO transmit a copy of 
this Resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 
48909-7971 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-2 Axle Tech International, LLC – Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate – 1400 

Rochester Road 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
October 19, 2009, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 
1400 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Parcel #s 88-20-34-226-048 and 88-20-34-226-057; and 
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Axle Tech International, LLC, for a Plant 
Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (PREC) for real property at 1400 Rochester, Troy, MI. 
48083, for twelve (12) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due an proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on October 19, 
2009, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of a Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (PREC) for Axle 
Tech International, LLC, at 1400 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083 may have the effect of 
substantially impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of 
the taxing unit; 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 12, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has found that the granting of 
a Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (PREC) for Axle Tech International, LLC, at 1400 
Rochester, Troy, MI 48083 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of Troy or 
the other taxing units, nor has it been found that the granting of the Plant Rehabilitation 
Exemption Certificate (PREC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of Troy, or the 
other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for a 
Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate (PREC) for Axle Tech International, LLC, Inc., at 
1400 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Parcel #s 88-20-34-226-048 and 88-20-34-226-057, for real 
property for a term of twelve (12) years, contingent upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement 
between the City of Troy and Axle Tech International, LLC, and in accordance with Public Act 
198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Axle Tech International, LLC, a copy of 
which shall be attached to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED to complete the 
Application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F. PUBLIC COMMENT:            

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – 
Members of the Public and Visitors 
 

Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 

the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

(5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item 
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related to 
topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 12, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be 
limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
G-1 No Postponed Items 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: Board of Zoning Appeals 
 
a) Vote on Resolution to Appoint Nominees to Board of Zoning Appeals with Term 

Scheduled to Expire on April 30, 2013 – Two Vacancies 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals – Term Expires April 30, 2013; 2 Vacancies 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term - 1 Planning Commission Representative & 
Alternate 
 
Tally of City Council Nominee Choices: 
Each City Council member will be requested to indicate 2 nominees to fill the vacancies on 
the Board of Zoning Appeals from the following list of individuals placed into nomination at 
the June 21, 2010 Regular City Council meeting: 
 

NOMINEE Yes: No: 
Kenneth Courtney   
William Fisher   
Edward Kempen   

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That after having received the majority of votes, Troy City Council hereby 
APPOINTS _______________________________ and _______________________________ 
to serve on the Board of Zoning Appeals with terms expiring on April 30, 2013. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
b) Vote on Resolution to Appoint Nominee to Board of Zoning Appeals with Term 

Scheduled to Expire on April 30, 2011 – One Vacancy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 12, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated below:  
 
Board of Zoning Appeals  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term - 1 Planning Commission Representative & Alt. 
 
A. Allen Kneale Unexpired Term 04/30/2011 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
(a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
(b) City Council Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
H-3 Adoption of Amended Rules of Procedure for the City Council 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Rules of Procedure for the City Council 
as amended. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-4 Pre-Medicare Reinsurance Subsidy Availability 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to federal law under the Early Retirement Reinsurance Program (ERRP), 
45 CFR 149 passed as part of the Health Care Reform Act of 2010, and in other guidance 
issued by the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) 
including, but not limited to, the conditions for submission of data for obtaining reimbursement 
and the record retention requirements; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy, identified as a Plan Sponsor certifies that prior to submitting a 
reimbursement request to HHS, has executed a written agreement with its health insurance 
providers regarding disclosure of personal health information; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 12, 2010 
 

- 6 - 

WHEREAS, The Cornerstone Group/RDS Services has provided similar services for the 
Medicare Part D Subsidy program, and as a current client has waived a $5,000 retainer fee to 
perform these services pertaining to the ERRP application and reimbursement of funds; 
 
WHEREAS, Time is of the essence in applying for reimbursement, as funds are limited, and 
applications are to be accepted on a first come first serve basis;  
 
WHEREAS, The City’s insurance providers are the only companies with access to the data 
required to apply for reimbursement, and that the data feed from Blue Cross Blue Shield in the 
first year of reimbursement will cost $3,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Cornerstone Group/RDS Services has provided a fee structure based on 
reimbursement funds received by the City of Troy;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 
Cornerstone Group/RDS Services to assist City staff in the obtaining of data, record retention 
requirements, and application for reimbursement of ERRP funds; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The Troy City Council hereby ACKNOWLEDGES that any 
funds received under the ERRP must be used to offset both future health insurance cost 
increases and premium cost increases.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-5 Driving While Distracted Ordinance 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 106 of the Code of the City of Troy be AMENDED to add Sections 
1.20.05 and 5.14c, and renumbered, as reflected on the ATTACHED document, which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
OR 
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 106 of the Code of the City of Troy be AMENDED to add Section 
3.2B, a copy of this ordinance shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-6 Request for Closed Session 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 12, 2010 
 

- 7 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL15.268 (e) Pending Litigation – Andrew Zurowski v. City of Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of June 21, 2010 and the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Special Study Meeting 
of June 28, 2010 as submitted. 
 
I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Printing of Troy Today, 

Quarterly Newsletter:  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 12, 2010 
 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one-year contract to provide printing 
services for the Troy Today quarterly newsletter with an option to renew for two additional one-
year periods to the highest scoring respondent, Grand Blanc Printing Company, Inc. of Grand 
Blanc, MI, as a result of a best value process, which the Troy City Council determines to be in 
the public interest for an estimated annual cost of $39,008.00 for Proposals A & C, plus the 
actual cost of bulk rate postage, and additional charges if needed not to exceed 10% of the 
total contract cost or $3,900.00, at unit prices contained on the RFP tabulation opened May 24, 
2010, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with a 
contract expiration of July 1, 2011; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Troy City Council hereby REJECTS optional Proposal B. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Membership Renewals Southeast Michigan Council of Governments 
(SEMCOC)  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That approval is GRANTED to pay membership dues to the Southeast Michigan 
Council of Governments (SEMCOG) in the amount of $9,841.00, which covers the time period 
of July 15, 2010 to July 15, 2011. 
 
I-5 Application for New SDM License for E-Mart, LLC 
 
(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL E Mart LLC for a 
New SDM License located at 2963 East Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County 
{MLCC Request #531318} “above all others”; and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with E Mart LLC for a New SDM License located at 2963 East Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 
48083, Oakland County {MLCC Request #531318} and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 12, 2010 
 

- 9 - 

City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-6 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Detention Purposes for Stone 

Haven Park Site Condominium – Mondrian Properties Stone Haven Development, 
LLC, Section 20, Sidwell #88-20-20-226-080 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed for detention 
purposes for a consideration amount of One Dollar ($1.00), from Mondrian Properties Stone 
Haven Development, L.L.C., owners of the property having Sidwell #88-20-20-226-080, and 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be attached to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-7 Request for Recognition as Nonprofit Organization Status from Leonette 

Ciepielowski – Chairman of Troy Youth Assistance 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Troy Youth 
Assistance asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the 
community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City 
Management. 
 
I-8 Request for Recognition as Nonprofit Organization Status from Diane Claeys of 

Troy Women’s Charitable Association 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Troy Women’s 
Charitable Association asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in 
the community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by 
City Management. 
 
I-9 Liberty Investments I, LLC v. City of Troy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Liberty Investments I, LLC v. 
City of Troy (52-4th District Court Case No. 10 CO1918 GC); and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 12, 2010 
 

- 10 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED to pay necessary costs 
and expenses and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to adequately represent the City. 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time): None Submitted  
 
K. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 
 

K-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
L-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

M. REPORTS  
M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
(a) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – March 8, 2010 
(b) Election Commission/Final – March 29, 2010 
(c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – May 12, 2010 
(d) Library Advisory Board/Final/Amended – May 13, 2010 
(e) Planning Commission/Draft – June 8, 2010 
(f) Planning Commission/Final – June 8, 2010 
(g) Library Advisory Board/Draft – June 10, 2010 
(h) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – June 14, 2010  
(i) Election Commission/Draft – June 24, 2010 

M-2 Department Reports:  
(a) 2010 Second Quarter Litigation Report 
(b) City Council Expense Report – Month of July 2010  
 
M-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
(a) E-mail Received from Sue and Mike Quinn Commending the Troy Police Department 
(b) Note of Appreciation to the 2010 Board of Review from a Hardship Recipient 
 
M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 
M-5  Michigan Public Service Commission – Notice of Hearing for the Electric 
 Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-16262 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 12, 2010 
 

- 11 - 

M-6  Troy/Birmingham Transit Center – Joint Troy Planning Commission and 
Birmingham Planning Board Meeting Schedule 

 
M-7   Discontinue Service-Niles Community High School, School Resource Officer 
 
M-8   Program Year 2010 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Allocation 
 
M-9  Placement of Historical Marker on Krell Property Site – (North Side of Square 

Lake, East of Livernois at John’s Market 88-20-03-301-077) 
 
M-10  Business Attraction Project: Witzenmann, USA 
 
M-11  Cost of Organizational Restructuring 
 
M-12  Report Regarding Comments Made by Mr. Benjamin Blaszak at the June 28, 2010 

City Council Special Study Meeting 

N. STUDY ITEMS 
N-1  Restructuring of the Engineering Department 
 
N-2  Project Update – Zoning Ordinance Comprehensive Rewrite (File Number: Z-234) 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 
O-1 Closed Session – Andrew Zurowski v. City of Troy 
 

P. ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

No Future City Council Public Hearings Scheduled 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 12, 2010 
 

- 12 - 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, July 26, 2010 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, August 9, 2010 ........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, August 23, 2010 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 13, 2010 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 27, 2010 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 4, 2010 .......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 18, 2010 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, November 8, 2010 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 22, 2010 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 6, 2010 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 20, 2010 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



 

 
 
July 12, 2010 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Mark Miller, Acting Asst City Manager – Economic Development Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing to rescind a Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate 

(PREC) granted on October 19, 2009 to Bostick Rochester Road 
Development, LLC, at 1400 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083 

 
 
 
Background: 
 

On October 19, 2009, City Council granted a Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate to 
Bostick Rochester Road Development, LLC (BRRD), for property located at 1400 Rochester, 
Troy, MI. 48083.   

 
The State Tax Commission (STC) denied the application on their interpretation that a 
developer does not qualify for this type of exemption.  The STC believes that only the operator 
of the business may apply for this type of exemption.  BRRD is appealing this interpretation at 
the Circuit Court level. 

 
In order to start, and qualify the large scope of work that will renovate the facilities, Axle Tech 
International, LLC (the tenant) has agreed to modify their lease with Mr. Bostick, and apply for 
the exemption themselves, in keeping with the STC’s interpretation of the law.  That Public 
Hearing will follow this one. 

 
Should Mr. Bostick prevail in court, we would then reverse this process once again, to place 
the exemption in the owner of the facilities possession. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

There are no financial considerations attached to this action. 
 

 
 
Legal Considerations: 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
E-01

pallottaba
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by pallottaba



 
Legally, this action will allow the project to move forward, based on the STC’s interpretation of 
the law. 
 

Policy Considerations: 
 

City Council Outcome III, “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a 
unique community in a changing and interconnected world.”  Will be furthered with this action. 

 
 
Options: 
 
 
 

If City Council does not rescind the existing PREC, this project will not go forward.  Allowing 
Axle Tech International, LLC, to apply and receive the exemption will bring new jobs, and tax 
revenue to the City, which are detailed in their application.   

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend granting the 
exemption. 

 
 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\AxleTech PR\CouncilPak PREC PH Rescind 05.20.10 
 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, July 12, 2010 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider rescinding the Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate granted on October 

19, 2009, to Bostick Rochester Road Development, LLC at the following location: 

 

88-20-34-226-048 & 88-20-34-226-057  1400 Rochester, Troy,  MI.  48083-2854 

T2N, R11E, Section 34 Part of North East 1/4 

 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MICHAEL ADAMCZYK 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
BOSTICK ROCHESTER DEV LLC 
DENNIS BOSTICK 
1819 E BIG BEAVER 
TROY MI 48083 

 
AXLETECH INTERNATIONAL LLC 
WILLIAM MILLER 
3001 W BIG BEAVER STE 400 
TROY MI 48084-3105 

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



 

 
 
July 12, 2010 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Mark Miller, Acting Asst City Manager – Economic Development Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing to consider granting a Plant Rehabilitation Exemption 

Certificate (PREC) to Axle Tech International, LLC at 1400 Rochester, 
Troy, MI 48083 

 
 
 
Background: 
 

Axle Tech International, LLC, intends to renovate and expand the building at 1400 Rochester, 
Troy, MI. 48083, to accommodate their move into the facility.  The renovation and expansion is 
expected to cost $3,673,155.00.   
 
This is the same exemption that was granted to Bostick Rochester Road Development, LLC 
(BRRD) at the October 19, 2009 City Council Meeting.  That exemption was denied by the State 
Tax Commission (STC).  BRRD is appealing that determination at the Circuit Court level. 
 
In order for the construction to continue, Axle Tech must now make the application for the 
exemption.  The STC suggested this route after their denial of the BRRD application. 

 
 

Financial Considerations: 
 

Plant Rehabilitation Exemptions freeze an existing Taxable Value ($2,123,540 in this instance) for   
up to 12 years.  The renovation costs ($3,673,155.00) are appraised separately, and do not 
generate any taxes for the life of the exemption. 
 
The total frozen taxes (assuming no change in any millage rates) equal $1,224,517.00, of which 
$239,535.00 are City taxes, that will be paid over a 12 year exemption. 
 
The total taxes that will not be generated based on the exemption are $1,059,039.00, of which 
$207,165.00 are City taxes.  This is the cost of the exemption. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
E-02



 
 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application and building, meet all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the 

Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the amended Plant Rehabilitation tax abatement policy of the 

City Council of the City of Troy (Resolution #2002-05-273).  
 

City Council Outcome III, “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a 
unique community in a changing and interconnected world.”  

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend granting the 
exemption. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option of granting the Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for any 

period of one (1) to twelve (12) years, or not at all.   
 

Staff recommends that the Exemption be granted for the full twelve (12) years. 
 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\AxleTech PR\CouncilPak PREC PH 05.20.10 
 























Year 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Current 
Taxable

2,123,540 2,123,540 2,123,540 2,123,540 2,123,540 2,123,540 2,123,540 2,123,540 2,123,540 2,123,540 2,123,540 2,123,540 2,123,540

Rehab 
Taxable

1,836,570 1,836,570 1,836,570 1,836,570 1,836,570 1,836,570 1,836,570 1,836,570 1,836,570 1,836,570 1,836,570 1,836,570 1,836,570

2009 Millage 
Rate

48.0533 48.0533 48.0533 48.0533 48.0533 48.0533 48.0533 48.0533 48.0533 48.0533 48.0533 48.0533 48.0533

Frozen 
Taxes

$102,043 $102,043 $102,043 $102,043 $102,043 $102,043 $102,043 $102,043 $102,043 $102,043 $102,043 $102,043

Tax Savings 
on Rehab

$88,253 $88,253 $88,253 $88,253 $88,253 $88,253 $88,253 $88,253 $88,253 $88,253 $88,253 $88,253

2010 City 
Millage Rate

9.4000 9.4000 9.4000 9.4000 9.4000 9.4000 9.4000 9.4000 9.4000 9.4000 9.4000 9.4000 9.4000

Frozen City 
Taxes

$19,961 $19,961 $19,961 $19,961 $19,961 $19,961 $19,961 $19,961 $19,961 $19,961 $19,961 $19,961

City Tax 
Savings on 

Rehab
$17,264 $17,264 $17,264 $17,264 $17,264 $17,264 $17,264 $17,264 $17,264 $17,264 $17,264 $17,264

Total Frozen 
Taxes 12 

Years
$1,224,517

Total Tax 
Savings 
12 Years

$1,059,039

Total 
Frozen 

City 
Taxes 12 

Years

$239,535

Total City 
Tax 

Savings 
12 Years

$207,165

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Axle Tech International, LLC

Estimate of Current Taxes and Tax Savings for Plant Rehabilitation Application



Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:
Real Property?
Personal Property?
Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?
Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?
Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the
plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial
park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing
building?

Will this project require improvement of your road
service?

Will this project require improvement of your
sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm
sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water
services?

Will this project require additional police
personnel, police equipment or a need for new
police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire
personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment
or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided
through Local Development Finance Authority or
Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 
must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):
Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.

LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)

licarila
Text Box
Axle Tech International, LLC



Date: 05/20/10

Applicant Name:

Subject Property Address:

Parcel Number(s) &

Total SEV of District: $2,128,660

Total SEV of Parcel Number(s):  $2,128,660

Total Taxable Value (TV) of Parcel Number(s): $2,123,540

Reconstruction Cost New (RCN) of Subject Property: $12,940,437

Reconstruction Cost New Less Depreciation (RCNLD) of Subject: $2,060,079

Total Cost of Proposed Rehabilitation: $3,673,155

% of Rehabilitation Cost to RCNLD: % 178.30

Leger A. (Nino) Licari  CMAE IV, Cert # 6345 Date

Assessor, City of Troy

Affidavit of:

Plant Rahabilitation Application
Oakland County, Michigan

City of Troy - Assessing Department

The above information is true, to the best of my knowledge

Axle Tech International, LLC

1400 Rochester, Troy, MI. 48083

88-20-34-226-048 88-20-34-226-057

Statement of Total State Equalized Value (SEV) of District
Assessor's Obsolescence Statement of Subject Property



88-20-34-226-048 2010 Est. T.C.V. BOSTICK ROCHESTER ROAD DEVELOPMENT
Property Class: 301 Printed 05/20/2010 1400 ROCHESTER
Map #: 88-20-34-226-048 CITY OF TROY TROY, MI 48083-2854

Land Value Estimates for Land Table M-1.M-1
* Factors *

Description Frontage Depth Front Depth Rate %Adj. Reason Value
M-1 SQ FT M-1 SQ FT 394218 SqFt 4.50 100 1,773,981

9.05 Total Acres Total Est. Land Value = 1,773,981

< Land Improvement Cost Estimates >
Description Rate CountyMult. Size %Good Cash Value
D/W/P: Asphalt Paving 1.61 1.47 207105 56 274,487

Total Estimated Land Improvements True Cash Value = 274,487

Cost Estimates for Commercial/Industrial Building/Section: 1 Built 1972
Description of Occupancy: 0% V 08, 100% 03-04-05-06-07

Costs are taken from the Industrial, Light Manufacturing cost schedules.
<<<<< Calculator Cost Computations >>>>>
Class: S Quality: Average Percent Adj: +0

Base Rate for Upper Floors = 30.90

(10) Heating system: Package Heating & Cooling Cost/SqFt: 5.25 100%
Adjusted Square Foot Cost for Upper Floors = 36.15

1 Stories Number of Stories Multiplier: 1.000
Average Height per Story: 33 Height per Story Multiplier: 1.458
Ave. Floor Area: 178,732 Perimeter: 2343 Perim. Multiplier: 0.873
Refined Square Foot Cost for Upper Floors: 46.01

County Multiplier: 1.47, Final Square Foot Cost for Upper Floors = 67.639

Total Floor Area: 189,034 Base Cost New of Upper Floors = 12,786,077

56,455 Sq.Ft. of Sprinklers @ 1.86, County Mult.:1.47 Cost New = 154,359

Reproduction/Replacement Cost = 12,940,437
Eff.Age:36 Phy.%Good/Abnr.Phy./Func./Econ./Overall %Good: 53 /100/30 /100/15.9

Total Depreciated Cost = 2,057,529

Local Cost Items Rate Quantity/Area %Good Depr.Cost
CRANEWAY DBL RAIL LF 429.46 1622 16 110,757
DOCK LEVELOR 6560.17 9 16 9,388

ECF (INDUSTRIAL LM) 0.946 => TCV of Bldg: 1 = 2,060,079
Replacement Cost/Floor Area= 69.09 Est. TCV/Floor Area= 10.90

Total Estimated True Cash Value of Commercial/Industrial Buildings = 2,060,079

2010 Est. T.C.V. 88-20-34-226-048 = 4,108,547
Est. TCV/Total Floor Area = 21.73, Most recent sale 03/31/2005 for 4,029,444
2009 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Base for Cap C.P.I.

2,536,620 2,536,620 2,536,620 2,192,800 -0.30
2010 New Eq. Adjustment Loss Additions Tax Adjustment Losses

-482,350 -138,530
2010 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Capped ->Taxable<- PRE/MBT

2,054,270 2,054,270 2,054,270 2,186,220 2,054,270



88-20-34-226-057 2010 Est. T.C.V. BOSTICK ROCHESTER ROAD DEVELOPMENT
Property Class: 302 Printed 05/20/2010
Map #: 88-20-34-226-057 CITY OF TROY ,

Land Value Estimates for Land Table M-1.M-1
* Factors *

Description Frontage Depth Front Depth Rate %Adj. Reason Value
M-1 SQ FT M-1 SQ FT 33060 SqFt 4.50 100 148,770
M-1 SQ FT M-1 1/2 SQ FT 0 SqFt 2.00 100

0.76 Total Acres Total Est. Land Value = 148,770

2010 Est. T.C.V. 88-20-34-226-057 = 148,770
Est. TCV/Total Floor Area = 0.00, Most recent sale 03/21/2005 for 55,556
2009 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Base for Cap C.P.I.

95,050 95,050 95,050 69,480 -0.30
2010 New Eq. Adjustment Loss Additions Tax Adjustment Losses

-20,660 -210
2010 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Capped ->Taxable<- PRE/MBT

74,390 74,390 74,390 69,270 69,270





Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information 
represented should be consulted for verification.

2,810

City of Troy Geographical Information Systems - Department of Information Technology

468

Legend

1:

NAD_1983_StatePlane_Michigan_South_FIPS_2113_IntlFeet

Feet4680 234 Notes
Enter Map Description

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:Band_1
Green:Band_2
Blue:Band_3

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line



Legal Descriptions for IDD and PRD at 1400 Rochester Rd, Troy MI.48083 

88-20-34-226-048 

T2N, R11E, SEC 34  
PART OF NE 1/4  
BEG AT PT DIST  
S 00-01-00 E 420 FT & W 900 FT  
FROM NE SEC COR,  
TH S 00-01-00 E 570 FT,  
TH W 194.14 FT,  
TH S 00-25-30 E 168.73 FT TO CEN LINE SPENCER DRAIN,  
TH N 73-57-18 W 69.28 FT,  
TH N 66-31-20 W 242.88 FT,  
TH N 61-37-44 W 76.01 FT,  
TH N 36-42-46 W 23.02 FT,  
TH N 89-43-35 W 75.73 FT,  
TH N 12-06-00 E 582.87 FT,  
TH E 516.84 FT  
TO BEG 9.05A  ALSO  
S 100 FT OF LOT 12 &  
THAT PART OF LOT 13  
LYING NWLY OF CEN LINE SPENCER DRAIN  
OF 'TROY INDUSTRIAL SUB' 
 

88-20-34-226-057 

T2N, R11E, SEC 34 TROY INDUSTRIAL SUB  
PART OF LOT 12 BEG AT PT DIST  
S 00-06-30 E 271.00 FT FROM NE LOT COR,  
TH S 00-06-30 E 129.00 FT ALG  
W LINE OF SOUTER BLVD  
TH W 240.00 FT,  
TH N 00-06-30 W 234.00 FT,  
TH E 20.00 FT,  
TH S 00-06-30 E 105.00 FT,  
TH E 220.00 FT  
TO BEG 



 1

May 6, 2002 adopted amendment by Resolution #2002-05-273 
September 11, 2000 

 
Plant Rehabilitation                                                                                            F-4 
  
RESOLUTION #2000-412 
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Kaszubski 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) reducing economic obsolescence of the Industrial base, (c) encouraging 
industrial expansion, (d) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites, (e) encouraging the 
redevelopment of obsolete industrial buildings, and (f) maintaining a modern, efficient 
industrial building inventory; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts Act, being 
Public Act 198 of 1974 (PA 198), as amended, empowers cities to establish Plant 
Rehabilitation Districts (PRD) and to grant tax abatements for certain properties which 
meet certain criteria established by PA 198; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Troy has determined that additional criteria 
should be established for the creation of such districts and abatements; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Troy, that the 
following criteria are to be met, applied, or measured by the City Manager, or his 
designees in the review of areas and locations to be considered for the designation as 
Plant Rehabilitation Districts (PRD) by the City Council: 
 
1.) The property must be included in the (M-1) Light Industrial zoning classification. 
 
2.) If the district is to be established for a Replacement Facility, as defined in PA 198, it 

will include the site of the obsolete building, as defined by PA 198, and vacant land 
contiguous to the site, not separated by a dedicated public right of way.  

 
 



 2

 
 
Plant Rehabilitation - Continued                                                                               F-4 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in addition to the criteria established by The Plant 
Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts Act, being Public Act 198 of 1974, 
the following criteria are established as guidelines to be met, passed, measured and 
ascertained by the City Manager, or his designees, as minimum standards before 
submitting requests or petitions for the consideration and possible approval of Plant 
Rehabilitation type Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificates, by the City Council of the 
City of Troy: 
 
1.) For Rehabilitation or Replacement Facilities applications, Personal Property shall 

not be included as part of an abatement request. 
 
2.) For Rehabilitation or Replacement Facilities applications, the minimum amount of 

Taxable Value generated by the renovation or replacement, shall be at least 50% of 
the existing Taxable Value of the obsolete building. 

 
3.) For Rehabilitation or Replacement Facility applications, the maximum amount of 

Taxable Value generated by the renovation or replacement, shall not be more than 
100% of the existing Taxable Value of the obsolete building.  50% of the 
Reproduction/Replacement Cost of the existing building, as shown on the Assessing 
Department’s current year Valuation Statement. 

 
4.) For Replacement Facilities applications, the existing obsolete structures shall be 

demolished. 
 
5.) For Replacement Facilities applications, the Replacement shall be constructed on 

the site of the demolished obsolete building, and on contiguous vacant land not 
separated by a dedicated public right of way. 

 
Yes: Stine, Kaszubski, Pallotta, Schilling, Stevens 
No: Howrylak 
Absent: Allemon 
 
 
September 11, 2000: Original Resolution Passes 
May 6, 2002 Amendments moved by Beltramini, support Pallotta, 
  Yes:  Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Pallotta, Pryor, Beltramini 
  No:    Howrylak 

 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
FOR PLANT REHABILITATION 

 
 
     This agreement between Axle Tech International, LLC, (“Company”) 
and the City of Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of 
Public Act 198, as amended in Public Act 334, Section 22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), Axle Tech International, LLC, understands that 
through its investment of $3,673,155 and its qualification for Michigan 
Economic Growth Authority incentives, and the City of Troy, by its 
investment of the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually 
investing in and benefiting from this economic development project, and 
furthermore, agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is 12 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2024, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2012, Axle Tech International, LLC, will report to the 
Assessing Department of the City of Troy the actual cost of 
this project and indicate any differences and the reason for 
any differences in the cost or scope of the project as 
compared to the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) Axle Tech International, LLC, agrees to remain within the 

City of Troy for the period of the Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) 
abatement in order to retain the benefits of the IFT, unless 
permission for relocation is granted by the City Council of the 
City of Troy. 

 
Axle Tech International, LLC, further understands that if it 
chooses to leave the City of Troy without permission for 
relocation prior to the end of the term of the IFT, the City 
Council of the City of Troy has the right to recapture from 
the Company the total amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  Axle Tech International, LLC, understands that the City of 

Troy may reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC and/or 
recover from the Company, the amount of taxes which were 
abated if the project has not been completed, expenditures 
made, as represented by the Company, in Section 12’C of its 
application, by sending a copy of this Agreement along with a 
copy of the City Council Resolution authorizing such action to 
the State Tax Commission. 

 



5.)  Axle Tech International, LLC, agrees that it will operate the 
Project in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and 
Local laws or regulations, including but not limited to zoning, 
outside storage, industrial waste disposal, air and water 
quality, noise control, other environmental regulations, and all 
of the terms and conditions of any Consent Judgment 
governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
FOR PLANT REHABILITATION 

(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling , Mayor (date) 

 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew                         (date) 

  City Clerk 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, July 12, 2010 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from Axle Tech International, LLC, for the granting of a Plant 

Rehabilitation Exemption at the following location: 

 

88-20-34-226-048 & 88-20-34-226-057  1400 Rochester, Troy,  MI.  48083-2854 

T2N, R11E, Section 34 Part of North East 1/4 

 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MICHAEL ADAMCZYK 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
BOSTICK ROCHESTER DEV LLC 
DENNIS BOSTICK 
1819 E BIG BEAVER 
TROY MI 48083 

 
AXLETECH INTERNATIONAL LLC 
WILLIAM MILLER 
3001 W BIG BEAVER STE 400 
TROY MI 48084-3105 

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



 
 
Date July 8, 2010 

 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

 
FROM: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: Adoption of Amended Rules of Procedure for the City Council 
  
Background: 
  The attached document reflects amendments proposed by City Council and City 

Management for Rules of Procedure for the City Council at the Special Study Session 
held on Monday, June 28, 2010.  

 
Options: 
 
  City Council may approve the amendments as submitted or propose further 

amendments. 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  IITTEEMM  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
H-03



 

 

 

 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN 
 

Adopted: July 12, 2010 
 

 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM ......................................................... 1 
2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR ............................................................. 1 
3. SPECIAL MEETINGS ...................................................................................... 1 
4. REGULAR MEETINGS .................................................................................... 2 
5. AGENDA .......................................................................................................... 2 
6. ORDER OF BUSINESS ................................................................................... 2 
7. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ........................................ 3 
8. MINUTES ......................................................................................................... 3 
9. PROCLAMATIONS .......................................................................................... 3 
10. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS .......................................................... 3 
11. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS ....................................................................... 4 
12. WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS PRIOR TO VOTING ....................................... 4 
13. PUBLIC HEARING ........................................................................................... 4 
14. CONSENT AGENDA ....................................................................................... 4 
15. APPOINTMENTS ............................................................................................. 4 
15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 

SOCRRA .......................................................................................................... 5 
16. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS ................................................ 5 
17. POSTPONE ..................................................................................................... 6 
18. RULES OF ORDER ......................................................................................... 6 
19. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES ...................................................................... 6 
20. EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS ..................... 6 
21. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS ........................................................... 6 
22. SUSPEND RULES ........................................................................................... 7 
23. COUNCIL DISCUSSION .................................................................................. 7 
24. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS ............................. 7 
25. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS ......................................................... 7 
26. CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM ..... 7 
27. VIOLATIONS .................................................................................................... 7 
28. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BY AND TO COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 

MEETING OF COUNCIL .................................................................................. 7 
 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 1 
 

Adopted: 07/12/2010 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM 
The Mayor Pro Tem shall be elected by the Council from among its members, annually in 
November. 

2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR 
In the absence or disability of the Mayor and the Mayor Pro Tem, the Council Member 
present who has served longest shall be designated Acting Mayor and shall perform the 
duties of the Mayor. 

3. SPECIAL MEETINGS 
A. CALLING OF SPECIAL MEETINGS (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.2): 

Special meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the Mayor, 
or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written notice to 
each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual place of 
residence; but a special meeting may be held on shorter notice if all members of 
the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing. 

 
B. DOCUMENTATION: 

Special meetings shall be exclusively limited to items specifically referenced in the 
Call of the Meeting. 
• Special Meeting Posting: Pursuant to City Charter a printed meeting notice for each 

specially called meeting shall contain the items indicated in the written notice calling 
the meeting.  

• Study Session (Special Meeting) Agenda and Posting: Study Session Agendas 
shall contain the items as indicated in the motion calling the meeting.  

 
C. POSTING AND DELIVERY: 

Special Meeting Calling Notice and/or Agenda shall be personally delivered to each 
Council Member and posted for public display at least twenty-four (24) hours in 
advance of the meeting. 

 
D. ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

At each Study Session (Special Meeting) of the Council, the business to be considered 
shall include the items listed and in the following order: 

 
A. Call to Order 
B. Roll Call: 

1) Listing of Council Members 
2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 21. 

C. Items as Indicated in the Motion Calling of the Meeting 
D. Items Not Indicated in the Motion Call the Meeting (Pursuant to City Charter 

Sections 4.2 and 4.3): 
1) Special meetings are limited to what is expressly indicated in the Call of the 

Meeting (Motion of Council or written notice). 
 
 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 2 
 

Adopted: 07/12/2010 

2) If all members of City Council approve of agenda amendments or additions in 
writing prior to the desired action, then Council can entertain such desired action 
only when all members present at the meeting consent to allow the 
amendment/addition to the agenda. 

E. Public Comment 
F.  Adjournment 

4. REGULAR MEETINGS 
Regular meetings shall be held in the Council Chambers at 7:30 P.M. Meeting dates will be 
established, by resolution, prior to the end of the preceding calendar year. 

5. AGENDA 
A. Regular Meeting Agenda: A printed agenda for each regularly scheduled meeting shall 

be produced at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting. Every item of 
business to come before the Council shall be filed with the City Clerk by noon on the 
Wednesday preceding the Monday on which the Council meets. It shall be the duty of 
the City Clerk to have delivered, as soon as practical, to each member of the Council a 
complete agenda of the items to be considered at the following meeting. Each item on 
the agenda shall have sufficient explanation to indicate its intent. All questions 
introduced that do not appear on the agenda will be referred to a later meeting, except 
by suspension of these rules. A packet, excluding all confidential items, will be posted 
on the City’s Website at least 48 hours prior to Council meetings. 
 

B. Closed Session Agenda: Where a Closed Session is requested of a pending case, the 
specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even though the specific 
name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act. Where a Closed 
Session is requested for any collective bargaining unit, the specific name(s) is to be 
included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), even though not technically required under the 
Open Meetings Act.  

6. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
At each Regular meeting of the Council, the business to be considered shall be taken up for 
consideration and disposition in the following order: 
 
Invocation 
Pledge of Allegiance 
A. Call to Order 
B. Roll Call 

1) Listing of Council Members 
2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 21 

C. Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 
D. Carryover Items 
E. Public Hearings 
F. Public Comment – In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Rule 

Number 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors 
G. Response/Reply to Public Comment  
H. Postponed Items 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 3 
 

Adopted: 07/12/2010 

I.  Regular Business 
J.  Consent Agenda 

1) Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
2) Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion 

K.  Memorandums and Future Council Agenda Items 
L.  Council Referrals - Items appearing under Council Referrals are items brought forward 

by the Mayor or Council Members before the City Manager’s agenda deadline for 
consideration at the next regular meeting.  

M.  Council Comments - Items brought forward by Mayor and Council will be placed on the 
next Regular Meeting Agenda for Action. Items appearing under Council Comments are 
not intended for discussion or action at the meeting at which they first appear. 

N.  Reports 
O. Closed Session - Council will call a Closed Session (if needed) to be conducted after 

scheduled Study Items (if applicable). If there are no Study Items, Council may proceed 
directly into Closed Session. Council may also schedule a Closed Session for a future 
Regular or Special meeting date. 

P.  Study Items 
Q.  Closed Session 
R.  Adjournment 

7. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
All City Council Meetings will be broadcast on WTRY, with the exception of Closed sessions 
and Council retreats. 

8. MINUTES 
A. Minutes: The minutes will be distributed to the Council prior to their approval. The 

minutes will be placed on the Consent Agenda for approval. 
B. Closed Session Minutes: Where a Closed Session is requested for discussion of a 

pending case, the specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even 
though the specific name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act. 
Where a Closed Session is requested of for any collective bargaining unit, the specific 
name(s) of a collective bargaining unit is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), 
even though not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  

9. PROCLAMATIONS 
Proclamations shall be included in the agenda under Reports and Communications and may 
be brought before Council for consideration by any member. Proclamations will be placed on 
the Consent Agenda for approval. 

10. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS 
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may be made by either side of the voted motion 
and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members*. 
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may further be made by either side of the voted 
motion and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members provided 
that new information has been brought forward. *Charter states “majority of the members 
elect.” 
 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 4 
 

Adopted: 07/12/2010 

11. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS 
Rescission of any vote of the Council shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the 
Council Members. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.” 

12. WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS PRIOR TO VOTING  
Any motion may be withdrawn by its maker. A motion to withdraw must receive a second and 
the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members present.  

13. PUBLIC HEARING 
Public Hearings will be held after required notice has been provided. Notices shall inform 
recipients of possible continuations of hearings. The City Council may upon affirmative vote of 
a majority of its members "continue" said hearing at a future date designated in the resolution. 
If the City Council elects to continue the Public Hearing it will appear in the designated 
meeting Agenda under the topic of "Public Hearings".  

14. CONSENT AGENDA 
The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one motion. 
That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent Agenda. Any 
Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in opposition to the 
recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda and have having it 
considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent Agenda shall be 
considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have been heard. Public 
comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda Item F.  

15. APPOINTMENTS 
A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees: 

 
The Mayor shall, with City Council concurrence, appoint members of Boards or 
Committees as governed by State Statute or local ordinances. 
 
The Mayor Pro Tem will contact incumbents to determine their interest in being nominated 
for reappointment. 
 
The Mayor or any Council Member desiring to nominate a person for appointment to a 
Board, Commission, or Committee shall at the meeting prior to the appointment, submit 
such name, for nomination. A brief summary of background and personal data as to 
nominee's qualifications should be presented at the time of nomination, except that such a 
resume shall not be required for the re-nomination of a current member, or if the Council 
unanimously agrees that a resume is not necessary. Resumes will be submitted on or 
before the time of nomination. 
 
Nominations will occur during any regular meeting of the Council. A resolution to nominate 
will be considered during the "Regular Business" of the agenda. All nominations are 
subject to Section "B" which appears below. 

 
 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 5 
 

Adopted: 07/12/2010 

 
B. Method of Voting on Nominees: 

 
1) Where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of positions to be filled, a roll 

call vote shall be used. 
2) Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of positions to be filled, voting shall 

take place by the City Clerk calling the roll of the Council and each Council Member is to 
indicate the names of the individuals he/she wishes to fill the vacancies 

3) When no candidate receives a majority vote, the candidate(s) with the least number of votes 
shall be eliminated from the ensuing ballot. 

4) No member of the City Council shall serve on any committee, commission or board of the City 
of Troy, except the Retirement System Board of Trustees, Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan 
and Trust Board, and the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) unless membership is 
required by Statute or the City Charter. 

5) Persons nominated, but not appointed during this process will be sent a letter thanking them 
for their willingness to serve the community. 

6) Recognition will be given to persons who have concluded their service to the community on 
Boards and Commissions. 

15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 
SOCRRA 
SEMCOG (Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments) Representation: The 
Mayor and City Council shall appoint one Delegate and one Alternate to serve on the 
SEMCOG General Assembly for a term of two-years expiring at 7:30 PM on the Monday 
following the Regular City Council Election. The appointments shall be made at the 
organizational meeting of Council at the first Regular meeting of every odd-year 
November. 
 
SOCRRA (South Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority) Representation: 
The Mayor and City Council shall appoint one delegate and one alternate to serve on 
the SOCRRA Board for a term of one-year expiring on June 15th.  

16. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that 
if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate 
department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved 
satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still 
not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended 

with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 

five (5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 

five (5) minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any 
other item as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion 
of the agenda. 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 6 
 

Adopted: 07/12/2010 

 
• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 

members. 
• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 

should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 
• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may 

be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

17. POSTPONE  
A motion to postpone may be made for a definite period of time. Items will automatically 
appear on the appropriate agenda. 

18. RULES OF ORDER 
Robert's Rules of Order, current edition, as clarified by the City Clerk, is hereby adopted and 
made a part hereof, except as modified by these Rules of Procedure, the Charter, and the 
City Code. 

19. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 
Reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in service on behalf of the City shall be paid 
the Mayor and Council, provided that at the end of each month a detailed expense report is 
submitted and approved by the City Council. 

20. EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS 
A. Funds providing for Council representation at State and National conferences sponsored 

by affiliations of cities will be annually approved in the budget for the subject fiscal year. 
The City Council will by advance resolution grant authorization for out of town travel to 
specific places, for conference purposes. Members of the City Council will submit 
expense vouchers exceeding $50.00 per day to attend out-of-town meetings and 
conferences, with additional allowances being made for transportation (paid at the air 
coach rate or gas mileage at current IRS guidelines, depending upon the mode of 
transportation) and lodging. Expenses may be authorized for payment by the City 
Manager, and a copy of the expense report form will be placed on the Council agenda 
under Reports and Communications. 

 
B. Detailed and receipted expenses, not to exceed $150.00, to attend legislative committee 

hearings, legislative meetings, etc., may be authorized for payment by the City Manager 
without prior authorization by the Council, and a copy of the expense report form, along 
with receipts, will be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications. 

21. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 
A.  Council members who are unable to attend a Council meeting and desire an  excused 
 absence shall notify the City Manager, City Attorney and City Clerk of their absence in 
  writing prior to the meeting and indicate the reason for the absence. The reason 
 shall be entered in the proceedings of the Council at the time of each  absence. 
 
 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 7 
 

Adopted: 07/12/2010 

 
B.  In the event of an absence of a Council member at a meeting, the City Manager is 

directed to supply such absent Council member with information about any special 
meetings that may have been scheduled. 

22. SUSPEND RULES 
The Rules of Procedure may be waived by a simple majority. 

23. COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
No member of Council shall speak a second time on any item under discussion until all other 
members desiring to speak on that item have been heard. No member of Council shall be 
allowed to speak for more than five (5) minutes at a time. 

24. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Mayor and Council Members submitting an item for a vote shall send the item to the City 
Manager in a timely manner in writing. Staff professional opinion will be written to accompany 
the item for discussion and a vote on the matter. Presentations at the Council table shall be 
limited to 15 minutes. 

25. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS  
Video and Audio Presentations may not be submitted for presentation at a Council meeting 
unless submitted by 12:00 Noon on the day of the meeting. Inappropriate material will be 
prohibited. 

26. CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM 
Any item on the Council agenda that has not been discussed by 12:00 AM of the morning 
following the beginning of the meeting shall be continued to the next regular meeting as a 
Carryover Item, unless City Council takes action to the contrary. 

27. VIOLATIONS 
The City Clerk shall be responsible for reporting violations of time limitations or speaking 
sequence to the Chair. 

28. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BY AND TO COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 
MEETING OF COUNCIL 
All communications are subject to the Michigan Open Meetings Act, therefore members of the 
City Council shall not engage in any form of wire communication, as defined by U.S. Code 
Title 18, Part I, Chapter 119, Section 2510, during any meeting of the Council. 



 

 

 

 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN 
 

Adopted: November 9, 2009 July 12, 2010 
 

 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM ......................................................... 1 
2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR ............................................................. 1 
3. SPECIAL MEETINGS ...................................................................................... 1 
4. REGULAR MEETINGS .................................................................................... 2 
5. AGENDA .......................................................................................................... 2 
6. ORDER OF BUSINESS ................................................................................... 2 
7. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ........................................ 3 
8. MINUTES ......................................................................................................... 3 
9. PROCLAMATIONS .......................................................................................... 4 
10. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS .......................................................... 4 
11. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS ....................................................................... 4 
12. WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS PRIOR TO VOTING ....................................... 4 
13. PUBLIC HEARING ........................................................................................... 4 
14. CONSENT AGENDA ....................................................................................... 4 
15. APPOINTMENTS ............................................................................................. 4 
15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 

SOCRRA ............................................................................................... 5 
16. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS ................................................ 6 
17. POSTPONE ..................................................................................................... 6 
18. RULES OF ORDER ......................................................................................... 6 
19. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES ...................................................................... 6 
20. EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS ..................... 6 
21. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS ........................................................... 7 
22. SUSPEND RULES ........................................................................................... 7 
23. COUNCIL DISCUSSION .................................................................................. 7 
24. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS: ............................ 7 
25. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS ......................................................... 7 
26. CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM ..... 8 
27. VIOLATIONS .................................................................................................... 8 
28. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 

MEETING OF COUNCIL ...................................................................... 8 
 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL – Including Proposed Amendments-6/28/10 
& Revisions Presented by Council Member Beltramini  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 1 
 

Adopted: 11/09/2009 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM 
The Mayor Pro Tem shall be elected by the Council from among its members, annually in 
November. 

2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR 
In the absence or disability of the Mayor and the Mayor Pro Tem, the Council Member 
present who has served longest shall be designated Acting Mayor and shall perform the 
duties of the Mayor. 

3. SPECIAL MEETINGS 
A. CALLING OF SPECIAL MEETINGS: (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.2) 

Section 4.2 - Special Meetings: 
Special meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the 
Mayor, or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written 
notice to each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual 
place of residence; but a special meeting may be held on shorter notice if all 
members of the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing. 

 
B. DOCUMENTATION: 

Special meetings shall be exclusively limited to items specifically referenced in the 
Call of the Meeting. 
• Special Meeting Posting: Pursuant to City Charter a printed meeting notice for each 

specially called meeting shall contain the items indicated in the written notice calling 
the meeting.  

• Study Session (Special Meeting) Agenda and Posting: Study Session Agendas 
shall contain the items as indicated in the motion calling the meeting.  

 
C. POSTING AND DELIVERY: 

Special Meeting Calling Notice and/or Agenda shall be personally delivered to 
each Council Member and posted for public display at least twenty-four (24) 
hours in advance of the meeting. 

 
D. ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

At each Study Session (Special Meeting) of the Council, the business to be considered 
shall include the items listed and in the following order: 

 
A. Call to Order 
B. Roll Call 

(1) Listing of Council Members 
(2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 21. 

C. Items as Indicated in the Motion Calling of the Meeting 
D. Items Not Indicated in the Motion Call the Meeting, Pursuant to City Charter 

Sections 4.2 and 4.3 
(1) By Charter, sSpecial meetings are limited to what is expressly indicated in the Call 

of the Meeting (Motion of Council or written notice, per Charter Section 4.2). 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL – Including Proposed Amendments-6/28/10 
& Revisions Presented by Council Member Beltramini  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 2 
 

Adopted: 11/09/2009 

 
(2) If all members of City Council approve of agenda amendments or additions in 

writing prior to the desired action, then Council can entertain such desired action 
only when all members present at the meeting consent to allow the 
amendment/addition to the agenda. 

 
a. See Charter Article 6 Amendments/Additions to Agenda  
b. E. Public Comment 
c. F. Adjournment 

 
E. AMENDMENTS/ADDITIONS TO AGENDA: 

(1) By Charter, special meetings are limited to what is expressly indicated in the Call of the 
Meeting (Motion of Council or written notice, per Charter). 
 

(2) If all members of City Council approve of agenda amendments or additions in writing 
prior to the desired action, then Council can entertain such desired action only when all 
members present at the meeting consent to allow the amendment/addition to the 
agenda. 

4. REGULAR MEETINGS 
Regular meetings shall be held in the Council Chambers at 7:30 P.M. Meeting dates will be 
established, by resolution, prior to the end of the preceding calendar year. 

5. AGENDA 
A. Regular Meeting Agenda: A printed agenda for each regularly scheduled meeting shall 

be produced at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting. Every item of 
business to come before the Council shall be filed with the City Clerk by noon on the 
Wednesday preceding the Monday on which the Council meets. It shall be the duty of 
the City Clerk to have delivered, as soon as practical, to each member of the Council a 
complete agenda of the items to be considered at the following meeting. Each item on 
the agenda shall have sufficient explanation to indicate its intent. All questions 
introduced that do not appear on the agenda will be referred to a later meeting, except 
by suspension of these rules. A packet, excluding all confidential items, will be posted 
on the City’s Website at least 48 hours prior to Council meetings. 
 

B. Closed Session Agenda: Where a Closed Session is requested of a pending case, the 
specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even though the specific 
name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act. Where a Closed 
Session is requested of for any collective bargaining unit, the specific name(s) is to be 
included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), even though not technically required under the 
Open Meetings Act.  

6. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
At each Regular meeting of the Council, the business to be considered shall be taken up for 
consideration and disposition in the following order: 
 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL – Including Proposed Amendments-6/28/10 
& Revisions Presented by Council Member Beltramini  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 3 
 

Adopted: 11/09/2009 

Invocation 
Pledge of Allegiance 
A. Call to Order 
B. Roll Call 

(1) Listing of Council Members 
(2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 21. 

C. Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 
D. Carryover Items 
E. Public Hearings 
F. Public Comment – In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 

16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
G. Response/Reply to Public Comment  
G. H. Postponed Items 
H. I. Regular Business - Council will move forward all of the “H” items as requested by 

members of the audience. Remaining “H” Items will be addressed in order of appearance 
following the addressing of the  “H” Items moved forward. 

I. J. Consent Agenda 
(1) Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
(2) Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion 

J. K. Memorandums and Future Council Agenda Items 
K. L. Council Referrals - Items appearing under Council Referrals are items brought forward 

by the Mayor or Council Members before the City Manager’s agenda deadline for 
consideration at the next regular meeting.  

L. M. Council Comments - Items brought forward by Mayor and Council will be placed on 
the next Regular Meeting Agenda for Action. Items appearing under Council Comments 
are not intended for discussion or action at the meeting at which they first appear. 

M. N. Reports 
N. O. Closed Session – Council will call a Closed Session (if needed) to be conducted after 

scheduled Study Items (if applicable). If there are no Study Items, Council may proceed 
directly into Closed Session. Council may also schedule a Closed Sessions for a future 
Regular or Special meeting date. 

O. P. Study Items 
O Q. Closed Session 
P R. Adjournment 

7. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
All City Council Meetings will be broadcast on WTRY, with the exception of Closed meetings 
sessions of City Council and Council retreats. 

8. MINUTES 
A. Minutes: The minutes will be distributed to the Council prior to their approval. The minutes 

will be placed on the Consent Agenda for approval. 
B. Closed Session Minutes: Where a Closed Session is requested for discussion of a 

pending case, the specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even 
though the specific name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act. 
Where a Closed Session is requested of for any collective bargaining unit, the specific 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL – Including Proposed Amendments-6/28/10 
& Revisions Presented by Council Member Beltramini  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 4 
 

Adopted: 11/09/2009 

name(s) of a collective bargaining unit is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), 
even though not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  

9. PROCLAMATIONS 
Proclamations shall be included in the agenda under Reports and Communications and may 
be brought before Council for consideration by any member. Proclamations will be placed on 
the Consent Agenda for approval. 

10. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS 
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may be made by either side of the voted motion 
and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members*. 
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may further be made by either side of the voted 
motion and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members provided 
that new information has been brought forward. *Charter states “majority of the members 
elect.” 

11. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS 
Rescission of any vote of the Council shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the 
Council Members. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.” 

12. WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS PRIOR TO VOTING  
Any motion may be withdrawn by its maker. A motion to withdraw must receive a second and 
the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members present.  

13. PUBLIC HEARING 
Public Hearings will be held after required notice has been provided. Notices shall inform 
recipients of possible continuations of hearings. The City Council may upon affirmative vote of 
a majority of its members "continue" said hearing at a future date designated in the resolution. 
If the City Council elects to continue the Public Hearing it will appear in the designated 
meeting Agenda under the topic of "Public Hearings".  

14. CONSENT AGENDA 
The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one motion. 
That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent Agenda. Any 
Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in opposition to the 
recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda and have having it 
considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent Agenda shall be 
considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have been heard. Public 
comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda Item F.  

15. APPOINTMENTS 
A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees: 

 
The Mayor shall, with City Council concurrence, appoint members of Boards or 
Committees as governed by State Statute or local ordinances. 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL – Including Proposed Amendments-6/28/10 
& Revisions Presented by Council Member Beltramini  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 5 
 

Adopted: 11/09/2009 

 
 
The Mayor Pro Tem will contact incumbents to determine their interest in being nominated 
for reappointment. 
 
The Mayor or any Council Member desiring to nominate a person for appointment to a 
Board, Commission, or Committee shall at the meeting prior to the appointment, submit 
such name, into for nomination. A brief summary of background and personal data as to 
nominee's qualifications should be presented at the time of nomination, except that such a 
resume shall not be required for the re-nomination of a current member, or if the Council 
unanimously agrees that a resume is not necessary. Resumes will be submitted on or 
before the time of nomination. 
 
Nominations will occur during any regular meeting of the Council. A resolution to nominate 
will be considered during the "Regular Business" of the agenda. All nominations are 
subject to Section "B" which appears below. 

 
B. Method of Voting on Nominees. 

 
(1) Where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of positions to be filled, a 

roll call vote shall be used. 
 

(2) Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of positions to be filled, voting 
shall take place by the City Clerk calling the roll of the Council and each Council 
Member is to indicate the names of the individuals he/she wishes to fill the vacancies 
 

(3) When no candidate receives a majority vote, the candidate(s) with the least number of 
votes shall be eliminated from the ensuing ballot. 
 

(4) No member of the City Council shall serve on any committee, commission or board of 
the City of Troy, except the Retirement System Board of Trustees, Retiree Health Care 
Benefits Plan and Trust Board, and the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 
unless membership is required by Statute or the City Charter. 
 

(5) Persons nominated, but not appointed during this process will be sent a letter thanking 
them for their willingness to serve the community. 
 

(6) Recognition will be given to persons who have concluded their service to the 
community on Boards and Commissions. 

15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 
SOCRRA 
SEMCOG (Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments) Representation: The Mayor 
and City Council shall appoint one Delegate and one Alternate to serve on the SEMCOG 
General Assembly for a term of two-years expiring at 7:30 PM on the Monday following 
the Regular City Council Election. The appointments shall be made at the organizational 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL – Including Proposed Amendments-6/28/10 
& Revisions Presented by Council Member Beltramini  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 6 
 

Adopted: 11/09/2009 

meeting of Council at the first Regular meeting of every odd-year November. 
 
 
SOCRRA (South Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority) Representation: The 
Mayor and City Council shall appoint one delegate and one alternate to serve on the 
SOCRRA Board for a term of one-year expiring on June 15th.  

16. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that 
if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate 
department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved 
satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still 
not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended 

with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 

five (5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 

five (5) minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any 
other item as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion 
of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may 
be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

17. POSTPONE  
A motion to postpone may be made for a definite period of time. Items will automatically 
appear on the appropriate agenda. 

18. RULES OF ORDER 
Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised 10th current Eedition, as clarified by the City Clerk, is 
hereby adopted and made a part hereof, except as modified by these Rules of Procedure, the 
Charter, and the City Code. 

19. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 
Reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in service on behalf of the City shall be paid 
the Mayor and Council, provided that at the end of each month a detailed expense report is 
submitted and approved by the City Council. 

20. EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS 
A. Funds providing for Council representation at State and National conferences sponsored 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL – Including Proposed Amendments-6/28/10 
& Revisions Presented by Council Member Beltramini  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 7 
 

Adopted: 11/09/2009 

by affiliations of cities will be annually approved in the budget for the subject fiscal year. 
The City Council will by advance resolution grant authorization for out of town travel to 
specific places, for conference purposes. Members of the City Council will submit 
expense vouchers exceeding $50.00 per day to attend out-of-town meetings and 
conferences, with additional allowances being made for transportation (paid at the air 
coach rate or gas mileage at current IRS guidelines, depending upon the mode of 
transportation) and lodging. Expenses may be authorized for payment by the City 
Manager, and a copy of the expense report form will be placed on the Council agenda 
under Reports and Communications. 

 
B. Detailed and receipted expenses, not to exceed $150.00, to attend legislative committee 

hearings, legislative meetings, etc., may be authorized for payment by the City Manager 
without prior authorization by the Council, and a copy of the expense report form, along 
with receipts, will be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications. 

21. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 
A.  Council members who are unable to attend a Council meeting and desiring desire an 
 excused absence shall notify the City Manager, City Attorney and City Clerk of their 
 absence in writing prior to the meeting and indicate the reason for the absence. The 
 reason shall be entered in the proceedings of the Council at the time of each  absence. 
 
B.  In the event of an absence of a Council member at a meeting, the City Manager is 

directed to supply such absent Council member with information about any special 
meetings that may have been scheduled. 

22. SUSPEND RULES 
The Rules of Procedure may be waived by a simple majority. 

23. COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
No member of Council shall speak a second time on any item under discussion until all other 
members desiring to speak on that item have been heard. No member of Council shall be 
allowed to speak for more than five (5)-minutes at a time. 

24. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
Mayor and Council Members submitting an item for a vote shall send the item to the City 
Manager in a timely manner in writing. Staff professional opinion will be written to accompany 
the item for discussion and a vote on the matter. Presentations at the Council table shall be 
limited to 15 minutes. 

25. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS  
Video and Audio Presentations may not be submitted for presentation at a Council meeting 
unless submitted by 12:00 Noon prior to on the day of the meeting. Inappropriate material will 
be prohibited. 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL – Including Proposed Amendments-6/28/10 
& Revisions Presented by Council Member Beltramini  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 8 
 

Adopted: 11/09/2009 

26. CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM 
Any item on the Council agenda that has not been discussed by 12:00 AM of the morning 
following the beginning of the meeting shall be continued to the next regular meeting as a 
Carryover Item, unless City Council takes action to the contrary. 

27. VIOLATIONS 
The City Clerk shall be responsible for reporting violations of time limitations or speaking 
sequence to the Chair. 

28. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN BY AND TO COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING 
ANY MEETING OF COUNCIL 
All communications are subject to the Michigan Open Meetings Act, therefore members of the 
City Council shall not engage in any form of wire communication, as defined by U.S. Code 
Title 18, Part I, Chapter 119, Section 2510, during any meeting of the Council. 



 

 
 
July 1, 2010 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 
  Stephen Cooperrider, Risk Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Pre-Medicare Reinsurance Subsidy Availability 
 
 
 

When the Federal Health Care Reform Law was passed in March it included an “Early 
Retirement Reinsurance Program (ERRP) Subsidy”. This new program can reimburse eligible 
employers for a portion of health care claims incurred by retirees who are as least age 55 but 
are not yet eligible for Medicare.  It also includes the retirees’ covered dependents regardless of 
age.  The Federal government has set aside $5 billion to fund this program.  Once this funding 
is depleted the program will end. Application for funding is now open on a first come first serve 
basis; employers need to act quickly to have a chance for this subsidy. 
 
 Reimbursement is provided following plan sponsor application and the filing of claims 
information.  Once a plan participant in an early retirement plan incurs $15,000 in health care 
claims in a plan year, the government will reimburse plan sponsors for 80% of a participant’s 
claims up to $90,000 during the plan year.  Reimbursement will apply for claims incurred 
starting June 1. The program is authorized to continue through December 31, 2013; again, it is 
expected the money will most likely run out long before that date. 
 
 We have discussed the ERRP with our RDS Services LLC representative Jayne Brown, 
who currently assists with our Medicare Part D Subsidy program.  RDS is also gearing up to 
handle applications and filings for its clients for the ERRP Subsidy and has asked if Troy wishes 
to participate. Ms. Brown was asked to provide a cost/benefit estimate. Based on information 
provided to her regarding Troy’s current retirees and their dependents, RDS has provided the 
following estimate for the first year: 
 
BCBS subsidy: 
Fixed cost for a data feed from Blue Cross Blue Shield of Michigan:   $3,000.00 
 
Estimated subsidy to be received by the City:       $365,185.00 
Estimated fee to RDS Services after receipt of anticipated subsidy:   $46,519.00 
 
Payment for BCBS and RDS Services would come out of subsidy.  The only fixed cost is the 
BCBS data feed.  RDS will also provide services for HAP and BCN subsidy.  Reimbursement 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
H-04



estimates are not included here because it is unknown what information may be provided by the 
HMOs. 
 
Attached is the fee schedule from RDS Services.  They have indicated they would waive the 
retainer fee because we are already a client.  Attached also is the fee schedule from BCBS for 
the data feed.  We need the data feed from BCBS to be able to apply for the subsidy.  We 
currently have 89 subscribers between ages 55-64.  With employees retiring rather than being 
laid off this number will grow for next year. 
 
The plan would be to pay all fees from subsidy money; the only real cost is our time 
coordinating the gathering of information to file our application each year until the federal 
subsidy money funding runs out. 
 
If you have any questions, we are available for comment. 
 
 
 
Prepared by: James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 
 
 







 

 
 
                             
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
    David Livingston, Lieutenant, Troy Police Department 
 
SUBJECT:   Driving While Distracted Ordinance    
 
 
Background: 
 

In recent years there has been an increase in the amount of distracted driving that takes place on 
our nation’s roadways.  This phenomenon has spread to all states, towns, and cities, including the 
City of Troy.  Studies by such notable insurance companies as Nationwide and research institutes 
like the Carnegie Institute indicate that between 50 to 80% of all traffic crashes are the direct 
result of some type of distracted driving. 
 
While some of these distractions are physical in nature, such as applying makeup while driving, 
shaving while driving, eating while driving, holding pets while driving, to name just a few, many are 
of the cognitive nature such as speaking on cell phones, daydreaming, carrying on a conversation 
with passengers, etc.  Texting while driving, reading emails, and surfing the web are also types of 
distracted driving that encompass both the physical and the cognitive nature of distracted driving. 
 
A recent AAA survey indicated 46% of teens admit to driving while texting.  AAA also reports that 
a car crash accounts for the most deaths of persons aged 15-21 years old. 
 
Research done by the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration shows that in 2008 alone, 
nearly 6,000 people were killed and more than 500,000 people were injured in crashes involving 
distracted driving nationwide.   
 
Each year more cities and states throughout the country are taking proactive steps to help reduce 
the occurrences of distracted driving by providing a means with which to enforce the common 
types of distracted driving behaviors we have all encountered.    
 
On any given day in the City of Troy, commuters are seen driving in ways that are unsafe.  Most 
of these occurrences are the direct result of drivers dividing their attention between their driving 
abilities and some other activity like using a computer, taking off a jacket while driving, speaking 
on a cell phone, eating a bowl of cereal, text messaging, etc..  An attachment to this report shows 
about forty statements made by drivers in the last six months, where various types of distracted 
driving admittedly led to traffic crashes in the City of Troy.   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
H-05



City Administration has prepared two proposed ordinances for City Council review. 
 
The first proposed City Ordinance, listed as Version A, is modeled after the State of Michigan 
texting while driving law that took effect on July 1, 2010.  There is additional language in the 
ordinance to expressly identify cell phone dialing and scrolling as distractive behavior that is 
prohibited as texting. 
 
The second proposed City Ordinance, listed as Version B, encompasses other distractive 
behaviors that have led to traffic crashes in the City of Troy.  Version B is the preferred version to 
be adopted. However, City Council has not yet had the opportunity to discuss this version, which 
includes a variety of different distractions, including the use of handheld cell phones. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

Traffic crashes in general account for a significant amount of lost time, money, and productivity to 
our economy due to injuries and deaths every year. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 

Distracted driving will never be eliminated.  However, with a proactive approach to the problem, 
the City of Troy can take steps to minimize the occurrences of distracted driving through 
education and enforcement efforts. 
 
The City of Troy attorney’s office has reviewed the proposed ordinance and approves it as to 
legality. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 

By reducing the number of instances of distracted driving, through educational and enforcement 
efforts, the health and safety of all motorists, bicyclists, and pedestrians, utilizing the roads and 
walkways in the City of Troy will certainly be enhanced. 

 
Options: 
 

City Administration recommends the passing of proposed City Ordinance Version B on Driving 
While Distracted, as written. 

 
City Council could also approve the proposed City Ordinance Version A, which is limited to 
texting.  
 
Additionally, City Council could consider Version B as a future agenda item. 
 

Reviewed and approved as to legality: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
Prepared by David Livingston, Lieutenant, Troy Police Department, Special Operations Section 
Driving While Distracted City Ordinance Proposal to City Council.docx 



Version A: Texting While Driving 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 

CHAPTER 106 OF THE CODE 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to add Section 
3.2b of Chapter 106 of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment. Chapter 106 is amended by the addition of a new Section 
3.2b as follows; 
 
3.2b Use of wireless 2-way communication device for text messages while 

operating motor vehicle.  
 

1) Except as otherwise provided in this section, a person shall not read, 
manually type, scroll, dial numbers, or send a text message on a wireless 
2-way communication device that is located in the person’s hand or in 
the person’s lap (including a wireless telephone used in cellular 
telephone service or personal communication service), while operating a 
motor vehicle that is moving on a highway, street or place open to the 
general public within the City of Troy.  As used in this subsection, a 
wireless 2-way communication device does not include a global 
positioning or navigation system that is affixed to the motor vehicle. 
 

2) Subsection 1) does not apply to an individual who is using a device 
described in subsection 1) to do any of the following: 

 
a) Report a traffic accident, medical emergency or serious road 

hazard. 
b) Report a situation in which the person believes his or her personal 

safety is in jeopardy. 
c) Report or avert the perpetration or potential perpetration of a 

criminal act against the individual or another person. 
d) Carry out official duties as a police officer, law enforcement 

official, member of a paid or volunteer fire department, or operator 
of an emergency vehicle. 
 

3) An individual who violates this section is responsible for a civil infraction.  
 

Section 3.  Savings 



 2 

 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ______. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



 
 

Version B: Distracted Driving 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 

CHAPTER 106 OF THE CODE  
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
The City of Troy ordains:  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 106 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended as follows: 
 
Add section 1.20.05 to read as follows: 
 
1.0 WORDS AND PHRASES DEFINED 

1.01.00 Words and phrases. 
 
 The following words and phrases when used in this code shall, for 

the purpose of this code, have the meanings respectively ascribed 
to them in this chapter. Whenever any word or phrase used in this 
code is not defined herein but is defined in Act No. 300 of the 
Public Acts of 1949, as amended, being §257.1 et seq. of the 
Michigan Complied Laws, the definition therein shall be deemed to 
apply to the words and phrases used in this code. 

 
1.20.05 “Distracted Driving” means the following: 
 

1) The physical manipulation of any 2-way wireless electronic 
communication device used for dialing numbers; or scrolling; or 
typing or entering multiple letters, numbers, symbols, or other 
text; or the sending, receiving, and reading of any non-voice 
data in the device while the motor vehicle is in motion on any 
highway or street or place open to the general public within the 
City of Troy.  As used in this subsection, a wireless 2-way 
communication device does not include a global positioning or 
navigation system that is affixed to the motor vehicle. 
 

2) The physical manipulation or handling of any wireless 
entertainment or electronic communication device for the 
purpose of speaking into, or listening to voice data, while the 
motor vehicle is in motion on any highway or street  or place 
open to the general public within the City of Troy; or 
 

3) Any action by the driver of a motor vehicle that diverts his or her 
attention resulting in the failure to use due care and caution in 



 
 

the safe operation of a motor vehicle while the vehicle is in 
motion on any highway or street or place open to the general 
public within the City of Troy. Such action can include but is not 
limited to: eating, reading, writing, performing personal 
hygiene/grooming, physical interaction with pets, passengers, or 
unsecured cargo, any of which is done in a manner that 
prohibits the driver from maintaining direct physical control of 
the motor vehicle steering mechanism with at least one hand 
that is free of all other objects and used entirely to form a 
controlled grip on the steering mechanism.  

 
Add Section 5.14c, and renumber as follows: 
 
5.0 RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF DRIVERS AND OTHERS. 

 
5.14b  (old number) 
5.14 Drag Races Prohibited; "Drag Racing" Defined; Violation Punishable 

as Misdemeanor. 
 

1) A person shall not operate a vehicle on any highway or other place 
open to the general public, including any area designated for the 
parking of motor vehicles, in a speed or acceleration contest or for 
the purpose of making a speed record, whether from a standing 
start or otherwise, over a measured or unmeasured distance, and 
shall not participate in drag racing as defined in subsection (2) of 
this section. 
 

2) "Drag racing" means the operation of 2 or more vehicles from a 
point side-by-side at accelerating speeds in a competitive attempt 
to out distance each other over a common selected course or 
where timing is involved or where timing devices are used in 
competitive accelerations of speeds by participating vehicles. 
Persons who render assistance in any manner to such competitive 
use of vehicles shall be equally charged as participants. The 
operation of 2 or more vehicles either at speeds in excess of prima 
facie lawfully established speeds or rapidly accelerating from a 
common starting point to a speed in excess of such prima facie 
lawful speed is prima facie evidence of drag racing and is unlawful 
and shall be punished, upon conviction, as a misdemeanor. 
 

5.14   (old number) 
5.14a Reckless Driving; Violation Punishable as Misdemeanor. A person 

who drives a vehicle on a highway or a frozen public lake, stream, pond, 
or other place open to the general public, including but not limited to any 
area designated for the parking of motor vehicles, in willful or wanton 
disregard for the safety of persons or property, is guilty of reckless driving. 



 
 

A person who violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable 
by imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 93 days or by a fine of 
not more than $500, or both. 
  

5.14a  (old number) 
5.14b. Careless Driving; Violation as Civil Infraction. A person who operates 

a vehicle on a highway or a frozen public lake, stream, pond, or other 
place open to the general public, including any area designated for the 
parking of vehicles, in a careless or negligent manner likely to endanger 
any person or property, but without wantonness or recklessness is 
responsible for a civil infraction. 
 

5.14c. Distracted Driving; Violation as Civil Infraction. 
 
1) A person shall not engage in distracted driving within the City of 

Troy. 
 
2) A person who violates this section is responsible for a civil 

infraction. 
 
3) Exceptions. This section does not apply to a person who is using a 

electronic communication device to do one or more of the following: 
 

a) Report a traffic accident, medical emergency or serious road 
hazard. 

 
b) Report a situation in which the person believes his or her 

personal safety is in jeopardy. 
 
c) Report or avert the perpetration or potential perpetration of a 

criminal act against the individual or another person. 
 
d) Carry out official duties as a police officer, law enforcement 

official, member of a paid or volunteer fire department, or 
operator of an emergency vehicle. 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter 
instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by 
this ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 



 
 

prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be 
held invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________,  

 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling,  Mayor 
 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk    
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 21, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

Pastor Vince Messina of Woodside Bible Church gave the Invocation. The Pledge of Allegiance 
to the Flag was given.  
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 
The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, June 21, 2010, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini  
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak  
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  
C-1 Presentations:  
a) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Louise Schilling presented a proclamation honoring 

Peter Hullinger as the 2010 Firefighter of the Year. Mr. Hullinger gave a short 
presentation about the City of Troy’s volunteer fire fighters. 

b) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the months of 
March and April 2010, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart presented a check in 
the amount of $1,062.00 to Kelsey Ruder, Community Representative for the American 
Cancer Society.  

c) A presentation was given by City Assessor Nino Licari on the 2010 City of Troy 
Assessment Roll & Board of Review Report.  

 
D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Special Use Request (File Number SU 379) – Proposed Big Beaver Tavern Outdoor 

Seating, North Side of Big Beaver, West of Rochester (645 East Big Beaver), 
Section 22, Currently Zoned O-M (Office Mid-Rise) District 

 
The Mayor opened the public hearing for public comment. The Mayor closed the public hearing 
after receiving comment from the applicant, Chris Ciceri, Dorchen/Martin Associates. 
 
Resolution #2010-06-133 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS Special Use Approval and Preliminary 
Site Plan Approval for the proposed Big Beaver Tavern Outdoor Seating, located on the north 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 21, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

side of Big Beaver, west of Rochester (645 E. Big Beaver), Section 22, within the O-M zoning 
district. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
E-2 Rezoning Application (File Number Z-737) – Troy Sports Center Properties, 

Northwest Corner of John R and Big Beaver, Section 23 – O-1 (Low Rise Office 
District to B-2 (Community Business) District 

 
The Mayor opened the public hearing for public comment. The Mayor closed the public hearing 
after receiving comment from the applicant, Dennis Bostick. 
 
Resolution #2010-06-134 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a rezoning request, from O-1 to B-2, File Number Z-737, as 
demonstrated by the Ordinance to amend Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy and as 
illustrated in the attached Sketch of Parcels to be Rezoned; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed 
rezoning from O-1 to B-2; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Zoning District Map. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED  

 
F. PUBLIC COMMENT:   
 
James Savage Requested information regarding payments made by the City to all 

consultants and lobbyists in 2009. 
Audre Zembrzuski  Discussed Agenda Items H-05 and I-09. 

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
G-1 No Postponed Items 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 
H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 21, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 
 
a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
b) City Council Nominations: Board of Zoning Appeals  
 
Resolution #2010-06-135 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term - 1 Planning Commission Representative & Alt. 
 
Kenneth Courtney  
William Fisher  
Edward Kempen Term Expires 04/30/2013 (2 Vacancies) 
  
A. Allen Kneale Unexpired Term 04/30/2011 
 
Yes: Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
H-3 Approval of Amendment to MDOT Contract No. 07-7734 by MDOT Contract No. 10-

4040 – Stephenson Highway, 14 Mile to I-75 – Project No. 02.201.5 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Slater  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Michigan Department of 
Transportation (MDOT) Contract No. 10-4040 which amends MDOT Contract 07-7734, both 
contracts being between the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of Transportation, for the 
purpose of waiving the interest payments from October 1, 2009 until the project is converted by 
MDOT to regular Federal-Aid in fiscal year 2010 for the reconstruction of Stephenson Highway, 
from 14 Mile to I-75., Project No. 02.201.5; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 21, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Agenda Item H-3 Approval of Amendment to MDOT 
Contract No. 07-7734 by MDOT Contract No. 10-4040 – Stephenson Highway, 14 Mile to I-
75 – Project No. 02.201.5 
 
Resolution #2010-06-136 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution for Agenda Item H-3 
Approval of Amendment to MDOT Contract No. 07-7734 by MDOT Contract No. 10-4040 – 
Stephenson Highway, 14 Mile to I-75 – Project No. 02.201.5 by STRIKING “in fiscal year 2010”. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
Vote Agenda Item H-3 Approval of Amendment to MDOT Contract No. 07-7734 by MDOT 
Contract No. 10-4040 – Stephenson Highway, 14 Mile to I-75 – Project No. 02.201.5 as 
Amended 
 
Resolution #2010-06-137 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Slater  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Michigan Department of 
Transportation (MDOT) Contract No. 10-4040 which amends MDOT Contract 07-7734, both 
contracts being between the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of Transportation, for the 
purpose of waiving the interest payments from October 1, 2009 until the project is converted by 
MDOT to regular Federal-Aid for the reconstruction of Stephenson Highway, from 14 Mile to I-
75., Project No. 02.201.5; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak   
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
H-4 2009/10 Budget Amendment No. 2 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 21, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

Resolution #2010-06-138 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2009/10 Budget Amendment No. 2 
as submitted, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin 
No: None  
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
H-5 Dissolution of Historic District Study Committee  
 
Resolution #2010-06-139   
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The Historic District Study Committee appointed in February 2004 has completed 
work on all pending requests to de-list properties; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DISSOLVES the Historic 
District Study Committee, in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 13 of the Troy City Code 
and MCL 399.214(1). 
 
Yes: Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis  
No: None  
 
MOTION CARRIED  
  
H-6 Troy City Code Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 3 – Administrative Service 
 
Resolution #2010-06-140 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Slater  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance to amend Chapter 3, 
Administrative Service, of the Troy City Code Section 1.141, Sections (5), (6), (7), (8), (9) and 
(10) as recommended by City Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 21, 2010 
 

- 6 - 

H-7 Troy City Code Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 13 – Historic Preservation 
 
Resolution #2010-06-141 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance to amend Chapter 13, 
Historic Preservation, Section 3 to eliminate 4800 Beach Road as an historic district, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting and RECORDED with the 
Oakland County Register of Deeds as required by state statute. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED  

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2010-06-142 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Items I-7 and I-9 which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2010-06-142-I-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of June 7, 2010 as submitted. 
 
I-3 City of Troy Proclamation: 
 
Resolution #2010-06-142-I-3 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 21, 2010 
 

- 7 - 

a) Proclamation to Honor Peter Hullinger – 2010 Firefighter of the Year 
 
I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Bids – Audio & Video Upgrades 
 
Resolution #2010-06-142-I-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS all bid proposals for ITB-COT 10-20, 
audio and video upgrades for the City Council Chambers and WTRY Cable Control Room 
opened June 2, 2010, and will rebid under revised specifications. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Sole Bidder – Pool Maintenance and Repair 

Services 
 
Resolution #2010-06-142-I-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish two-year (2) 
requirements of pool maintenance and repairs for both indoor and outdoor pools at the Troy 
Family Aquatic Center and Community Center with two (2) one-year options to renew to the sole 
bidder, B & B Pool and Spas of Livonia, Michigan, at rates contained in the bid tabulation 
opened June 3, 2010, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, with a contract expiration of June 30, 2012; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon submission of properly 
executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 10-02 – 

Coolidge Highway Pavement Rehabilitation 
 
Resolution #2010-06-142-I-4c  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 10-02, Coolidge Hwy. 
Pavement Rehabilitation to Ajax Paving Industries, Inc., 830 Kirts Blvd., Suite 100, Troy, MI 
48084 at an estimated total cost of $621,314.97; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required, Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES such 
additional work in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Purchasing Cooperative – City of 

Rochester Hills – Fire Hose Testing 
 
Resolution #2010-06-142-I-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract for fire hose testing services 
during the 2010-2011 fiscal year from the low bidder, Waterway Michigan LLC of Caledonia, MI, 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 21, 2010 
 

- 8 - 

through a MITN Cooperative Award hosted by the City of Rochester Hills at a unit price of $.21 
per foot for an estimated total cost of $10,920.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of properly 
executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Fitness Equipment 
 
Resolution #2010-06-142-I-4e 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase and install three 
(3) Precor 556i Experience ellipticals at the Troy Community Center to the lowest bidder 
meeting specifications, Direct Fitness LLC of Mundelein, IL at an estimated net total cost of 
$10,185.00 including trade-ins, at prices contained in the bid tabulation dated June 4, 2010, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS bids for Item #2 - five 
(5) MatrixR3X Recumbent Bikes, Item #3 for two (2) MatrixH3x Hybrid Cycles, Item #4 for two 
(2) Octane #4700 Smart Stride Ellipticals and the balance of Item #5 for Trade-ins due to 
alternative units not meeting specifications or an all or none award stipulation; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of properly 
executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.  
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Automobile, Light 

Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 
Resolution #2010-06-142-I-4f 
 
WHEREAS, On July 23, 2007, three-year contracts to provide automobile, light truck, farm, and 
construction equipment replacement parts with an option to renew for three (3) additional years was 
awarded to the seventeen (17) lowest acceptable bidders meeting specifications: Kirk’s Automotive; 
Rowerdink Inc.; Terminal Supply; Coach and Motor Company; Motor City Truck Sales; Start All 
Enterprises; Lubrication Specialists & Company/Amsoil; Great Lakes Truck & Trailer; Elder Ford; 
Shults Equipment; Ivan Gandrud Chevrolet; Lacal Equipment; Alert Emergency Equipment Group; 
Old Dominion Brush; Electrical Terminal Service; John R Spring Service, Inc.; and Jack Doheny 
Supplies Inc. (Resolution #2007-07-222-E4d); 
 
WHEREAS, Alert Emergency Group and Rowerdink Incorporated have chosen not to extend their 
contracts and Motor City Truck Sales has ceased operations; and  
 
WHEREAS, The remaining fourteen (14) vendors have agreed to exercise the three-year option to 
renew the contracts under the same terms and conditions with discounted pricing;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to renew 
the contracts to provide automobile, light truck, farm, and construction equipment replacement parts 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 21, 2010 
 

- 9 - 

under the price discount structure provided in the agenda packet and ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring May 31, 2013.  
 
I-5 Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Michael Mandell, President of 

The Polish Century Club Orphans Fund, Inc. 
 
Resolution #2010-06-142-I-5 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from The Polish Century 
Club Orphans Fund, Inc., asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in 
the community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City 
Management. 
 
I-6 Ratification of The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club License, 2360 

Rochester – MLCC Request #520848 Approval Resolution 
 
a) 
 

New License 

Resolution #2010-06-142-I-6a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RATIFIES City Council Resolution 2010-02-034-I-
6a, Approval of The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club License located at 2360 
Rochester, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County {MLCC Request #520848} above all others” without 
contingencies; and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
b) 
 

Agreement 

Resolution #2010-06-142-I-6b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RATIFIES the approval of an 
agreement with The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club License located at 2360 
Rochester, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County {MLCC Request #520848}, and hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-8 City of Troy v RCU Independence, Inc. et al 
 
Resolution #2010-06-142-I-8 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed Consent Judgment in the 
condemnation case of City of Troy v RCU Independence, Inc. et al., Oakland County Circuit 
Court Case No. 09-101399-CC, and hereby AUTHORIZES payment in the amounts stated 
therein; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 21, 2010 
 

- 10 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney’s 
Office to execute the document on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
I-7 Interlocal Agreement for Participation in the Troy Police Department Special 

Investigations Unit 
 
Resolution #2010-06-143 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Police Department Special Investigations Unit (SIU) has become a 
cooperative initiative comprised of officers from Troy, Bloomfield Township, and Auburn Hills; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, An Interlocal Agreement will outline the purpose, responsibilities, and liability of 
each of the participating agencies; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached 
Interlocal Agreement for Participation in the Troy Police Department Special Investigations Unit; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Chief of Police 
to execute the Interlocal Agreement on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming  
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Kerwin from Voting on Agenda Item I-9 
Boys and Girls Club Funding Agreement 2010-2011 
 
Resolution #2010-06-144 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
  
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AFFIRMS that Council Member Kerwin shall abstain 
from voting on Agenda Item I-9 Boys and Girls Club Funding Agreement 2010-2011 pursuant to 
Section 4.7 - Organization and Rules of the Council (c). 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak  
No: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 21, 2010 
 

- 11 - 

Council Member Kerwin left the meeting. 
 
I-9 Boys and Girls Club Funding Agreement 2010-2011 
 
Resolution #2010-06-145 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the funding agreement between the 
City of Troy and Boys and Girls Club of Troy from July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2011 and 
hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes: McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak  
No: None 
Abstain: Kerwin  
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
Council Member Kerwin returned to the meeting. 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:49 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 8:58 PM. 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time):  
 
a) June 28, 2010 Study  
 
K. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
K-1  Council Member Dane Slater Proposals 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
L-1  Council Comments Advanced: 
 
Council Member Kerwin reported Michigan State University’s Land Policy Institute is conducting 
economy sessions at no charge; information is available at www.landpolicy.msu.edu. 
 
Council Member Kerwin discussed various sessions she recently attended on scholarship at 
Michigan State’s Extension and encouraged her colleagues to visit www.citizenplanner.msu.edu 
for further information. 

http://www.landpolicy.msu.edu/�
http://www.citizenplanner.msu.edu/�


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 21, 2010 
 

- 12 - 

Mayor Schilling discussed the impropriety of a recent article about the City of Troy printed in the 
Detroit Free Press in regard to what she believed to be a confidential matter. 
 
Council Member Beltramini reported Oakland County Treasurer, Andy Meisner is hosting a 
Foreclosure Prevention workshop on Wednesday, June 23, 2010 from 7:00 PM until 8:30 PM at 
the West Bloomfield Public Library located at 4600 Walnut Lake Road. 
 
Council Member Beltramini requested that City Management follow-up on the placement of the 
historic marker adjacent to the parking lot John’s Party Store for the Krell Farm site. 
 
Council Member Beltramini requested that City Council receive copies as part of their agenda 
packets of all summary reports given by a staff member to the committee when they are 
recorded as being attached to the copy of the board and committee original minutes. 
 
John Szerlag, City Manager reported that City Management will submit a timeline to adopt a 
Form-Based Code at City Council’s July 12, 2010 Regular Meeting. 
 
Council Member Kerwin requested that City Council be provided with a timeline for the entire 
ordinance document.  
 
Council Member Fleming requested that City Management prepare a report outlining all 
payments made by the City to all consultants and lobbyists. 
 
Mr. Szerlag will prepare a two phase report as described by Council Member Fleming. The first 
phase is what was paid to consultants in 2009, listed by vendor. The second phase is a listing of 
cost savings.  

M. REPORTS  
M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – February 4, 2010 
b) Library Advisory Board/Final – May 13, 2010 
c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – May 18, 2010  
d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – May 18, 2010 
e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 25, 2010  
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 25, 2010 
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – June 2, 2010 
h) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – June 3, 2010 

Noted and Filed 

M-2 Department Reports:  
a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – March 

2010 
b) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – April 

2010 
c) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – May 2010 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 21, 2010 
 

- 13 - 

M-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
a) Letter of Thanks to Acting Planning Director from Morgan Liu and Hongmei Zhao 

Regarding Service Received Pertaining to Site Condos and Subdivisions 
b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Sterling Heights Police Chief Michael Reese 

Regarding Assistance Received from Troy Police Department Special Investigative Unit 
with Serial Home Invasion Suspects  

Noted and Filed 
 
M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 

Noted and Filed 
 

M-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Minutes – May 20, 2010 
Noted and Filed 

 
M-6  Communication from Troy Police Department Regarding Police Records Section 

Public Counter Reduction in Hours 
Noted and Filed 

 
M-7  Communication from Police Chief Gary Mayer Regarding A & M Towing Contract  

Noted and Filed 
 

M-8  Communication from Fire Chief William Nelson Regarding Firefighters Incentive 
Program and Budget Comparison  

Noted and Filed 

N. STUDY ITEMS 
N-1  Chapter 82 – Property Maintenance Code – Responsibility to Cut Weeds and Grass 
 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 
O-1 Closed Session 
 
Resolution #2010-06-146 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268(h) (MCL 15.243(g)). 
 
Yes: Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 21, 2010 
 

- 14 - 

P. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting RECESSED at 9:41 PM. 

The meeting RECONVENED at 10:20 PM. 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:30 PM. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL STUDY SESSION MINUTES-Draft  June 28, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, June 28, 2010, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
 

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  

C-1 Rules of Procedure for the City Council    7:30 – 9:00 PM 
 
There was a consensus of City Council members to take action on the proposed revisions to 
the Rules of Procedure for the City Council at the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for 
Monday, July 12, 2010. 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:03 PM 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:10 PM 
 
C-2 Boards and Committees       9:10 – 10:00 PM 
 
City Council’s direction to City Management is as follows: 

1) What committees can be consolidated? 
2) How often is there a need for committees to meet? 
3) Revisit committee goals and objectives. 
4) Evaluate at the restructuring of the entire organization in conjunction with the 

committee’s function. 
5) What can other organizations do in taking ownership of the goals and objectives? 
 

C-3 Code of Conduct – No discussion; item forwarded to a future Study Session 
        

D. PUBLIC COMMENT:           
 

Jack Witt: 
Discussed concerns regarding the recent article printed in the Detroit 
Free Press regarding the Director of Building & Zoning. 

Benjamin Blaszak: 
Discussed issue regarding the multiple tickets he has received from 
Code Enforcement Officers. 

James Savage: 
Discussed multiple topics; discussed objections to the Public Comment 
section of City Council’s agenda format. 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-02



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL STUDY SESSION MINUTES-Draft  June 28, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

John Witt: 
Discussed concerns regarding the disciplinary action taken against the 
Director of Building & Zoning. 

 
E. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:20 PM. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 
June 24, 2010 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 

FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration   
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director   
 

SUBJECT:                  Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Printing of Troy Today, 
Quarterly Newsletter  

 

Background  
 On May 24, 2010, Requests for Qualifications/Proposals were received and opened to provide one-year 

requirements for the Printing of the Troy Today newsletter with an option to renew for two additional one-
year periods.     

 One-Hundred Fifty-One (151) vendors were notified via the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network 
(MITN) website with four (4) proposals received.  One vendor was disqualified for not providing the proper 
proposal surety and two (2) statements of no bids were received. 

 All responsive bidders met the pass/fail criteria.   
 A committee consisting of Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director; Loraine Campbell, Museum 

Manager; and Elaine Bo, Recreation Supervisor, evaluated the proposals. 
 Interviews of the three companies were also conducted.   
 Based on the scoring criteria of the proposal, price and interview process, the committee recommends 

awarding the contract to the highest rated respondent, Grand Blanc Printing Company, Inc. of Grand Blanc, 
Michigan.   

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the Community Affairs printing account #101.172.7901; Parks and Recreation 

Printing account #101.751.752.7901 and the Library Printing account #101.790.7901. 
 The total estimated cost for these services has decreased approximately $35,500.00 over last year in large 

part due to the reduced weight of the paper, changing from 60# white offset to 35# groundwood, and a 
reduction in the number of pages for the newsletter.     

 
Legal Considerations 
 RFP-COT 10-19 Printing of the Troy Today, quarterly newsletter was competitively bid as required by City 

Charter and Code. 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in printing services for the City 

of Troy.  
 Award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of properly executed contract and 

proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
Recommendation 
 City management recommends awarding a one-year contract for printing of the Troy Today, quarterly 

newsletter with an option to renew for two additional one-year periods to the highest scoring respondent, 
Grand Blanc Printing Company, Inc. of Grand Blanc, Michigan, as a result of a best value process for an 
estimated one year total cost of $39,008.00 for Proposals A & C, at unit prices contained in the RFP 
tabulation opened May 24, 2010, with a contract expiration of July 1, 2011.   

 
G:/Bid Award 10-11 New Format/ Best Value SR8 - RFP - Troy Today Printing 6 10.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-04a



 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

PRINTING OF THE TROY TODAY 
 

STATISTICS: 
 
 One hundred fifty-one (151) companies were notified via the MITN e-procurement website 

 
 Four (4) proposals were received.  One of the vendors was disqualified for not providing 

the proper proposal surety and two (2) statements of no bids were received.   
 
 All three (3) companies met the pass/fail criteria 

 
 Grand Blanc Printing Company, Inc. received the highest score as a result of a best value 

process  
 
The following three (3) companies received the indicated final scores as a result of 
the proposal, pricing and interview scores.  All three (3) companies participated in an 
interview.   
   
 

Company SCORE 
Grand Blanc Printing Co. Inc.  87.6 
Grand River Printing & Imaging 86.8 
Mignon Communications, Inc.dba Phillips Brothers Printing 69.0 

 
Attachments: 
 

 Weighted Final Scoring of 100% includes Proposal, Price and Interview  
 Evaluation Process 
 Original Tabulation 

 



 
WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING 

PRINTING OF THE TROY TODAY 
 

Final Score Calculation: 
 

 40% Proposal Score    (100 point base)  
 40% Price Score          (100 point base) 
 20% Interview Score    (100 point base)  

            100%           = Final Weighted Score 
 

In order to equate the price to the weighted evaluation process scoring, the prices had to be converted into a 
score with the base of 100.  NOTE:  Vendors are listed in the order of their summary score for the proposal 
and price, from highest to lowest.  For the final score the vendors are listed in the order of rating from highest 
to lowest.   
 

Weighted Average Score for Proposals: 40%   
Raters: 1 2 3 Average Final Weighted Score 

(x .40) 
Vendors:      
Grand Blanc Printing Co. Inc. 92.0 67.0 66.0 75.0 30.0 

Grand River Printing & Imaging 96.0 69.0 96.0 87.0 34.8 

Mignone Communications, Inc. 
dba Phillips Brothers Printing 

73.0 75.0 77.0 75.0 30.0 

 

Weighted Average Score for Price: 40% 
 Weighted Criteria – Difference in Costs 

[1-(Proposal Price – Lowest Proposal Price) / 
lowest proposal price] x available points 

Final Weighted 
Score (x .40) 

Vendors:   
Grand Blanc Printing Co. Inc.  (1-(38,608.40–38,608.40)/38,608.40) x 100   = 100.0     40.0 
Grand River Printing & Imaging (1-(45,971.36–38,608.40)/38,608.40) x 100   =   81 32.4 
Mignone Communications, Inc. 
dba Phillips Brothers Printing 

(1-(48,380.00–38,608.40)/38,608.40) x 100   =   74.7 29.9 

 

Summary:   Proposal and Price Scores   
 Proposal Score Price Score Score 
Vendors:    
Grand Blanc Printing Co. Inc.  30.0 40.0 70.0 
Grand River Printing & Imaging 34.8 32.4 67.2 
Mignone Communications, Inc. 
dba Phillips Brothers Printing 

30.0 29.9 59.9 

 
Weighted Average Score for Interview: 20%   
Raters: 1 2 3 Average Final Weighted Score 

(x .20) 
Vendors:      
Grand Blanc Printing Co. Inc.    92.0 90.0   82.5 88.2 17.6 

Grand River Printing & Imaging 100.0 94.5 100.0 98.2 19.6 

Mignone Communications, Inc. 
dba Phillips Brothers Printing 

  42.0 46.5   47.5 45.3 9.1 

Interviews were conducted with all three (3) companies (Maximum # of points – 20) 



 
 
FINAL SCORE:  
VENDORS:  Grand Blanc Printing Co, 

Inc.  
Grand River Printing 

& Imaging 
Mignone Communications, Inc. 
dba Phillips Brothers Printing 

Proposal Score 30.0 34.8 30.0 

Price Score 40.0 32.4 29.9 

Interview Score 17.6 19.6 9.1 

FINAL SCORE 87.6 86.8 69.0 

**HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
 
G:/ Bid Award 10-11 New Format / Best Value SR8 – RFP – Troy Today Printing – WeightedRatingSummary 6.10.doc 



 
 

SELECTION PROCESS 
 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
An Evaluation Committee will review the proposals.  The City of Troy reserves the right to award this 
proposal to the company considered the most qualified based upon a combination of factors including but 
not limited to the following: 
 

A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the proposal 
C. Financial strength and capacity of the company 
D. Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
E. Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
F. Evaluation Process 

 
Phase 1:  Minimum Qualifications Evaluation 
Companies will be required to meet minimum established criteria in order to go to the second phase of 
the process.   

 
Phase 2: Evaluation of Samples  
Each Committee member will independently use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the samples of the 
“City” type newsletters and paper stock submitted as required.  Each Committee Member will calculate a 
weighted score.  The scores of the Committee Members will be averaged into one score for each 
company for this phase of the process.   

 
Phase 3:  Interview Score – (Optional)  
The City, at their option, will invite the short-listed companies to participate in an interview.  Each 
Committee Member will independently use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the Interview; each 
Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of the Committee Members will be 
averaged into one score for each company for this phase of the process.  Those being interviewed may 
be supplied with further instructions and requests prior to the interview.   

 
Phase 4:  Price 
Points for price will be calculated as follows: 

 
       FORMULA: {1 – (Proposal Price – Lowest Proposal Price) / lowest proposal price} x available points (100 base points) 

 
Phase 5:  Final Scoring and Selection  
The company with the highest final weighted score will be recommended to the Troy City Council for 
Award.   
 
 40% Sample Evaluation Score (100 point base)  
 40% Price Score            (100 point base) 
 20% Interview Score      (100 point base) - optional 

           100%       
 
Note:  The City of Troy reserves the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if 
deemed in the City’s best interest to do so. 
 
 

 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 10-19
Opening Date -- 5/24/10 TABULATION Page 1 of 4
Date Reviewed - 6/24/10 PRINTING OF TROY TODAY

sl
VENDOR NAME: Grand Blanc Printing Co Inc Grand River Printing 

CHECK # 31237969 On File 
CHECK AMOUNT $2,000.00 $2,000.00

PROPOSAL:   FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO PROVIDE ONE YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF OFFSET
    PRINTING AND DELIVERY OF TROY TODAY WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR PERIODS

QTY                  DESCRIPTION

Four (4) Copies of bid proposal Y or N Y Y

Vendor Questionnaire Completed   Y or N Y Y

Samples of Newsletters Y or N Y Y
PROPOSAL A: PRINTING OF TROY TODAY
Four Times per Year (144,000 Copies/Year)

BASE BID (glossy cover only)
36,000 Copies 76 Total Pages Issue 9,652.10$                              11,492.84$                             

per Printing x 4 / Year 38,608.40$                            45,971.36$                             

Paper Manufactured by:           Cover Sonoma Gloss Sappi 
Inside Electrastar 80 Abitibi Bowater

Additional Charges:
1) Cost per each additional 4-page spread

60 lb Gloss text #3 enamel/gloss $810.40 (+ or -) (+) $170.38 / (+) $309.80
35 lb Groundwood $306.95 (+ or -) (+) $170.38 / (+) $309.80

2) Changes once proof is produced $50.00/Hour $80.00/Hour

PROPOSAL B: PRINTING OF TROY TODAY - (Optional)

Four Times per Year (144,000 Copies/Year)
BASE BID (glossy pages cover/inside)

36,000 Copies 76 Total Pages Issue 14,142.60$                             16,791.93$                             
per Printing x 4 / Year 56,570.40$                             67,167.72$                             

Paper Manufactured by:           Cover Sonoma Gloss Sappi 
Inside Sonoma Gloss Abitibi Bowater

Additional Charges:
1) Cost per each additional 4-page spread

60 lb Gloss text #3 enamel/gloss $810.40 (+ or -) (-) $1,653.73 / (+) $722.29
40 lb.Gloss $455.20 (+ or -) (-) $1,653.73 / (+) $722.29

2) Changes once proof is produced $50.00/Hour $80.00/Hour

PROPOSAL C: FLIP PAGE NEWSLETTER FOR WEBSITE

Flip Page Newsletter for posting on City's Web $100.00/Issue $600.00/Issue

Completion Schedule:
Can meet 10 BUSINESS DAYS XX XX
Cannot meet

Contact Information
Hours of Operations M-F 8:30am - 5pm 24/7
24 Hr Phone No. (810) 694-1155 (734) 394-1400

Payment Terms 2% 10 / Net 30 2% 10 or Net 30 

Delivery 10 BUSINESS DAYS

RECOMMEND REJECTION



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 10-19
Opening Date -- 5/24/10 TABULATION Page 2 of 4
Date Reviewed - 6/24/10 PRINTING OF TROY TODAY

VENDOR NAME: Grand Blanc Printing Co Inc Grand River Printing 

Proposal A & B, 1/2 day of training

is included in file preparation and 

Exceptions: Blank electronic file transmission

Acknowledgement Signed Y or N Y Y

Addendum #1 Attached Y or N N N

DISQUALIFIED:
Inco Graphics (did not submit proposal surety check with original documents as specified)

NO BIDS: HIGHLIGHTED VENDOR DENOTES BEST VALUE
ID Enterprises 
Dearborn Lithograph, Inc. 

ATTEST:  

Ellen Hodorek

Diane Fisher

Julie Hamilton Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB
Purchasing Director



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 10-19
Opening Date -- 5/24/10 TABULATION Page 3 of 4
Date Reviewed - 6/24/10 PRINTING OF TROY TODAY

VENDOR NAME: Mignone Communications, Inc
dba Phillips Brothers Printers

CHECK # 47396
CHECK AMOUNT $2,000.00

PROPOSAL:   FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO PROVIDE ONE YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF OFFSET
    PRINTING AND DELIVERY OF TROY TODAY WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR PERIODS

QTY                  DESCRIPTION

Four (4) Copies of bid proposal Y or N Y

Vendor Questionnaire Completed   Y or N Y

Samples of Newsletters Y or N Y
PROPOSAL A: PRINTING OF TROY TODAY
Four Times per Year (144,000 Copies/Year)

BASE BID (glossy cover only)
36,000 Copies 76 Total Pages Issue 12,095.00$                              

per Printing x 4 / Year 48,380.00$                              

Paper Manufactured by:           Cover Somerset
Inside AbiBow 65 Brite

Additional Charges:
1) Cost per each additional 4-page spread

60 lb Gloss text #3 enamel/gloss $1,625.00 (+ or -)
35 lb Groundwood (-) $234.00 / (+) $405.00

2) Changes once proof is produced $90.00/Hour

PROPOSAL B: PRINTING OF TROY TODAY - (Optional) RECOMMEND REJECTION

Four Times per Year (144,000 Copies/Year)
BASE BID (glossy pages cover/inside)

36,000 Copies 76 Total Pages Issue 15,445.00$                              
per Printing x 4 / Year 61,780.00$                              

Paper Manufactured by:           Cover Somerset
Inside AbiBow Gloss 76

Additional Charges:
1) Cost per each additional 4-page spread

60 lb Gloss text #3 enamel/gloss $1,625.00 (+ or -)
40 lb.Gloss (-) $400.00 / (+) $575.00

2) Changes once proof is produced $90.00/Hour

PROPOSAL C: FLIP PAGE NEWSLETTER FOR WEBSITE

Flip Page Newsletter for posting on City's Web No Bid

Completion Schedule:
Can meet 10 BUSINESS DAYS XX
Cannot meet

Contact Information
Hours of Operations 24Hrs-3 pressroom/2 bindery shifts

24 Hr Phone No. (260) 358-0266

Payment Terms Net 30 

Delivery 10 BUSINESS DAYS



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 10-19
Opening Date -- 5/24/10 TABULATION Page 4 of 4
Date Reviewed - 6/24/10 PRINTING OF TROY TODAY

VENDOR NAME: Mignone Communications, Inc
dba Phillips Brothers Printers

Exceptions: Blank

Acknowledgement Signed Y or N Y

Addendum #1 Attached Y or N Y

G:\RFP-COT 10-19 Printing of Troy Today



 
July 8, 2010 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Mary Redden, Administrative Assistant to the City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Membership Renewals: Southeast Michigan Council of Governments 
(SEMCOG)  

 
 
 
 
As southeast Michigan’s regional planner, SEMCOG’s essential functions include: 
 
 Assisting local governments in planning for common needs and in recognizing regional 

opportunities.  
 Facilitating cooperation among local governments, educational institutions, and state and federal 

agencies for mutual benefit.  
 Advocating for changes in public policy when state or federal legislative action is necessary.  
 
The City of Troy has been a member of SEMCOG since 1968. 
 
Staff recommends authorization of the expenditure of funds for membership dues to SEMCOG in the 
amount of $9,841.00 for the period of July 15, 2010 - July 15, 2011. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MR/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2010\07.12.10 - Standard Purchasing Resolution 9 - SEMCOG Dues 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-04b





 

 
 
June 15, 2010 
                             
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
    Captain Gerard Scherlinck, Services Division 
    Lieutenant Michael Lyczkowski 
    Sergeant Russel Harden 
    Officer James Feld  
 
SUBJECT: Application for New SDM License for E-Mart LLC 
 
 
Background: 
 
 E Mart LLC requests a new SDM License to be located at 2963 East Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 

48083, Oakland County {MLCC Req. #531318}. 
   On June 14, 2010, Mr. Kwang Bin Lim, co-owner and Mr. Alphonse V. Tabaka, his attorney 

answered questions for the Liquor Advisory Committee. 
   Mr. Kwang Bin Lim and his co-owner, Ms. Sung Hee Kim are hoping to sell specialty Korean beer 

and wine to compliment their grocery sales.  The business may then add other specialty beers 
and wines such as Chinese, Thai, and Japanese.   

   Alcohol sales will be under very controlled circumstances and placed on shelves away from the 
entrance doors. 

 The Committee unanimously approved their request. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The request complies with all applicable Troy City Ordinances and Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission Rules. 
 The Police Department did not find any disqualifying factors for this request. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 This action supports Council’s Outcomes Statement III: “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy 

reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and interconnected world. 
 
 
JF/E Mart 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-05



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 14, 2010  

 Page 1 of 8 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, June 
14, 2010 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
Roll Call 
 
 PRESENT:  Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    David S. Ogg 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
     
 ABSENT:  Timothy P. Payne 
 
 ALSO PRESENT: Lieutenant Michael Lyczkowski 

Officer James Feld  
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Dane Lepola, student representative 

    Pat Gladysz 
  
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Payne 
 
Resolution #LC2010-06-015  
Moved by Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee member Payne at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of June 14, 2010 be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0  
Absent: Payne 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of March 8, 2010 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2010-06-016 
Moved by Ogg 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 14, 2010  

 Page 2 of 8 

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the March 8, 2010 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Payne 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. E Mart L.L.C. requests a New SDM License to be located at 2963 East Big 

Beaver, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County. {MLCC Req. #531318}. Asian E 
Mart is located in the Golden Gate Plaza – former site of the CVS Drug 
Store which moved to East Big Beaver and John R.  Owners Sung Hee Kim 
and Kwang B. Lim. 

 

Present to answer questions from the Committee were Kwang B. Lim and his 
attorney, Al Tabaka. 
 
Mr. Lim informed the Committee that he owned an Oriental market in Ann Arbor 
approximately ten years ago.  He then opened a Japanese restaurant in the 
Canton/Plymouth Township area.  In May of 2009, Mr. Lim and his partner, Ms. 
Kim, opened the E Mart at its present location.  The store is 13,000 square feet 
and sells Asian groceries.  He plans to train his employees in accordance with 
MLCC requirements and will display the beer and wine in the rear of the store. 
 
Officer Feld informed the Committee that he located no criminal history for the 
owners.   
 
Resolution #LC2010-06-017 
Moved by Godlewski 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
E Mart L.L.C. for a New SDM License to be located at 2963 East Big Beaver, Troy, 
MI 48083, Oakland County be APPROVED. 
 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Payne 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 14, 2010  

 Page 3 of 8 

2. Smoker’s Express, L.L.C. requests a New SDM License, to be located at 
2981 East Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County. {MLCC Req. 
#524881}.  Smoker’s Express is located in the Golden Gate Plaza – 
Northwest Corner of Dequindre and East Big Beaver – near Baskin 
Robbins.  Owner – Joseph Harris.   

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Joseph Harris. 
 
Officer Feld reviewed the details of this matter with the Committee: 
 

 Prior to the 02/08/10 Liquor Advisory Committee meeting, the 
background investigation of applicant Joseph Harris revealed four 
charges, as follows:   
 
 Count 1, Misdemeanor Domestic Violence; Count 2, 

Misdemeanor Domestic Violence; Count 3, Felony Assault 
with Dangerous Weapon; and, Count 4, Misdemeanor Assault 
or Assault & Battery.   

 
 Mr. Harris’ criminal history indicated he pled guilty to Counts 1 

and 4, and Counts 2 and 3 were dismissed.   
 

 The Eastpointe Police Department was contacted and the 
report was requested.  However, the report was not received 
prior to the meeting. 

 
 Prior to the 02/08/10 meeting, Mr. Harris was informed by 

Officer Feld that the Committee may request a statement as 
to the findings of the Troy Police Department’s investigation 
regarding his arrest and guilty pleas.  It was suggested that 
Mr. Harris address the Committee and give them details of the 
incident.  At the 02/08/10 meeting, Mr. Harris stated to the 
Committee that the charges were a result of a domestic 
incident with his wife who was also a police officer and he 
took a plea to the charges rather than have her charged with a 
crime.  Further, he stated at the meeting that he only pled 
since he did not want to risk losing his pension which he 
would lose if he was found guilty of the original charges.  

 
 At this point in the meeting of 06/14/10, Officer Feld asked Mr. Harris 

if the above statements that Officer Feld had just made were a 
correct representation of what Mr. Harris had told the Committee on 
02/08/10.  Mr. Harris responded that they were correct statements. 

 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 14, 2010  

 Page 4 of 8 

 Officer Feld then continued with his report stating that after the 
02/08/10 meeting, the Eastpointe Police Department report was 
received.  The details of the 30 page report are as follows: 

 
 The Police Investigation into the arrest indicates on 05/06/07 

Eastpointe Police Officers responded to a large house party 
getting out of control which involved at least 30 people.  A 
patron indicated the problem was caused by Mr. Harris.  The 
homeowner was found to have swelling under her left eye but 
indicated she fell during the party.  Officers left without further 
incident. 

 
 Officers arriving on the scene stated they observed an 

unknown male running through the backyard and over a 
fence.  Two subjects then approached the officer, pointed 
toward the fleeing male and stated, “that’s the guy who had 
the gun.  He was pulling it out and threatening people.”  When 
subject Joseph Harris approached, several subjects began 
pointing toward him stating, “that’s the guy who had the gun.” 

 
 Mr. Harris informed Eastpointe Police officers that he was a 

member of the Detroit Police Department and that he did not 
know anyone at the home. 

 
 Police Officers were dispatched to the residence 4½ hours 

later to take an Assault and Battery Report.  The victim was 
the homeowner’s daughter who alleged that she was 
assaulted by Mr. Harris.  The victim indicated that Harris was 
yelling at her and her mother.  Harris then grabbed the victim 
by the hair, slapped her in the face, and began to choke her.  
The victim also indicated that when officers were dispatched 
to the location the first time, it was due to Harris.  She stated 
Harris and her uncle got into a heated argument and Harris 
pulled a gun on him.  The uncle left the residence with Harris 
chasing and pointing his gun at him.  The victim states her 
mother stepped in between both parties, and Harris reacted 
by punching her in the face, causing her left eye to swell.  
Officers indicated now that the victim’s mother’s eye was now 
almost completed swollen shut.  She however indicated she 
had been involved in an argument with her daughter and she 
was slapped by her.  She refused to have her eye 
photographed by the police.   

 
 Another victim came to the Eastpointe Police Department on 

05/08/07 to file an Assault and Battery Complaint against Mr. 
Harris.  This victim indicated she was attending the party 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 14, 2010  

 Page 5 of 8 

when a fight broke out involving Harris.  She states she 
attempted to break up the fight when Harris shoved her, 
knocking her off the porch.  The victim states the fall from the 
porch caused her right ankle to break. 

 
 An investigation into the matter continued and the homeowner 

and her daughter came to the Eastpointe Police Department 
several days later and now stated a fight broke out between 
her and her sister, the second victim in the altercation who 
subsequently broke her ankle.  When her daughter got 
between the two to intercede, she (her daughter) got struck by 
her mom.  She also stated that her own daughter had given 
her the swollen black eye when she got between her mom 
and aunt.  Her daughter added that she had lied to the police 
department earlier about being assaulted. 

 
 On 07/09/07, Mr. Harris was charged by the Macomb County 

Prosecutor’s Office with one count of Misdemeanor Domestic 
Violence, one count of Misdemeanor Assault or Assault & 
Battery, and one count of Felony Assault with a Dangerous 
Weapon.   

 
 On 07/17/07, Mr. Harris appeared at the 38th District Court – 

Eastpointe and was charged with one count of Misdemeanor 
Domestic Violence which was ultimately bound over to the 
16th Circuit Court in Mount Clemens.   

 
 On 01/31/08, Mr. Harris pled guilty to Count 1, Misdemeanor 

Domestic Violence and Count 4, Misdemeanor Assault or 
Assault & Battery.  Count 2, Misdemeanor Domestic Violence 
and Count 3, Felony Assault with a Dangerous Weapon were 
both dismissed.  Mr. Harris was placed on two years’ 
Probation and he retired from the Detroit Police Department. 

 
At the 02/08/10 meeting, the Committee recommended approval of the request for 
a new SDM license for Smoker’s Express.  When Officer Feld presented the new 
information to the Committee at the 03/08/10 meeting, the Committee voted to 
rescind their recommendation for approval of the SDM license and this item was 
tabled until Officer Feld’s investigation was completed. 
 
Mr. Harris addressed the Committee and stated that the details from the 
Eastpointe Police Department report were inaccurate.  He stated that the victims 
from the assault were available this evening and would address the Committee 
stating that no assault occurred.  Mr. Harris further stated that the reason he pled 
guilty to Counts 1 and 4 was to avoid a trial that could have possibly had a 
negative effect on his retirement from the Detroit Police Department.   



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 14, 2010  

 Page 6 of 8 

  
Lieutenant Michael Lyczkowski addressed the Committee and stated that the 
Police Department cannot support a recommendation to approve this application.  
The Police Department is concerned about the conflicting information that was 
gathered during the course of Officer Feld’s investigation and about the two 
assault and battery convictions on Mr. Harris’ criminal history.  While he 
appreciates that Mr. Harris has offered to have witnesses testify that the incidents 
did not occur, the convictions on his criminal record still stand.  Lastly, the Police 
Department certainly has a concern that tobacco outlets that legally sell to persons 
18 years of age also have the desire to sell alcohol.  The Police Department has 
concerns that establishments such as these would be mixing these two products 
for sale and may present opportunities for alcohol sales to minors.   
 
Assistant City Attorney Susan Lancaster addressed the Committee and stated that 
there were four felony counts brought against Mr. Harris and it was up to the 
prosecutor to decide if they want to offer a plea.  For reasons unknown to us, the 
plea bargain was offered to Mr. Harris.  This resulted in two convictions.  She 
presumes that Mr. Harris had the opportunity for legal representation and 
explanation of his right to trial.  If the matter had proceeded to trial, the witnesses 
would have been required to testify.  
 
Mr. Ehlert asked Ms. Lancaster if she felt that the prosecutor offered the plea 
because he was not convinced of the case and witnesses.  Ms. Lancaster replied 
that the prosecutor may have offered the plea for many reasons, e.g., he might not 
have had cooperative witnesses, it might have been difficult to try this case in view 
of the large number of witnesses at the incident, or there could have been other 
reasons.  There are usually many reasons that are taken into consideration when 
offering a plea bargain and it does not mean that the prosecutor was not 
convinced of the evidence.  It could have been that Mr. Harris previously had a 
clean record and he was a police officer at the time.   
 
Ms. Lancaster stated that the City Ordinance reads that we must consider if the 
applicant has ever been convicted of a violent crime when an application for liquor 
license is received.  She believes what the Police Department is saying is that, 
based upon their extensive research that began in February, it appears that Mr. 
Harris’ account conflicts with their findings.  This Committee can either let their 
ruling stand or make a Motion to reconsider their recommendation to City Council. 
 
Mr. Hall recalled that at the 03/08/10 meeting, the Committee voted to rescind their 
previous recommendation for approval. 
 
Ms. Lancaster agreed that the recommendation had been rescinded and a new 
Motion for approval or denial would be required. 
 
Mr. Ehlert stated that this was a two-part issue:  (1) circumstances of Mr. Harris’ 
criminal history and (2) type of establishment requesting liquor license.   



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 14, 2010  

 Page 7 of 8 

 
Resolution #LC2010-06-018 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Smoker’s Express, L.L.C. for a New SDM License, to be located at 2981 East Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County be DENIED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Payne 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 14, 2010  

 Page 8 of 8 

Informational Items 
 
Officer Feld updated the Committee on the following informational items: 
 
Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, LLC 
The restaurant plans to enlarge the outdoor service area in the fall of 2010. 
 
Target Corporation 
A new SDM License was granted several years ago, but the store decided to not 
put the license into use.  They will now reapply. 
 
Class C License 
Based on the population tally from the 2000 census, the City of Troy was allotted 
54 Class C Licenses.  We currently have one available license.  Everyone is 
aware that the 2010 census was just conducted.  At that time, we are unaware if 
our population will increase or decrease.  If the population has decreased and we 
drop to the level of 53 Class C Licenses, we will lose the one unused license.  
Currently, that one available license is being “held” by City Council for future use 
by whoever may choose to build on the former K-Mart Headquarters site.  
However, the MLCC has changed their rules regarding the granting of Class C 
licenses:  (1) if the business exceeds $750,000 in renovations or structure or (2) if 
the business is in the downtown business district (Big Beaver from Rochester to 
Coolidge), then the business may apply to MLCC for a Class C license if the City 
has none available.  The Police Department advised City management that there 
was no need to hold that license for the K-Mart location.  The City Council is now 
considering giving that Class C to a caterer at the Community Center.   
 
 
Ms. Lancaster advised the Committee that amendments to the Liquor Ordinance 
are being researched by the Legal Department 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
   
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 







CI COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 


June 24, 2010 

TO: 	 John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: 	 Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Enginee~ 
Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representativ~&/ 

SUBJECT: 	 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Detention Purposes for Stone Haven 
Park Site Condominium - Mondrian Properties Stone Haven Development, LLC, 
Section 20, Sidwell #88-20-20-226-080 

Background: 

• 	 In connection with the development of the Stone Haven Park Site Condominium located on the south side 
of Wattles, west of Crooks in Section 20, the Real Estate Department has received a Warranty Deed for 
detention purposes. 

• 	 Mondrian Properties Stone Haven Development, LLC, owners of the property, have met all necessary 
public improvement requirements for this detention basin. 

Financial Considerations: 

• 	 The consideration amount on this document is $1.00. 

Legal Considerations: 

• 	 The format and content of this Warranty Deed is consistent with deeds previously accepted by City 
Council. 

Policy Considerations: 

• 	 The dedication of this Outlot "A" is required as part of the development process. (Goal I & V) 

Options: 

• 	 City Management recommends that City Council accept the attached Warranty Deed for detention 
purposes, consistent with our policy of accepting property for development and improvement purposes. 

G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CCIStone Haven Site Condo Detention WD.doc 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-06



WARRANTY DEED 

Sidwell # 88-20-20-226-080 
Resolution # 

The Grantor(s) MONDRIAN PROPERTIES STONE HAVEN DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a Michigan Limited Liability 
Company, whose address is: 50215 Schoenherr Road, Shelby Twp, , MI 48315 convey(s) and warrant(s) to the City of 
Troy, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, Grantee, whose address is 500 West Big Beaver Road" Troy, Michigan 
48084, the following described premises situated in the City of Troy:County of Oakland and State of Michigan: 

SEE EXHIBIT "A" ATTACHED HERETO AND BY REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF 

For the sum of One Dollar and no/cents ($1,00) 

subject to easements and building and use restrictions of record and further subject to 

Dated this day of #poi ,2007, 

Signed in presence of: 	 Signed by: 
(not required) 	 MONDRIAN PROPERTIES STONE HAVEN 

DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a Michigan Limited Liability 
Company 

STATE OF MICHIGAN) 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND) 

Tile foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this A_ day of ~"'I / ,2007, by Joseph Maniaci, 
Member, of MONDRIAN PROPERTIES STONE HAVEN DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a Michigan Limited Liability Company, 
on behalf of the company, 

DIANE C, JONES 

Notary Public· Michigan 


Macomb county

My Commission Expires


September 17, 2011 
 Notary Public, ~I2IiL.County, MI 
My commission expires: \ ~m!Jl"r" 14 &"11 

Acting in Oakland County, MI 

Tax Parcel #88-20-20-226-080 _,Recording Fee ________Transfer Tax ___ 

*TYPE OR PRINT NAMES UNDER SIGNA TURES 



N.W. COR. 
OUTLOT A 

196.69' R 

~ Ci2' " 
~~~E;
~~! S 
0, ~ C::. Cl 

~ :c> d ~ 
c:. g 't 
<::<t- ±

--.J 

EXl-IIBI1- "A" 

NORTH LINE OF SECTION 20 AS NE CORNER 
( DESCRIBED AND MONUMENTED SECTION 20WATTLES ROAD T.2N., R.11£ 

WIDTH VARIES . 589_.'4t41 "W(R&M) A f~~ I I 42. 00'(R) .--,=r 
-500'OO'42'W(R&M} 

N.W. COR. LOT 25·-~--v 60. 00 '(R&M) 

-SOO'OO '42 'W(R&M)589'59 'SJ"E(R&:M) 
22S.JJ'(R&:M) 

. 125.52'.(R1&J 500'00 '42 "W(R&M) 
84. 00 '(R&M)

P.O.s. 

PROPERrY SB9'S9 'SJ"E(R&:M) 

DESCRIPTION 6J.SJ'(R&M) 

W. LINE 
COR. "STONE HAVENLOT 25 

WOODS EAST SUB. ' 

£. UNE "STONE 
HAVEN WOODS SUB." 

NE. COR. OUTLOT A 

&: P.O.B. OUTLOT Ai\ 


S87'50·55"E(.~
N89'24 '29 "E(R 


196.7' M 


N. LINE OUTLOT A J 
I;;.

OUTLOT "An _;.., 
(20-20-226-080 21 !'1 

0.641 ACRES ~ i ~ 
• 1<::> 

~ If) 


SOJ'J6'24 "W(R&:M) 
60. 14'(R&M) 

UNf "STONE HAVEN 
WOODS EAST SUB." 

OUTLOT "A" APEX
PT. OcTilE N.L. 1/4 OF SEC. 20, T.2N., RllE..

E )\; C [ NEE It I N G C R 0 U r [N C . CITY OF moY, OAKLAND COUNTY, MI 

CIVIL ENOIr--iEHHNC, SUHVEYINO & LAND PLANNINC COr--iSULTANTS )013 NO: 06·142 
DATE: 

47745 VAN DYKE AVENUE PHONE, 586·739·5200 DfiAWN6V: 
SHELBY TOWNSHIP, MI 48317 FAX, 5U6·254·5314 GHECK[D flY: N.PJt 



 
 

July 2, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

 
FROM: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Leonette 

Ciepielowski – Chairman of Troy Youth Assistance 
  
Background: 
 
  Attached is a request from Leonette Ciepielowski – Chairman of Troy Youth Assistance 

seeking recognition as a nonprofit organization status for the purpose of obtaining a 
charitable gaming license for fundraising purposes. It has been City Management’s 
practice to support the approval of such requests. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 
 
Options: 
 
  City Council can approve. 
 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-07



Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Troy Youth 
Assistance, asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the 
community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City 
Management. 
 
Yes:  
No: 
 

























































 
 

June 17, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

 
FROM: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Diane 

Claeys of Troy Women’s Charitable Association 
  
Background: 
 
  Attached is a request from Diane Claeys of Troy Women’s Charitable Association seeking 

recognition as a nonprofit organization status for the purpose of obtaining a charitable 
gaming license for fundraising purposes. It has been City Management’s practice to 
support the approval of such requests. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 
 
Options: 
 
  City Council can approve. 
 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-08































































































  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   
DATE: July 7, 2010 
SUBJECT: Liberty Investments I, LLC v. City of Troy   

 
 
 
Sandy M. Scott, on behalf of Liberty Investments I, LLC of West Bloomfield, has filed a 

new lawsuit against the City.  This lawsuit was filed in the 52-4 Judicial District Court.  Upon 
information and belief, this lawsuit seeks to recover amounts that Plaintiff paid as late fees, 
which were imposed when the September- December 2009 water bills were delinquent for the 
properties at 50 W. Big Beaver Road and 100 W. Big Beaver Road.  These buildings are owned 
by Liberty Investments I, LLC.. 

 
A resolution authorizing our office to represent the City’s interests is proposed for your 

consideration.   The City must file its response on or before July 21, 2010.  
 
 
PROPOSED RESOLUTION:  
 
RESOLVED, that the City Attorney is hereby authorized and directed to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Liberty Investments I, 
LLC v. City of Troy (52-4th District Court Case No.10 CO1918 GC).  Furthermore, the 
City Attorney is authorized to pay necessary costs and expenses and to retain any 
necessary expert witnesses to adequately represent the City.  
 
  
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

pallottaba
Text Box
I-09



pallottaba
Text Box
M-01a

















ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Final March 29, 2010 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held March 29, 2010, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 8:07 AM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  Timothy Dewan 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of March 3, 2010  
 
Resolution #EC-2010-03-006 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of March 3, 2010 are APPROVED as submitted. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent:   Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments – Tuesday, May 4, 2010 Election 
 
Resolution #EC-2010-03-007 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 

 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be APPOINTED for the Tuesday, May 4, 2010 
Election, as presented by the City Clerk. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:08 AM. 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
M-01b



pallottaba
Text Box
M-01c





pallottaba
Text Box
M-01d







pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box
M-01e















pallottaba
Text Box
M-01f















 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT                                                            June 10, 2010 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Advisory Board was held on Thursday, June 10, 2010, in the 
Conference Room of the Troy Public Library. Chair Lynne Gregory called the meeting to order at 7:05 P.M.  
 
ROLL CALL  
PRESENT:   Kul Gauri 
   Lynne Gregory 
   Belinda Shelton Duggan 
   Nancy Wheeler (arrived at 7:10 pm) 
   Audre Zembrzuski  
   Cathleen Russ, Director, Troy Public Library 
 
Public Participation: Laura Cheng 
 
Resolution #LB-2010-06-01 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Duggan 
 
RESOLVED, That Paul Lee, Student Representative, be excused from the meeting.  
 
Yes: 5—Gauri, Gregory, Duggan, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

 
Resolution #LB-2010-06-02 
Moved by Duggan  
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the Library Advisory Board meeting, held on Thursday, May 13, 2010, 
be approved with one change. The time Mrs. Zembrzuski arrived at the meeting was noted.  
 
Yes: 5—Gauri, Gregory, Duggan, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2010-06-03 
Moved by Duggan  
Seconded by Gauri 
 
RESOLVED, That the agenda for the Thursday, June 10, 2010, meeting be approved as written.  
 
Yes: 5—Gauri, Gregory, Duggan, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT—None 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS—The LAB members welcomed Laura Cheng. Gregory gave a summary of 
the Friends’ recent annual meeting, and said that the speaker, Lance Werner, did a good job. Gauri asked a 
question about the legal ways by which a library can organize. Russ referred him to Werner’s presentation. 

pallottaba
Text Box
M-01g



 2 

Wheeler asked about the possibility of the State Librarian granting a waiver for library hours to go the minimum 
requirement. Wheeler also asked about the lack of flowers in the library’s flower beds. Due to budget cuts, 
flowers will not be planted this year.   
 
STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S COMMENTS—None 
 
OLD BUSINESS—None 

NEW BUSINESS 
A.  Oakland County Trustee Association Dinner—will be held on June 23, 2010   
 

 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Director’s Report—was received and filed.  
B. Suburban Library Cooperative Report—Duggan reported that the Finance Committee of the SLC 

have made sure that SLC investments are FDIC insured; Thanks to Gregory for attending the June 24 
meeting in her place; the July SLC Board meeting will be held at the recently renovated New Baltimore 
Public Library; SLC has received no new information regarding their request to the State Librarian for a 
waiver to allow Tammy Turgeon to be Cooperative Director and SHL director concurrently.  

C. Friends of the Troy Public Library Report—was received and filed  
D. Gifts—   Evening Primrose Garden Club $30      

   
E. Informational Items: http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp 
F. Visitors Comments for May—were discussed 

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Resolution #LB-2010-06-04 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Duggan 
 
RESOLVED, To adjourn the meeting.  
 
Yes: 5—Gauri, Gregory, Duggan, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:15 pm.  
 
The next regular meeting of the Library Advisory Board is Thursday, September 9, 2010, at 7 pm.  
 

 
 ___________________________________________________ 
 Lynne Gregory, Chairman 
 
 

 
Cathleen Russ, Recording Secretary 

http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp


LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 14, 2010  

 Page 1 of 8 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, June 
14, 2010 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
Roll Call 
 
 PRESENT:  Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    David S. Ogg 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
     
 ABSENT:  Timothy P. Payne 
 
 ALSO PRESENT: Lieutenant Michael Lyczkowski 

Officer James Feld  
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Dane Lepola, student representative 

    Pat Gladysz 
  
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Payne 
 
Resolution #LC2010-06-015  
Moved by Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee member Payne at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of June 14, 2010 be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0  
Absent: Payne 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of March 8, 2010 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2010-06-016 
Moved by Ogg 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
M-01h



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 14, 2010  

 Page 2 of 8 

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the March 8, 2010 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Payne 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. E Mart L.L.C. requests a New SDM License to be located at 2963 East Big 

Beaver, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County. {MLCC Req. #531318}. Asian E 
Mart is located in the Golden Gate Plaza – former site of the CVS Drug 
Store which moved to East Big Beaver and John R.  Owners Sung Hee Kim 
and Kwang B. Lim. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Kwang B. Lim and his 
attorney, Al Tabaka. 
 
Mr. Lim informed the Committee that he owned an Oriental market in Ann Arbor 
approximately ten years ago.  He then opened a Japanese restaurant in the 
Canton/Plymouth Township area.  In May of 2009, Mr. Lim and his partner, Ms. 
Kim, opened the E Mart at its present location.  The store is 13,000 square feet 
and sells Asian groceries.  He plans to train his employees in accordance with 
MLCC requirements and will display the beer and wine in the rear of the store. 
 
Officer Feld informed the Committee that he located no criminal history for the 
owners.   
 
Resolution #LC2010-06-017 
Moved by Godlewski 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
E Mart L.L.C. for a New SDM License to be located at 2963 East Big Beaver, Troy, 
MI 48083, Oakland County be APPROVED. 
 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Payne 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 14, 2010  

 Page 3 of 8 

2. Smoker’s Express, L.L.C. requests a New SDM License, to be located at 
2981 East Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County. {MLCC Req. 
#524881}.  Smoker’s Express is located in the Golden Gate Plaza – 
Northwest Corner of Dequindre and East Big Beaver – near Baskin 
Robbins.  Owner – Joseph Harris.   

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Joseph Harris. 
 
Officer Feld reviewed the details of this matter with the Committee: 
 

 Prior to the 02/08/10 Liquor Advisory Committee meeting, the 
background investigation of applicant Joseph Harris revealed four 
charges, as follows:   
 
 Count 1, Misdemeanor Domestic Violence; Count 2, 

Misdemeanor Domestic Violence; Count 3, Felony Assault 
with Dangerous Weapon; and, Count 4, Misdemeanor Assault 
or Assault & Battery.   

 
 Mr. Harris’ criminal history indicated he pled guilty to Counts 1 

and 4, and Counts 2 and 3 were dismissed.   
 

 The Eastpointe Police Department was contacted and the 
report was requested.  However, the report was not received 
prior to the meeting. 

 
 Prior to the 02/08/10 meeting, Mr. Harris was informed by 

Officer Feld that the Committee may request a statement as 
to the findings of the Troy Police Department’s investigation 
regarding his arrest and guilty pleas.  It was suggested that 
Mr. Harris address the Committee and give them details of the 
incident.  At the 02/08/10 meeting, Mr. Harris stated to the 
Committee that the charges were a result of a domestic 
incident with his wife who was also a police officer and he 
took a plea to the charges rather than have her charged with a 
crime.  Further, he stated at the meeting that he only pled 
since he did not want to risk losing his pension which he 
would lose if he was found guilty of the original charges.  

 
 At this point in the meeting of 06/14/10, Officer Feld asked Mr. Harris 

if the above statements that Officer Feld had just made were a 
correct representation of what Mr. Harris had told the Committee on 
02/08/10.  Mr. Harris responded that they were correct statements. 

 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 14, 2010  

 Page 4 of 8 

 Officer Feld then continued with his report stating that after the 
02/08/10 meeting, the Eastpointe Police Department report was 
received.  The details of the 30 page report are as follows: 

 
 The Police Investigation into the arrest indicates on 05/06/07 

Eastpointe Police Officers responded to a large house party 
getting out of control which involved at least 30 people.  A 
patron indicated the problem was caused by Mr. Harris.  The 
homeowner was found to have swelling under her left eye but 
indicated she fell during the party.  Officers left without further 
incident. 

 
 Officers arriving on the scene stated they observed an 

unknown male running through the backyard and over a 
fence.  Two subjects then approached the officer, pointed 
toward the fleeing male and stated, “that’s the guy who had 
the gun.  He was pulling it out and threatening people.”  When 
subject Joseph Harris approached, several subjects began 
pointing toward him stating, “that’s the guy who had the gun.” 

 
 Mr. Harris informed Eastpointe Police officers that he was a 

member of the Detroit Police Department and that he did not 
know anyone at the home. 

 
 Police Officers were dispatched to the residence 4½ hours 

later to take an Assault and Battery Report.  The victim was 
the homeowner’s daughter who alleged that she was 
assaulted by Mr. Harris.  The victim indicated that Harris was 
yelling at her and her mother.  Harris then grabbed the victim 
by the hair, slapped her in the face, and began to choke her.  
The victim also indicated that when officers were dispatched 
to the location the first time, it was due to Harris.  She stated 
Harris and her uncle got into a heated argument and Harris 
pulled a gun on him.  The uncle left the residence with Harris 
chasing and pointing his gun at him.  The victim states her 
mother stepped in between both parties, and Harris reacted 
by punching her in the face, causing her left eye to swell.  
Officers indicated now that the victim’s mother’s eye was now 
almost completed swollen shut.  She however indicated she 
had been involved in an argument with her daughter and she 
was slapped by her.  She refused to have her eye 
photographed by the police.   

 
 Another victim came to the Eastpointe Police Department on 

05/08/07 to file an Assault and Battery Complaint against Mr. 
Harris.  This victim indicated she was attending the party 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 14, 2010  

 Page 5 of 8 

when a fight broke out involving Harris.  She states she 
attempted to break up the fight when Harris shoved her, 
knocking her off the porch.  The victim states the fall from the 
porch caused her right ankle to break. 

 
 An investigation into the matter continued and the homeowner 

and her daughter came to the Eastpointe Police Department 
several days later and now stated a fight broke out between 
her and her sister, the second victim in the altercation who 
subsequently broke her ankle.  When her daughter got 
between the two to intercede, she (her daughter) got struck by 
her mom.  She also stated that her own daughter had given 
her the swollen black eye when she got between her mom 
and aunt.  Her daughter added that she had lied to the police 
department earlier about being assaulted. 

 
 On 07/09/07, Mr. Harris was charged by the Macomb County 

Prosecutor’s Office with one count of Misdemeanor Domestic 
Violence, one count of Misdemeanor Assault or Assault & 
Battery, and one count of Felony Assault with a Dangerous 
Weapon.   

 
 On 07/17/07, Mr. Harris appeared at the 38th District Court – 

Eastpointe and was charged with one count of Misdemeanor 
Domestic Violence which was ultimately bound over to the 
16th Circuit Court in Mount Clemens.   

 
 On 01/31/08, Mr. Harris pled guilty to Count 1, Misdemeanor 

Domestic Violence and Count 4, Misdemeanor Assault or 
Assault & Battery.  Count 2, Misdemeanor Domestic Violence 
and Count 3, Felony Assault with a Dangerous Weapon were 
both dismissed.  Mr. Harris was placed on two years’ 
Probation and he retired from the Detroit Police Department. 

 
At the 02/08/10 meeting, the Committee recommended approval of the request for 
a new SDM license for Smoker’s Express.  When Officer Feld presented the new 
information to the Committee at the 03/08/10 meeting, the Committee voted to 
rescind their recommendation for approval of the SDM license and this item was 
tabled until Officer Feld’s investigation was completed. 
 
Mr. Harris addressed the Committee and stated that the details from the 
Eastpointe Police Department report were inaccurate.  He stated that the victims 
from the assault were available this evening and would address the Committee 
stating that no assault occurred.  Mr. Harris further stated that the reason he pled 
guilty to Counts 1 and 4 was to avoid a trial that could have possibly had a 
negative effect on his retirement from the Detroit Police Department.   



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 14, 2010  

 Page 6 of 8 

  
Lieutenant Michael Lyczkowski addressed the Committee and stated that the 
Police Department cannot support a recommendation to approve this application.  
The Police Department is concerned about the conflicting information that was 
gathered during the course of Officer Feld’s investigation and about the two 
assault and battery convictions on Mr. Harris’ criminal history.  While he 
appreciates that Mr. Harris has offered to have witnesses testify that the incidents 
did not occur, the convictions on his criminal record still stand.  Lastly, the Police 
Department certainly has a concern that tobacco outlets that legally sell to persons 
18 years of age also have the desire to sell alcohol.  The Police Department has 
concerns that establishments such as these would be mixing these two products 
for sale and may present opportunities for alcohol sales to minors.   
 
Assistant City Attorney Susan Lancaster addressed the Committee and stated that 
there were four felony counts brought against Mr. Harris and it was up to the 
prosecutor to decide if they want to offer a plea.  For reasons unknown to us, the 
plea bargain was offered to Mr. Harris.  This resulted in two convictions.  She 
presumes that Mr. Harris had the opportunity for legal representation and 
explanation of his right to trial.  If the matter had proceeded to trial, the witnesses 
would have been required to testify.  
 
Mr. Ehlert asked Ms. Lancaster if she felt that the prosecutor offered the plea 
because he was not convinced of the case and witnesses.  Ms. Lancaster replied 
that the prosecutor may have offered the plea for many reasons, e.g., he might not 
have had cooperative witnesses, it might have been difficult to try this case in view 
of the large number of witnesses at the incident, or there could have been other 
reasons.  There are usually many reasons that are taken into consideration when 
offering a plea bargain and it does not mean that the prosecutor was not 
convinced of the evidence.  It could have been that Mr. Harris previously had a 
clean record and he was a police officer at the time.   
 
Ms. Lancaster stated that the City Ordinance reads that we must consider if the 
applicant has ever been convicted of a violent crime when an application for liquor 
license is received.  She believes what the Police Department is saying is that, 
based upon their extensive research that began in February, it appears that Mr. 
Harris’ account conflicts with their findings.  This Committee can either let their 
ruling stand or make a Motion to reconsider their recommendation to City Council. 
 
Mr. Hall recalled that at the 03/08/10 meeting, the Committee voted to rescind their 
previous recommendation for approval. 
 
Ms. Lancaster agreed that the recommendation had been rescinded and a new 
Motion for approval or denial would be required. 
 
Mr. Ehlert stated that this was a two-part issue:  (1) circumstances of Mr. Harris’ 
criminal history and (2) type of establishment requesting liquor license.   



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 14, 2010  

 Page 7 of 8 

 
Resolution #LC2010-06-018 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Smoker’s Express, L.L.C. for a New SDM License, to be located at 2981 East Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County be DENIED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Payne 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 14, 2010  

 Page 8 of 8 

Informational Items 
 
Officer Feld updated the Committee on the following informational items: 
 
Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, LLC 
The restaurant plans to enlarge the outdoor service area in the fall of 2010. 
 
Target Corporation 
A new SDM License was granted several years ago, but the store decided to not 
put the license into use.  They will now reapply. 
 
Class C License 
Based on the population tally from the 2000 census, the City of Troy was allotted 
54 Class C Licenses.  We currently have one available license.  Everyone is 
aware that the 2010 census was just conducted.  At that time, we are unaware if 
our population will increase or decrease.  If the population has decreased and we 
drop to the level of 53 Class C Licenses, we will lose the one unused license.  
Currently, that one available license is being “held” by City Council for future use 
by whoever may choose to build on the former K-Mart Headquarters site.  
However, the MLCC has changed their rules regarding the granting of Class C 
licenses:  (1) if the business exceeds $750,000 in renovations or structure or (2) if 
the business is in the downtown business district (Big Beaver from Rochester to 
Coolidge), then the business may apply to MLCC for a Class C license if the City 
has none available.  The Police Department advised City management that there 
was no need to hold that license for the K-Mart location.  The City Council is now 
considering giving that Class C to a caterer at the Community Center.   
 
 
Ms. Lancaster advised the Committee that amendments to the Liquor Ordinance 
are being researched by the Legal Department 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
   
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Draft June 24, 2010 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held June 24, 2010, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 8:08 AM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, Timothy Dewan 
ABSENT:  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
ALSO PRESENT: Barbara A. Pallotta, Deputy City Clerk 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of March 29, 2010  
 
Resolution #EC-2010-06-008 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby APPROVES the minutes of March 
29, 2010 as corrected. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan 
No:  None 
Absent: Bartholomew  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments – Tuesday, August 3, 2010 Primary 
Election 
 
Resolution #EC-2010-03-009 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 

 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby APPOINTS Election Inspectors for 
the Tuesday, August 3, 2010 Primary Election as presented by the City Clerk. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan 
No:  None 
Absent:  Bartholomew 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:10 AM. 
 

Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC  
Deputy City Clerk 

 

pallottaba
Text Box
M-01i



T  
  

TO: Members of the Troy City Council 
 

FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Robert F. Davisson, Assistant City Attorney  
Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney   
Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney  
Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 

DATE: July 6, 2010 
SUBJECT: 2010 Second Quarter Litigation Report 

 
 

The following is the quarterly report of pending litigation and other matters of 
interest.  Developments during the SECOND quarter of 2010 are in bold. 

 
 

A. 
 

ANATOMY OF THE CASE 

Once a lawsuit has been filed against the City or City employees, the City Attorney’s 
office prepares a memo regarding the allegations in the complaint.  At that time, our office 
requests authority from Council to represent the City and/or the employees.  Our office then 
engages in the discovery process, which generally lasts for several months, and involves 
interrogatories, requests for documents, and depositions.  After discovery, almost all cases 
are required to go through case evaluation (also called mediation).  In this process, three 
attorneys evaluate the potential damages, and render an award.  This award can be 
accepted by both parties, and will conclude the case.  However, if either party rejects a case 
evaluation award, there are potential sanctions if the trial result is not as favorable as the 
mediation award.  In many cases, a motion for summary disposition will be filed at the 
conclusion of discovery.  In all motions for summary disposition, the Plaintiff’s version of the 
facts are accepted as true, and if the Plaintiff still has failed to set forth a viable claim against 
the City, then dismissal will be granted.  It generally takes at least a year before a case will 
be presented to a jury.  It also takes approximately two years before a case will be finalized 
in the Michigan Court of Appeals and/or the Michigan Supreme Court.   

 
B. 

 
ZONING CASES 

These are cases where the property owner has sued for a use other than that for which 
the land is currently zoned and/or the City is suing a property owner to require 
compliance with the existing zoning provisions.  
 

No pending cases during this quarter.  

   
C.  

 
EMINENT DOMAIN CASES 

These are cases in which the City wishes to acquire property for a public 
improvement and the property owner wishes to contest either the necessity or the 

pallottaba
Text Box
M-02a



 2 

compensation offered. In cases where only the compensation is challenged, the City 
obtains possession of the property almost immediately, which allows for major projects 
to be completed.    

 

 
ROCHESTER ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

1. City of Troy v RCU Independence Inc and Sentry Inc. 

 

The City filed this 
condemnation action to acquire property located at 3688 Rochester Road in 
connection with the Rochester Road Improvement Project.  The case was 
assigned to Judge Bowman of the Oakland County Circuit Court.  Defendants 
filed a Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction.  In this Motion, 
they argued that the City did not engage in sufficient negotiations after making 
the written good faith offer for the property.  The City argued that it was in 
compliance with all the statutory requirements.  After oral argument, the Court 
dismissed the case, relying on the alleged lack of jurisdiction.  The City filed an 
Appeal with the Michigan Court of Appeals, which is pending.  (first case)  In the 
meantime, the City filed a second condemnation complaint after additional 
discussions with the attorney representing the property owner.  On July 29, 2009, 
the Court entered an Order for Payment of Estimated Compensation and 
Surrender of Possession.  This occurred only after the City agreed to assume the 
expenses for moving the car wash on the property.  The second case is now in 
the discovery phase of the litigation on the issue of just compensation. The City 
is still pursuing the appeal of the dismissal of the initial case to resolve the 
different statutory interpretations of the parties, since this issue is likely to arise in 
future condemnation matters.  Discovery Continues.  Case Evaluation has been 
scheduled for February 3, 2010.  The Court re-scheduled case evaluation in the 
second case for May 5, 2010.  In addition, the Defendant filed a Motion seeking a 
preliminary payment to cover its costs for moving the car wash buildings and 
equipment.  Pursuant to a negotiated order entered on January 27, 2010, the 
City has placed an estimated amount in an escrow account, and will use this 
account to reimburse Defendant for its necessary relocation costs.  As to the first 
case in the Michigan Court of Appeals, all appellate briefs have been timely filed, 
and the parties are waiting for the Court to schedule oral argument.  The parties 
are waiting for the Michigan Court of Appeals to set a date for oral 
argument in the first case.  A consent judgment, entered on June 23, 2010, 
has concluded the second case.     

2. City of Troy v Sentry Inc. and RCU Independence.  The City filed this 
condemnation action to acquire property located at 3785 Rochester Road in 
connection with the Rochester Road Improvement Project.  The case was 
assigned to Judge Grant of the Oakland County Circuit Court.  Defendants filed a 
Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction on the basis of alleged 
insufficient negotiations after the written good faith offer was made. The City 
argued it was in compliance with all statutory requirements.  After oral argument, 
the Court dismissed the case, relying on the alleged lack of jurisdiction.  The City 
filed a Motion for Reconsideration, which is still pending with the Court.  In the 



 3 

meantime, the City filed a second condemnation complaint after additional 
discussions with the attorney representing the property owner.  The parties 
stipulated to an Order for Payment of Estimated Compensation and Surrender of 
Possession that was entered on July 29, 2009, after the City agreed to assume 
expenses for moving the car wash on the property.  The only issue remaining is 
the final amount of just compensation.  Discovery continues as it relates to that 
issue.  The Defendant filed a Motion seeking a preliminary payment to cover its 
costs for moving the car wash buildings and equipment.  Pursuant to a 
negotiated order entered on January 27, 2010, the City has placed an estimated 
amount in an escrow account, and will use this account to reimburse Defendant 
for its necessary relocation costs.  Discovery is continuing.  Trial is currently 
scheduled for December 6, 2010.   
 

3. City of Troy v Midwest Master Investment

 

. The City filed this condemnation 
action in connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This 
property is at 3525-3529 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to 
the property that was required for the road construction project.  The case will 
continue to allow a jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired 
by the City.  The case is now in the discovery phase.  Discovery is continuing.  
Case Evaluation was held on March 3, 2010.  As a result of the case evaluation 
process, the parties are working on a proposed consent judgment to finalize this 
case.  A consent judgment has been entered and the case is now 
concluded. 

4. City of Troy v Troywood Shops

 

.  The City filed this condemnation action in 
connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This property is at 
3718-3736 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property 
that was required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to 
allow a jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City.  
The case is now in the discovery phase.  Discovery is continuing.  Case 
evaluation was held on March 3, 2010, and as a result of the case evaluation 
process, the parties are negotiating a proposed consent judgment to finalize this 
case.  A consent judgment has been entered and the case is now 
concluded. 

5. City of Troy v Lukich Realty

 

.  The City of Troy filed this condemnation action in 
connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This property is at 
3900 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that 
was required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a 
jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City.  The 
case is now in the discovery phase.  Discovery is continuing.  Case Evaluation is 
scheduled for April 7, 2010.  As a result of case evaluation, the parties 
entered into a consent judgment.  The case is now concluded. 

6. City of Troy v Picano Land Limited Partnership (Case No 09-097975).  The City 
filed this condemnation action in connection with the Rochester Road 



 4 

Improvement project.  This property is at 3775 Rochester Road, and the City has 
now acquired title to the property that was required for the road construction 
project.  The case will continue to allow a jury to determine the value of the 
property that was acquired by the City. The case is now in the discovery phase.  
Discovery is continuing.  Case evaluation is scheduled for January 6, 2010.  As a 
result of the case evaluation process, a consent judgment was entered on 
February 18, 2010 between the property owner and the City.  Michigan Bell, n/k/a 
SBC, although not actively participating in this lawsuit, subsequently attempted to 
leverage the City into paying additional sums by threatening to file a motion to set 
aside this consent judgment.     Michigan Bell filed a motion to preserve its 
easement interest, which was stipulated to by all parties.  The Court has 
entered an order preserving an easement for Michigan Bell, which provides 
for relocation costs in the event that Michigan Bell is required to relocate 
its facilities.  The case is now concluded. 

 
7. City of Troy v Picano Land Limited Partnership

 

 (Case No 09-097982).  The City 
filed this condemnation action in connection with the Rochester Road 
Improvement project.  This property is also with the address of 3775 Rochester 
Road (one Picano’s parcel is vacant without its own address).  The City has now 
acquired title to the property that was required for the road construction project.  
The case will continue to allow a jury to determine the value of the property that 
was acquired by the City. The case is now in the discovery phase.  Discovery is 
continuing.  Case evaluation is scheduled for January 6, 2010.  The case 
evaluation award was not mutually accepted, and therefore the case continued 
on the trial schedule.  In the interim, the Court ordered the parties into mandatory 
facilitation, which was similarly unsuccessful in resolving the issue of total just 
compensation.  The case is now scheduled for jury trial on May 3, 2010.  The 
case proceeded to jury trial.  A judgment was entered based on the jury 
verdict.  The case is now concluded. 

8. City of Troy v JMT Properties. 

 

 The City filed this condemnation action in 
connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This property is at 
3381 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that 
was required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a 
jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City. The 
case is now in the discovery phase.  A consent judgment has been approved, but 
it has not been entered.  Based on some new developments, the parties are now 
working on a revised consent judgment.  A revised consent judgment was 
entered and the case is now concluded. 

9. City of Troy v P/G Equities.  The City filed this condemnation action in connection 
with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This property is at 3921 
Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that was 
required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a jury 
to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City. The case is 
now in the discovery phase.  Discovery is continuing.  As a result of case 



 5 

evaluation, held on March 3, 2010, the parties are negotiating a proposed 
consent judgment.  A consent judgment was entered and the case is now 
concluded. 
 

10. City of Troy v William H. Price

 

 (Price Funeral Home).  The City filed this 
condemnation action in connection with the Rochester Road Improvement 
project.  This property is at 3725 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired 
title to the property that was required for the road construction project.  The case 
will continue to allow a jury to determine the value of the property that was 
acquired by the City. The case is now in the discovery phase.  Discovery is 
continuing.  Case evaluation is scheduled for May 5, 2010. The Court re-
scheduled case evaluation for July 7, 2010.  

11. City of Troy v William H. Price (Property Adjoining Funeral Home).  

 

The City filed 
this condemnation action in connection with the Rochester Road Improvement 
project.  This property is addressed at 3725 Rochester Road, and the City has 
now acquired title to the property that was required for the road construction 
project.  The case will continue to allow a jury to determine the value of the 
property that was acquired by the City. The case is now in the discovery phase. 
Discovery is continuing. Case evaluation is scheduled for May 5, 2010.  The 
Court re-scheduled case evaluation for July 7, 2010.  

12. City of Troy v. Old Troy, LLC.

 

.  The City filed this condemnation action in 
connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This property is at 
3278 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that 
was required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a 
jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City. The 
case is now in the discovery phase.  Case evaluation is set for March 2010. The 
jury trial is scheduled for May 20, 2010. As a result of the case evaluation 
process, the parties are negotiating a proposed consent judgment.  A Consent 
Judgment was entered on April 23, 2010.  This case is now closed.       

13. City of Troy v. Ida Rudack Trust, et. al..

 

  The City filed this condemnation action 
in connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This property is at 
3615 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that 
was required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a 
jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City. The 
case is now in the discovery phase. Case evaluation is March 3, 2010.  The jury 
trial is scheduled for May 17, 2010. The case evaluation was postponed until 
May 5, 2010.  Jury trial is scheduled for August 16, 2010.  Both parties rejected 
the case evaluation award.  The Defendant subsequently filed a Motion for 
Summary Disposition, arguing that the City has actually effected a total 
take, instead of a partial take, based on the setback ordinances.  The City 
has filed its response to this motion, and will appear at the oral argument, 
which is scheduled for July 14, 2010.   



 6 

14. City of Troy v. Diajeff, LLC..

 

   The City filed this condemnation action in 
connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This property is at 
3754 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that 
was required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a 
jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City. The 
case is now in the discovery phase.  Case evaluation is March 3, 2010. The jury 
trial is scheduled for June 21, 2010. As a result of the case evaluation process, 
the parties are negotiating a proposed consent judgment.  A Consent Judgment 
was entered on April 20, 2010.  This case is now closed.   

15.      City of Troy v BG’s L.L.C.

 

  After obtaining a possession and use agreement, the 
City was unable to voluntarily purchase this property for the Rochester Road 
Improvement Project, and therefore a condemnation lawsuit was filed on January 
19, 2010.  The property is at 3545 Rochester Road, and the City has already 
acquired title to the subject property.  The only remaining issue is the amount of 
just compensation to be paid.  The case is now in the discovery phase.  Case 
evaluation is scheduled for July 7, 2010.  Trial is scheduled for August 30, 
2012. 

16.      City of Troy v Safeway Acquisition Co.

 

  After obtaining a possession and use 
agreement, the City was unable to voluntarily purchase the necessary property 
required for the Rochester Road Improvement Project from the gas station at 
3990 Rochester Road.  The City therefore filed this condemnation action on 
January 19, 2010.  The City has acquired title to the subject property and the 
only remaining issue is the amount of just compensation to be paid.  The case is 
now in the discovery phase.  Discovery is continuing.  Case evaluation is 
scheduled for September 2010.  Trial is scheduled for January 4, 2011. 

 
WATTLES ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

1. City of Troy v Firas and Reeta Ibrahim.  

 

The City filed this condemnation action in 
connection with the Wattles Road Improvement project.  This property is at 1131 
E. Wattles Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that was 
required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a jury 
to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City. The case is 
now in the discovery phase.  Discovery is continuing.  Case evaluation is 
scheduled for April 7, 2010.  The parties negotiated a settlement and a 
consent judgment was entered.  The case is now concluded. 

 
D. 

 
CIVIL RIGHTS CASES 

 These are cases that are generally filed in the federal courts, under 42 U.S.C. 
Section 1983.  In these cases, the Plaintiffs argue that the City and/or police officers of the 
City of Troy somehow violated their civil rights.   

 



 7 

1. Gerald Molnar v. Janice Pokley, the City of Troy et al

 

.-  Plaintiff filed this lawsuit 
against the City and Troy Detective Janice Pokley, after a jury found him not 
guilty of the charge of Criminal Sexual Conduct in the Second Degree. Plaintiff 
alleges that the City and Detective Pokley violated his constitutional rights to be 
from an unreasonable seizure, due process, and equal protection.  These 
constitutional violations allegedly occurred during the criminal sexual conduct 
investigation of Plaintiff.   Plaintiff also claims that the Troy defendants conspired 
with other named defendants to violate his constitutional rights, and intentionally 
inflicted emotional distress on Plaintiff.  Plaintiff is requesting an unspecified 
amount of compensatory, exemplar, and punitive damages. On February 27, 
2007, Troy filed a motion to dismiss, or in the alternative summary judgment.  
Plaintiff filed his response to our motion to dismiss on May 21, 2007.  On August 
28, 2008, the Court listened to the oral arguments on our motion to dismiss. On 
September 4, 2008, the Court issued an opinion and order granting our motion to 
dismiss Detective Pokely and the City.  On September 10, 2008, Plaintiff filed a 
notice of appeal, and is seeking a reversal of this dismissal with the United 
States Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit (includes Michigan, Tennessee, 
Kentucky, and Ohio).  After hosting a telephonic pre-trial conference, the Court 
will provide the briefing schedule for the parties. Plaintiff filed his appellate brief 
on June 18, 2009. Troy’s response brief is due July 17th.  The City’s brief was 
timely filed.  Oral argument was held December 3, 2009. On December 29, 2009 
the Court of Appeals issued an unpublished opinion affirming the District Court’s 
dismissal of Plaintiff’s complaint.  Plaintiff subsequently filed an application for 
hearing en banc with the Sixth Circuit Court on January 12, 2010, seeking to 
overturn the favorable Court of Appeals decision.  The City filed its brief in 
response to this application.  On March 17, 2010, without oral argument, the 
Sixth Circuit issued an order that denied Plaintiff’s application.  Although there is 
no appeal of right to the United States Supreme Court, the Plaintiff could file a 
writ of certiorari, asking the Supreme Court to overturn the dismissals of this 
case.  This action must be taken on or before June 15, 2010.  On June 15, 2010, 
Plaintiff filed a writ of certiorari with the Supreme Court.      

2. Hal Stickney v David Nordstrom, City of Troy et al. Plaintiff, who is proceeding 
without an attorney, has filed this action against the City of Troy and retired Troy 
Police Officer David Nordstrom, retired Sgt. Barry Whiteside and Captain Keith 
Frye, as well as several Oakland County defendants and former business 
associates.  This case stems from the investigation and prosecution of Plaintiff 
on an aggravated stalking charge, where Plaintiff was ultimately acquitted.  
Plaintiff alleges that the City and the Troy police officers violated his 
constitutional rights to be free from unreasonable seizure and a violation of his 
constitutional due process rights.  Plaintiff also claims that the Troy defendants 
conspired with the other named defendants to violate his constitutional rights, 
and intentionally inflicted emotional distress on Plaintiff. Plaintiff is requesting 
damages in the amount of seven million dollars.  As the initial responsive 
pleading, the City filed a motion for dismissal.  The Court scheduled the 
hearing on this motion for August 5, 2010.  In the interim, Plaintiff filed a 



 8 

motion requesting a 120 day stay of proceedings. In his motion, he claims 
that a stay is needed to give him time to retain an attorney.  

 
E. 

 
PERSONAL INJURY AND DAMAGE CASES 

These are cases in which the Plaintiff claims that the City or City employees were 
negligent in some manner that caused injuries and/or property damage.  The City 
enjoys governmental immunity from ordinary negligence, unless the case falls within 
one of four exceptions to governmental immunity:  a) defective highway exception, 
which includes sidewalks and road way claims; b) public building exception, which 
imposes liability only when injuries are caused by a defect in a public building; c) motor 
vehicle exception, which imposes liability when an employee is negligent when 
operating their vehicle; d) proprietary exception, where liability is imposed when an 
activity is conducted primarily to create a profit, and the activity somehow causes injury 
or damage to another; e)  trespass nuisance exception, which imposes liability for the 
flooding cases.     

 
1. Mary Ann Hennig v. City of Troy- Plaintiff has filed this lawsuit, claiming that the 

City is liable for injuries she sustained after her vehicle was struck by a Troy 
Police Officer as he was pursuing a suspected drug dealer.  Her complaint 
alleges serious impairment of a bodily function, in that she has neurological 
damages.  The City has filed an answer to the complaint, and the parties are now 
conducting discovery.  The parties have exchanged witness list, expert witness 
lists and exhibit lists. The parties are continuing to do discovery including 
updating medical records and deposing witnesses.  The Plaintiff has been 
examined by an orthopedic physician chosen by the City and is scheduled to be 
examined during the week of October 22, 2008 by a clinical neuropsychologist 
chosen by the City.  Discovery is continuing.  On December 12, 2007, the Court 
ordered facilitation of the case, which is scheduled for March 4, 2008.  If the 
parties are unable to settle the case with facilitation, then a jury trial is scheduled 
to start on April 22, 2008.  The Court ordered facilitation was conducted on 
March 28, 2008.  In the interim, the City filed a Motion for Summary Disposition, 
alleging that Plaintiff cannot establish negligence, or that Ms. Hennig’s injuries 
satisfy the no-fault minimum threshold standard, which is that the injuries 
constitute a “serious impairment of a bodily function.”  Troy’s Motion will be heard 
on April 23, 2008. The jury trial date has been adjourned to July 29, 2008.   Judge 
Mester denied our motion for summary disposition, finding an issue of fact that 
would need to be resolved at trial.   The City filed a motion for reconsideration of 
this decision, which was denied by Judge Mester in a written opinion.  As allowed 
under the governmental immunity state statute, the circuit court case has now 
been stayed so that the City can pursue an appeal with the Michigan Court of 
Appeals prior to the conclusion of a trial.  The City timely filed its appeal on June 
3, 2008. The City’s Brief is due on or before October 8, 2008. The City timely 
filed its appellate brief, as well as a reply to Plaintiff/ Appellee’s brief.  Oral 
argument in the Court of Appeals is scheduled for July 7, 2009.  The Court of 
Appeals has remanded the case for trial.  The Circuit Court has re-opened 



 9 

discovery, and has set a jury trial date of June 1, 2010.  The Court has entered 
an order dismissing the lawsuit. The case is now closed. 
 

2. Nancy Huntley, Legal Guardian of Carolyn Huntley, a Protected Person v. City of 
Troy

 

- This lawsuit was filed in the Oakland County Circuit Court.  Plaintiff alleges 
that on June 29, 2007, Carolyn Huntley was walking on the sidewalk located in 
front of 511 Cardinal, Troy, Michigan when she tripped and fell on an elevated 
concrete slab. Plaintiff alleges that Troy was negligent in failing to maintain the 
sidewalk; to provide adequate inspections; to give notice of a dangerous 
condition; and to use reasonable care in the design of the sidewalk.  The City 
filed an Answer and Affirmative Defenses and also filed a Motion for Summary 
Disposition, arguing that Plaintiff failed to provide notice, as required by MCL 
691.1404.  Plaintiff’s response to this motion is due on October 7, 2009, and 
Judge Rudy Nichols has scheduled oral argument for October 28, 2009.  The 
parties are waiting on the Court’s decision on the motion.  On March 9, 2010, the 
Court issued its written opinion, granting in part and denying in part our motion 
for summary disposition.  As a result, the public nuisance and nuisance per se 
claims are now dismissed.  The parties are conducting discovery on the alleged 
defective highway claim.   Jury trial is scheduled for December 6, 2010.    

3. Raquel Chidiac v Edwin Julian and City of Troy

 

 – This lawsuit was filed by 
Plaintiff Raquel Chidiac, who suffered injuries after colliding with a Troy Police 
Officer at Big Beaver and John R roads. Plaintiff alleges that on October 3, 2009 
at around 7:00 p.m. she was traveling eastbound on Big Beaver Road when her 
vehicle was struck by a Troy Police vehicle. She is alleging the City is liable 
pursuant to the motor vehicle exception to governmental immunity, and also 
under the Michigan Owner Liability Act, MCL 257.401. She is alleging that she 
suffered serious and permanent injuries, and is seeking damages in excess of 
$25,000.  We filed an answer on December 8, 2009. The City filed a motion for 
summary disposition requesting dismissal of the individual Troy police officer.  
The Court has scheduled the hearing on this motion for April 28, 2010.  On April 
29, 2010, Circuit Court Judge Goldsmith entered an opinion and order 
denying the City’s motion for summary disposition without prejudice, 
which would allow us to re-file the motion at the close of discovery. The 
case is now in the discovery phase.     

F. 
 

MISCELLANEOUS CASES 

1. Kocenda v City of Troy- David Kocenda has filed a complaint against the City of Troy, 
Chief Craft, Captain Murphy, Captain Mott, Lieutenant Hay, Lieutenant Pappas, and 
Lieutenant Rossman, alleging Defamation and Intentional Infliction of Emotional 
Distress.  Plaintiff, a Troy police officer, claims he was offered a job as a police officer 
with the City of Palm Beach Gardens, Florida, but the offer was retracted because of 
false information provided by Troy and its officers.  He contends remarks made by 
Troy employees constitute both Defamation and Intentional Infliction of Emotional 
Distress.  He is seeking damages in excess of $25,000.   The lawsuit was filed in 



 10 

Oakland County Circuit Court and assigned to Judge Fred Mester.  Troy’s responsive 
pleading is due December 18, 2007.  The City has filed a Motion for Summary 
Disposition, seeking a dismissal of the lawsuit against the City and its officers.  The 
Court will set the date for the hearing on our motion.  The Court granted the Motion 
for Summary Disposition and dismissed the case.  Several months after the 
dismissal of his lawsuit, Kocenda filed an untimely Motion for Reconsideration.  The 
Motion for Reconsideration was denied.  Kocenda has now filed a Claim of Appeal 
with the Michigan Court of Appeals, seeking a reversal of the dismissal and/or the 
denial of the Motion for Reconsideration.  The City filed a Motion to Dismiss the 
Claim of Appeal for lack of jurisdiction on the basis it was untimely. The Court of 
Appeals granted the motion and dismissed the appeal on August 27, 2008.  We then 
filed a motion seeking costs from Kocenda and/or his attorney.  This motion was 
pending as of the end of the quarter.  The Court granted our motion for costs, and 
$100.00 was paid to the City.   Kocenda subsequently filed a Motion for Relief from 
Order in Oakland County Circuit.  In that motion, he alleged there was newly 
discovered evidence and that the original Order Granting Summary Disposition 
should be set aside.  The motion was denied. Kocenda filed a delayed application for 
leave to appeal with the Michigan Court of Appeals.  On May 21, 2009, the Court of 
Appeals granted the delayed application for leave to appeal but limited Kocenda’s 
appeal to whether or not Judge Mester abused his discretion in denying Kocenda’s 
motion to amend his complaint to allege a claim for tortious interference with a 
business relationship.  Plaintiff’s appellate brief covered issues that went beyond the 
Court’s earlier limitations.  The City filed a motion to strike the matters that exceeded 
the Court’s narrow ruling.  This motion was denied by the Court, but the City was 
expressly authorized to address these additional issues in its responsive brief, which 
was timely filed.  The parties are now waiting for the Court to schedule oral argument.  
The Michigan Court of Appeals scheduled oral argument for May 4, 2010.  The 
Court of Appeals ruled in favor of the City and affirmed the circuit court 
decision.  Kocenda has filed an Application for Leave to Appeal to the 
Michigan Supreme Court.  The City’s response is due by July 13, 2010. 

2. Frank Lawrence v City of Troy – Mr. Lawrence is the brother of Thomas Lawrence 
who was issued two civil infraction traffic citations on October 4, 2008 for “no proof of 
insurance” and “failure to change address on driver’s license”.  Frank Lawrence filed 
a FOIA request with Troy Police Department asking for a number of items, including 
but not limited to: all video recordings, radio transmissions, records and the officer’s 
disciplinary file (if any), and the police policy on  issuing “quota’ tickets.  Under 
Michigan Court Rule 2.303 (A)(3) discovery is not permitted in civil infraction actions.  
Additionally, FOIA does not require the release of information which would constitute 
an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy or law enforcement information such a, 
but not limited to, disciplinary files of police officers, personal telephone numbers, and 
operational manuals.  Mr. Lawrence’s FOIA was denied for these reasons.  Instead 
of filing an appeal of the FOIA denial to the City Manager, Mr. Lawrence appealed 
the denial to the Oakland County Circuit Court. Mr. Lawrence filed a Motion for 
Summary Disposition and the City responded. Without requiring oral arguments, 
Judge Steven Andrews denied Mr. Lawrence’s Motion for Summary Disposition in an 
Opinion and Order dated December 1, 2008. Judge Andrews also granted Summary 



 11 

Disposition in the City’s favor.  Mr. Lawrence filed a Claim of Appeal with the 
Michigan Court of Appeals on December 22, 2008.  The Court of Appeals in an 
unpublished opinion partially reversed the trial court, and remanded the matter for 
further proceedings including a determination by the trial court of whether or not 
specific documents are exempt from disclosure.  The parties are waiting for the Court 
to schedule a court date.  The Court held an evidentiary hearing on June 17, 
2010, and has indicated that a written opinion will be issued.         

3. Andrew Zurowski v City of Troy.  

4. 

In this claim and delivery action, the Plaintiff is 
seeking a court order for the return of two rifles that were confiscated when the Troy 
police were dispatched to his home.  Since there was a great concern that Mr. 
Zurowski was a danger to himself and others, the two rifles were confiscated. The 
case was filed in the 52-4 District Court and assigned to Judge Drury.  The case was 
filed on December 7, 2009.  The City has answered the complaint and is awaiting a 
court date for a pretrial or trial.  The Court scheduled a pretrial for April 13, 2010.  The 
case is scheduled for trial on July 27, 2010. 

Sean Steven Seyler v. City of Troy and Troy Police Department.

5. 

  Mr. Seyler filed this 
Freedom of Information Act case against the City, seeking the police report and his 
lab test results, which were also simultaneously requested as criminal discovery 
within 48 hours of Mr. Seyler’s drunk driving arrest.  The City has filed a Motion for 
Summary Disposition, arguing that the documents requested were either already 
provided as criminal discovery or are otherwise exempt from disclosure.  The Court 
will issue a scheduling order setting the date for oral argument.   The Court 
entertained oral arguments on March 24, 2010, and granted our motion for dismissal.  
The Plaintiff filed an application for leave to appeal with the Michigan Court of 
Appeals on April 14, 2010.        

William and Elaine Middlekauff v. City of Troy. 

6. 

  The Middlekauffs filed this lawsuit in 
the 52-4 District Court, alleging that a City employee told them that the City would 
reimburse them to have a private contractor remove City trees from their property at 
2449 Oak Ridge Drive in Troy, which fell in the intense wind storm of June 8, 2008.  
The Middlekauffs demand $6,103, claiming breach of contract, promissory estoppel 
(reliance on a promise) and fraud and misrepresentation.  The City filed a motion for 
summary disposition, which was heard on March 4, 2010.  The Court held the matter 
in abeyance for 60 days, and allowed Plaintiffs to obtain discovery to counter our 
motion for summary disposition.  On May 20, 2010, Judge Bolle granted our 
motion in part and denied the motion in part.  The claim that was not 
dismissed, promissory estoppel, will be decided by a jury in a trial that will be 
scheduled by the Court.           

Liberty Investments v. City of Troy-   This case was filed against the City to 
recover penalties incurred when the property owner did not timely pay the 
water bill.  In this case, Plaintiff, through its employee, argues that the late 
penalty was improperly assessed.  The Plaintiff further challenges that Troy’s 
ordinance fails to define what constitutes payment and receipt, and also fails 



 12 

to provide a method to challenge an unwarranted penalty assessment. The 
case was filed in the 52-4 Judicial District Court on June 18, 2010.   

G.  

These are cases involving an appeal from a decision of the 52-4 District 
Court in an ordinance prosecution case. 

CRIMINAL APPEALS 

 
1. City of Troy v Erik Ziegler.  

 

The Defendant in this case is charged with Operating 
While Intoxicated.  He filed a filed a Motion to Suppress and Dismiss, alleging the 
stop of his motor vehicle was improper and was in violation of the Fourth 
Amendment.  An evidentiary hearing was held on August 27, 2009.  At the 
conclusion of the hearing, 52-4 District Court Judge Martone denied Defendant’s 
motion.  The Defendant has filed an application for leave to appeal the decision to 
the Oakland County Circuit Court.  The appeal was assigned to Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge Nanci J. Grant.  A hearing on the application for leave to 
appeal is scheduled for October 14, 2009.  The Defendant’s application for leave 
to appeal was granted and the parties were directed to file briefs.  Oral argument 
on the appeal was held on December 9, 2009.  We are awaiting a decision from 
the Court.  On February 25, 2010, Judge Grant issued her Order and Opinion 
affirming the trial court’s decision to deny Defendant’s Motion to Suppress and 
Dismiss.  The Defendant filed an Application for Leave to Appeal with the 
Michigan Court of Appeals.  The City’s response is due in April.  The City timely 
filed its response to the application for leave to appeal.  On April 26, 2010, 
the Court of Appeals ruled in favor of the City, and denied the application 
for leave to appeal.  The underlying drunk driving criminal case will now 
proceed at the 52-4 Judicial District Court.   

2. City of Troy v Jose Gonzalez

 

. The Defendant in this case is charged with 
Operating While Intoxicated. He filed a Motion to Suppress and Dismiss, 
alleging that the Troy Police Officers involved in his case coerced him into 
taking the data master breath test. A hearing was held on April 13, 2010 
before 52-4 District Court Judge Bolle. Judge Bolle denied Defendant’s 
motion.  The Defendant then filed an application for leave to appeal the 
decision to the Oakland County Circuit Court, which was assigned to 
Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Martha Anderson. Judge Anderson 
denied Defendant’s application for leave to appeal on June 8, 2010.  The 
case will now return to the 52-4 District Court criminal docket.  

  
ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDINGS 

1. In the matter of the Petitions on National Pollution Discharge Elimination 
Systems (NPDES Phase II General Permits).  The City has joined several other 
municipalities in challenging several of the mandates in the NPDES Phase II 
General Permit, which was recently issued by the MDEQ.  The new NPDES 
permit requires some storm water management techniques that exceed the 
federal mandates, and/or are not justified, based on the high cost of the 



 13 

mandate, in relation to the nominal environmental benefits. A status conference 
for the parties is set for October 1, 2008.  The municipalities are currently 
exploring the coordination of efforts with other parties.  Community 
representatives are meeting with representatives from the MDEQ to discuss 
possible resolutions of this matter without the necessity of a full blown 
administrative hearing.   The parties are continuing to negotiate with the MDEQ.  
The City of Riverview filed a class action complaint in the Ingham County Circuit 
Court, challenging the permit requirements as unfunded mandates.  The 
petitioners to the NPDES permit administrative proceeding are named as 
participants in the proposed class action lawsuit.  As a result, the class action 
determination may have an impact on the administrative proceeding. The motion 
for class certification is scheduled for October 15, 2009.  Class certification was 
granted.  Hearings regarding the procedure for the new class action are set for 
January 2010.   The Court granted class action status, and the administrative 
proceedings are now being delayed.   

 
If you have any questions concerning these cases, please let us know.   



CITY COUNCIL EXPENSE REPORT
Month of July, 2010

Council Person Expense  Date Purpose Amount Totals

Beltramini, Robin 7/9/2010 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 123.72$           
July, August, Sept. 2010

123.72$            
Maureen McGinnis 7/9/2010 Quarterly DSL Line 137.85$           

July, August, Sept. 2010

137.85$            
Wade Fleming 7/9/2010 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 215.70$           

July, August, Sept. 2010

215.70$            
Howrylak, Martin F. -$                 

0.00
Kerwin, Mary 7/9/2010 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 212.85$           

July, August, Sept. 2010

212.85$            
Schilling, Louise E. 7/9/2010 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 117.90$           

July, August, Sept. 2010

117.90$            
Dane Slater -$                 

-$                  

Total for Month 808.02$            

NOTE: This report is presented in compliance with Rules of Procedure for the City Council,
            Item 18. Miscellaneous Expenses

Date Prepared: 7/1/2010
Final Preparation By: J. Nash

S://Finance/Template - City Council monthly expense report.xls

pallottaba
Text Box
M-02b



pallottaba
Text Box
M-03a



pallottaba
Text Box
M-03b

pallottaba
Text Box



pallottaba
Text Box
M-05



 

 

 
 
DATE: July 6, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Troy/Birmingham Transit Center - Joint Troy Planning Commission and Birmingham 

Planning Board Meeting Scheduled 
 
 
There is a meeting scheduled for the Joint Troy Planning Commission and Birmingham Planning 
Board on Wednesday, July 14, 2010 at 7:00 pm.  The meeting will be held at the Birmingham DPS 
Building, 851 S. Eton.   
 
The intent of the meeting is to update both boards on the status of the project and present the 
revised Preliminary Site Plan for the Troy/Birmingham Transit Center for consideration.  The 
Planning Commission will review the Preliminary Site Plan and make a recommendation to City 
Council, which has approval authority.  
 
The Preliminary Site Plan was revised to eliminate encroachments on the abutting property.  
Elevators were added to the project on both sides of the tracks.  The elevators will be bid as 
alternate items, depending on available funding and estimated operating and maintenance costs.  
 
Assuming Preliminary Site Plan Approval is granted in August, 2010, estimated date of final 
design would be January, 2011.  The project would then be bid in February, 2011, with 
construction commencing in July, 2011.  Estimated date of project completion would be July, 
2012.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Preliminary Site Plan. 
 
 
Prepared by RBS 
 
G:\Transit Center\CC Memo Transit Center Update 07 12 10.docx 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
M-06



S
T

A
I
R
 

D
O

W
N

SPACE

GREEN

EXI
STI

NG 
RAI

L

UP

4.
5% 

SI
DEWALK

UP

4.
5% 

SI
DEWALK

BELOW

TUNNEL

CANOPY

AMTRAK 
PLATFORM

15
’

BIRMINGHAM

CITY OF

1" = 30’

SHOPPING CENTER

EXISTING PARKING

DOYLE DR.

D
O

Y
L

E
 

D
R
.

SHOPPING CENTER

TAXI
 QUE 

& 
PASSENGER 

DROP-
OFF

C-01

SITE PLAN

(TYP.)

SHELTER

BUS

TROY

CITY OF

AMTRAK 
PLATFORM

(2 SPACES)

PARKING

ELECTRIC CAR

(6 SPACES)

PARKING

HANDICAP

(2 SPACES)

PARKING

ELECTRIC CAR

EXI
STI

NG 
RAI

L

DTE EASEMENT

15’ WIDE

EXIST.

EASEMENT

OVERHEAD

EXIST. DTE

S
T

A
I
R
 

U
P

STAIR DOWN

RACKS

BIKE

SIGNS

CROSSWALK

SIGN

STOP

SIGNS

CROSSWALK

SEE LANDSCAPE PLANS

GRADE FENCE (TYP.)

ORNAMENTAL/SECURITY

BIKE LANE

DESIGNATED

LANDSCAPING

LANDSCAPING

LANDSCAPING

WALK

RAISED CROSS

ELEC. CAB.

EXIST.

WALK

RAISED CROSS

60’ BC/BC

SIGN

STOP

EXIST.

2
3
’

SIDEWALK

CONC.

10’ WIDE

EXISTING PARKING

F.F. 739.86

FACILITY

TRANSIT

INTERMODAL

18’ 12’
18’12’

LANDSCAPI
NG

GREEN 
SPACE

SEE LANDSCAPE PLANS

ORNAMENTAL FENCE (TYP.)

L
A

N
D
S
C

A
P
I

N
G

SEE LANDSCAPE PLANS

ORNAMENTAL FENCE (TYP.)

2
0
.
5
’

27
  
 S

PACES

C.
N.
 R

AI
LROAD

8
 

S
P

A
C

E
S

(M-1)
JUDGEMENT

CONSENT

MX

MX

(M-1)
JUDGEMENT

CONSENT

M-1

M-1

LANE MARKING

SOLID WHITE

LANE MARKING

SOLID WHITE

7
’

7
’

1
1
.
5
’

1
1
.
5
’

PAVEMENT

EXIST. ASPHALT

MARKING LANE

SOLID DOUBLE-YELLOW

EXIST. CONC. CURB & GUTTER

EXIST. CONC. CURB & GUTTER

LEGEND:

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

W/ SURFACE TEXTURE

BRICK PAVERS

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

U
P

6
%
 
S
I

D
E

W
A
L

K

SITE PLAN

23 SPACES

4 SPACES

23 SPACES

28 SPACES

22 SPACES

8 SPACES

N

9-11-09 REVISED SITE PLAN

WARNING STRIP (TYP.)

WITH DETECTABLE

CONC. ADA RAMP

10-14-09 UPDATED SITE PLAN

BC/BC

EX. 40.7’

B
C
/

B
C

2
3
’

B
C
/

B
C

E
X
.
 
3
7
’

PAVEMENT

EXIST.

SAWCUT

TOTAL PARKING SPACES

ELEC-VEHICLE PARKING SPACES

HANDICAP PARKING SPACES

REGULAR PARKING SPACES

PARKING SPACES PROVIDED-TROY

116

  2

  8

106

TOTAL PARKING SPACES

ELEC-VEHICLE PARKING SPACES

HANDICAP PARKING SPACES

REGULAR PARKING SPACES

PARKING SPACES PROVIDED-BIRMINGHAM

35

 2

 6

27

TOTAL SITE AREA

ZONING:  MIXED-USE

SITE AREA BIRMINGHAM

         JUDGEMENT (M-1)

ZONING:  CONSENT

SITE AREA-TROY

SITE INFORMATION

4.22 AC

1.51 AC

2.71 AC

DTE EASEMENT

EXIST. 12’

DTE EASEMENT

EXIST. 12’

EASEMENT 26.8’

VOLTAGE POWER

EXIST. HIGH

15
’

D
O

W
N

4
.
5

%
 
S
I
D
E

W
A
L
K

D
O

W
N

4
.
5

%
 
S
I
D
E

W
A
L
K

DOWN

4.
5% 

SI
DEWALK

4.6% SIDEWALK DOWN

4.6% SIDEWALK DOWN

4
.
5

%

AT&T

AT&T

AT&T

M
C

M
C

E

E

M
C

M
C

E

C
G

C

U
N
-P

C
G

M
C

C

C

C

M
C

M
C

C
G

C
G

U
N
-P

C

M
C

C

U
N
-P

C
G

U
N
-P

SA

SA

ST ST

ST

SA

SA

ST

SA

ST

E

E

E

E

E

E

E
T

E
T

E
T

E
T

E
T

E
T

E
T

E
T

GM

S
T

E

2009 Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. All Rights ReservedC

MICHIGANOAKLAND COUNTY

 

M
ISSDIG

BEFORE YOU DIG
CALL MISS DIG
1-800-482-7171

their facilities at no charge to the caller.

Member utilities are required to locate

3 FULL WORKING DAYS

R

TROY & BIRMINGHAM
CITIES OF

TRANSIT FACILITY
INTERMODAL

20090078

AUGUST 2009

J.J.S.

J.A.R.

J.J.S.

W.H.A.

8-21-09 JOINT PLANNING COMM. STUDY SESSION

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

FIELD VERIFY THE ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS PRIOR TO

ON THIS DRAWING.  PARTIES UTILIZING THIS INFORMATION SHALL

AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY OF THE UTILITIES SHOWN

WHERE AVAILABLE.  NO GUARANTEE IS MADE, OR SHOULD BE ASSUMED,

HAVE BEEN TAKEN FROM VISUAL OBSERVATION, AND RECORD MAPPING

ALL EXISTING UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

 

NOTICE:

CLAWSON

ROYAL OAK

BIRMINGHAM

R
IV

E
R
 

R
O

U
G
E

16
18

13

LONG LAKE RD.

C
R

O
O

K
S
 

R
D
.

C
O

O
L
I
D

G
E
 

R
D
.

A
D

A
M

S
 

R
D
.

   75

MAPLE RD.

BIG BEAVER RD.

14 MILE RD.

G
R

E
E

N
F
I
E

L
D
 

R
D
.

C
O

O
L
I
D

G
E
 

H
W

Y
.

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D
 

A
V
E
.

4

561

36 31
32 33

28

29

30
25

24

19

20
21

WATTELS RD.

AIRPORT

TROY

OAKLAND

G
.T
.W
. R

R

B
E

A
C

H
 

R
D
.

C
R

O
O

K
S
 

R
D
.

LOCATION
PROJECT

TROY

D
O

Y
L

E
 

D
R
.

1-11-10 PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL

a
C

APPROVED

CHECKED

DRAWN

DESIGNED

DATE

HRC JOB NO.

DATE

SCALE

ADDITIONS AND/OR REVISIONS

2
5
-J

U
N
-2

0
1
0
 
1
0
:3

2
U
S

E
R
 

N
A

M
E
 

=
j
r
e
c

D
E

S
I

G
N
 
F
I

L
E
 

=
I
:\

M
S

V
8
i\
d
a
ta
\
h
r
c
c
o
lo
r
2
.t
b
l

I
:\

M
S

V
8
i\

P
lo
tt
in

g
\
p
ib
la

c
k
.p
tb

Q
U

E
U

E
 

=
\
\
b
h
p
lo
t\

B
H

B
o
n
d

P
E

N
 

T
B

L
. 
=

C
L
R
. 
 T

B
L
. 
=

V
:\
2
0
0
9
0
0
\
2
0
0
9
0
0
7
8
\
C
\
c
0
1
s
it
e
p
la

n
3
0
a
lt
0
3
.d

g
n

T
I

M
E
 

=

NO.

SHEET

V:\200900\20090078\C\c01siteplan30alt03.dgn

OF

HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC

Consulting Engineers

WEB SITE:  http: / /  www.hrc-engr.com

2001 CENTERPOINT PARKWAY SUITE 109

PONTIAC, MICH. 48341

PHONE:  (248) 454-6300

FAX :  (248) 454-6359

E

E

EE



pallottaba
Text Box
M-07



 

 
 
June 18, 2010 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mark Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Servic es 

Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:       Program Year 2010 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)  
                        Allocation 
 
Background: 
 The City Council of the City of Troy approved the CDBG 2010 Application on November 

9, 2009. 
 

 The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) released the final 
funding allocations for 2010 that immediately affect Oakland County’s program year 
2010 CDBG program. 
 

 Consequently, Oakland County has recalculated its program year 2010 CDBG budget 
and community allocations by applying the updates to the allocation method and formula 
authorized by the Oakland County Board of Commissioners. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 The City of Troy’s program year 2010 CDBG allocation is $173,970.00. This figure is 

$6,010.00 higher than our planning estimate for the program year 2010. 
 

 The following adjustments to our program year 2010 application will be made to reflect 
the actual allocation amount. 
 

• Flood Drain Improvements: $ 119,279.00 
• Home Chore Program  $   52,191.00 
• Administration:  $     2,500.00 

  
Legal Considerations: 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the residents through CDBG funding. (goal #1) 
 
 
 
VR\S: Miller’s Review/Agenda Report 07.12.10 – CDBG PY 2010 funds 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
M-08





 

 
 
                             
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    Cathleen A. Russ, Library Director 
    Loraine M. Campbell, Museum Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Placement of Historical Marker on Krell Property site (north side of Square 

Lake, east of Livernois, at John’s Market, 88-20-03-301-077) 
 
 
Background: 
 
 A question arose at a recent City Council Meeting regarding the placement of an historical marker 

on the city-owned easement adjacent to John’s Market, located at 75 E. Square Lake Road.  
 In 2002, the parcel of land referred to as the Krell Property was sold by the City of Troy to the 

owner of John’s Market, to be developed as a parking lot. 
 The City retained an easement 16’ x’30’ at the east end of the parcel for placement of an historic 

marker that would interpret the site of the former Krell farm.  
 On May 29, 2002, during a Joint Meeting of the Historical Commission, the Historic District 

Commission, and the Troy Historical Society, an Ad Hoc Park Committee comprised of 
representatives from the three groups was formed, under the direction of City Manager John 
Szerlag, to provide recommendations for this marker. This committee was chaired by Jack Turner. 

 According to the minutes of the Ad Hoc Park Committee dated November 19, 2002, any signage 
or marker recommendations were tabled pending an approved site plan. 

o “The Ad Hoc Park Committee further recommends tabling a decision regarding potential 
signage or an historic marker identifying and interpreting the Krell property.  To date, 
plans have not been submitted to, or endorsed by, the Planning Commission.  The 
effectiveness of a sign/marker on the 16’ X 30’ easement is linked to the design and 
slope of the parking lot.” 

 According to Planning Department records, a rezoning application was submitted and approved 
by City Council in October of 2002; however, a formal site plan application was never submitted 
for Planning Commission consideration to construct the parking lot.   

 As a result, the Ad Hoc Park Committee never received a site plan to aid in recommending the 
placement of an historical marker.   

 The Ad Hoc Park Committee was disbanded following submission of their final report, in 
November 2002.  

 Copies of the report may be obtained at the Troy Historical Museum.      

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
M-09



Financial Considerations: 
 
 None 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 None 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 None 
 
Options: 
 
 City staff recommends receiving and filing this report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
[cr/2010historicmarker.doc] 



pallottaba
Text Box
M-10





 
 
DATE: June 29, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 Gary G. Mayer, Police Chief 
 Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 
 Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Cost of Organizational Restructuring  
 
 
The City utilizes the services of various individuals and firms to assist in organizational 
restructuring efforts. 
 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA) provides general consultation regarding privatization 
and reorganization of City Departmental functions to increase level of service and decrease 
costs to the general fund.  CWA billed the City $2,042.50 in FY 2008-2009 and $33,157.50 in 
FY 2009-2010. 
 
Gary Shripka assisted the City in a number of tasks related to the privatization of the Building 
Department.  Mr. Shripka reviewed the submitted SOQ’s, sat on the Interview Committee, 
rated the bidders and reviewed the draft contract with SafeBuilt.  The cost of these services 
was $1,912.50. 
 
The City utilizes Plante and Moran, PLLC as consultants for the Madison Heights, Royal Oak 
and Troy PSAP (Dispatch) and Prisoner Lock-up Consolidation project.  There is no cost to the 
City of Troy.  The cost, not to exceed $58,000, is being paid by Oakland County. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Memorandum from Chief of Police, dated June 23, 2010. 
 
Prepared by RBS 

 
G:\Organizational Restructuring\Restructuring Expenditures 07 12 2010.doc 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
M-11





 

 

 
 
DATE: July 7, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
 
SUBJECT: Comments made by Mr. Benjamin Blaszak at the June 28, 2010 City Council Special 

Study Meeting 
 
At the City Council Special Study Meeting of June 28, 2010, Mr. Benjamin Blaszak made a number of 
comments during the Public Comment portion of the meeting.  This memorandum was written in 
response to those public comments.  A letter responding to these comments was sent to Mr. Blaszak. 

Mr. Blaszak commented that a Municipal Civil Infraction Citation was taped to the front of his house 
by the City.  Chapter 100.04.04 of the Troy City Code states that service may be made by attaching a 
copy of the citation to the building and mailing the citation to the owner by first-class mail.  At the time 
the citation was served, the owner was not present at the home; therefore a copy of the citation was 
taped to the front door and another copy was mailed to the owner, as per Chapter 100.04.04.   

Mr. Blaszak commented about establishing a “nature area” on his property.  Troy City Code Chapter 
82 Property Maintenance Code allows Preservation or Restoration Areas.  In order to qualify as a 
Preservation or Restoration Area, a property owner must file a preservation or restoration plan with 
the City and receive approval.  To date Mr. Blaszak has not filed a preservation or restoration plan 
with the City.  We have advised Mr. Blaszak in writing that he may contact City Environmentalist 
Jennifer Lawson at (248) 524-3381 for more information. 

Mr. Blaszak commented on the stockpiling of manure at 691 Ottawa.  The Acting Planning Director 
and Zoning and Compliance Specialist inspected the property on July 7, 2010.  The inspection 
revealed that smells were barely detectable from approximately 100 feet downwind of the manure 
pile, on a 91 degree day.  The manure was in a contained area, covered by a roof and screened on 
three sides.  There were no violations identified. 
 
Mr. Blaszak commented about a detached accessory structure at 691 Ottawa.  City records indicate 
that Building Permits were issued for two detached accessory buildings on the property.  The site visit 
indicated there are more than two detached accessory buildings on the site.  The property owner was 
verbally advised of permit requirements.  Staff will contact the property owner by July 12, 2010 to 
establish a mutually agreeable compliance plan. 
 
cc: File 
G:\PAUL EVANS\Correspondence\CC Memo 07 12 2010.docx 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
M-12



 
July 6, 2010 
 
TO:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
  Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director 
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
   
SUBJECT: Restructuring of Engineering Department  
 
Given our $100M Capital Improvement Program (CIP) over the next six (6) years, the current 
staffing level in the Engineering Department, in addition to consultants, is the most cost effective 
way to provide Engineering services for the city.   
 
The Engineering Department is a hybrid department and has been for most of its history.  
Consultants are utilized to augment existing staff for the major work components of project 
design, inspection, contract administration and many other services, including technical or long 
range studies, unique design services, master planning and testing.   
 
Current consultants were selected through competitive bid processes.  Prior to expiration of 
existing contracts, a full review will be performed and renewals may be recommended or a new 
RFP process initiated as appropriate. 
 
Current Engineering Department staffing levels are thirteen (13) full-time positions and three (3) 
part-time positions which represents almost a 50% reduction in staff from our high point in 
2004/05. 
 
At current CIP levels, consultants provide 50% of the engineering services.  An increase in 
consultant services decreases revenue from Capital projects.  If the CIP were reduced by 50% 
(not recommended), most projects would be done by in-house staff; there would be little need 
for consultants.  If the CIP were reduced by 75% (also not recommended) staff utilization would 
likely fall below the breakeven point of 68% and most projects could be cost effectively done by 
consultants.  
 
To further delve into this issue, we will be making a presentation at the July 12, 2010 City 
Council Study Session. 
 

Reviewed and confirmed by:   July 6, 2010 
    Richard Carlisle, Consultant   Date 
    Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
G:\Funding Issues\Budget Files\2010-11\Engineering\Operating\Engineering Restructuring Report 2010_Executive Summary.doc 

EEXXEECCUUTTIIVVEE  SSUUMMMMAARRYY  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-01



1 
 

 
 
DATE: July 6, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Project Update - Zoning Ordinance Comprehensive Rewrite (File Number:  Z 234) 
 
 
Background 
 
The City of Troy Master Plan was adopted by the Planning Commission on October 14, 2008.  
It was the first comprehensive rewrite of the Master Plan since 1965.  The most important tool 
used to implement the Master Plan is the Zoning Ordinance.  The City of Troy Zoning 
Ordinance is approximately 40 years old and requires dramatic revisions in order to implement 
the Master Plan.  The City is undertaking a collaborative professional effort between the 
Planning Department and Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA) to completely rewrite the 
Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Funding for the project came from the Planning Department’s budget for consulting services.  
The project was spread out over three fiscal years, beginning in FY 2008-2009 and terminating 
in FY 2010-2011.  Total project cost is $100,000.  The Kickoff Meeting with Planning 
Commission was on November 25, 2008.   

Form-Based Codes 

Form-based codes (FBC) are an alternative to conventional zoning.  Unlike conventional 
zoning which focuses on separation of land uses, FBC focuses on building form.  Specifically, 
FBC address the relationship between building facades and the public realm, the form and 
mass of buildings in relation to one another, and the scale and types of streets and blocks. 
FBC allow for a mixture of land uses based upon the context of building form, while 
conventional zoning codes discourage or prohibit a mixture of uses. 

FBC provisions are being prepared for three key areas in the City: Big Beaver Road, Maple 
Road and the Neighborhood Nodes areas designated in the Master Plan.  The FBC provisions 
are not “cookie cutter” or “one size fits all” regulations.  The approach taken to develop each 
FBC will vary, based on the characteristics of these distinct areas.  Extensive research has 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
N-02



2 
 

gone into preparation of the FBC provisions, including consultation with national experts.  It is 
anticipated that when completed, the FBC provisions will be one of the most extensive in 
Michigan. 
 
The FBC provisions are not stand-alone provisions; they are an important component of the 
Zoning Ordinance and will be integrated with the balance of the document and adopted as part 
of the Zoning Ordinance.  The Zoning Ordinance will be a hybrid of traditional zoning 
ordinance provisions and FBC provisions.  Single family residential properties will be protected 
using traditional single family residential zoning ordinance provisions.   

Project Schedule 

The existing Zoning Ordinance is approximately 40 years old.  In addition to preparing FBC 
provisions for three distinct areas, the remainder of the document must also be rewritten 
extensively.  The Planning Commission has discussed this item at over twenty Planning 
Commission meetings to date. 
 
CWA prepared a project schedule which shows the status of all articles.  The estimated date of 
completing the draft of the final section is September, 2010.   
 
 
Attachments:  

1. Zoning Ordinance – Status, July 7, 2010. 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 236 Zoning Ordinance Rewrite\CC Memo 07 12 10.docx 



City of Troy  Date:  July 7, 2010 

Zoning Ordinance – Status  
 

 - 1 - 

 

Zoning Ordinance - Sections   
Draft 
Complete   

In 
Progress 

Projected 
Meeting 

           
1.0  Title, Purpose and Authority          

All language that establishes the legal authority and 
conditions, both in general and as specifically tied to 
the enabling statutes, is placed in the opening article.        

Drafted 

           
2.0  Definitions         
All definitions will be included in this article.  Any that 
remain in the body of the ordinance will be moved into 
this article.        

September 2010, 
last section 

           
3.0  Administration and Enforcement          
All functions and responsibilities relative to the 
administration and enforcement of this Ordinance 
belong in this article.      

Drafted 

           
4.0  District Regulations         
Regulations specific to each zoning district (i.e. intent, 
permitted, and special uses, etc.) are included in this 
article.  The Schedule of Regulations, a tablular array 
of dimensional requirements, will be included at the 
end of this article.      

August/September 
– Based on 
Charrette work 
results 

           
5.0  General Provisions         
All regulations that have more general application 
throughout all districts are typically included here.  For 
example, the section on accessory uses would be 
included here.      

Drafted 

           
6.0  Site Plan Review         

Procedures and standards for site plan would be 
included here.        

Drafted 

           
7.0  Special Land Use Review         

Procedures and standards for special land use would 
be included here.        

Drafted 

           
8.0  Specific Use Standards         
Some of the permitted uses and special land uses 
have specific standards.  All of these would be lumped 
into one section.  Further, any specific standards found 
in the body of a district would be placed in this article.  
This would be one technique to remove repetition and 
it will also assist in referencing. 
        

August/September 



- 2 - 

 

Zoning Ordinance - Sections (con't)   
Draft 
Complete   

In 
Progress 

Projected 
Meeting 

      
9.0  Planned Districts and Special Development 
Regulations         

 

I would suggest placing all of the alternative 
approaches such as the PUD and cluster 
development in one article.        

September 

           
10.0  Site Design and Standards         
This would be a new article that would include 
standards that relate to site design, that are not 
otherwise in landscaping, lighting, and parking.      

September  

           
11.0  Environmental Standards         
Any regulations relative to environmental and natural 
resource protection would be included here.  For 
example, we want to consider new green building or 
low-impact development standards.        

Drafted 

           
12.0  Signs         
All regulations relative to signs will be included in this 
article.        

August 2010 

      
13.0  Landscaping         
All regulations relative to landscaping will be included 
in this article.        

August 2010 

      

14.0  Parking         
All regulations relative to parking will be included in 
this article.        

Drafted 

           
15.0  Non-Conforming Uses / Structures         

Regulations pertinent to non-conformities are included 
here.        

Drafted 

           
16.0  Zoning Board of Appeals         
The roles and responsibilities of the ZBA along with 
procedures for appeals, variances, and interpretation 
are included here.        

Drafted 

           
17.0  Amendments          

As with the current Ordinance, this section would 
contain procedures and standards for amendments.        

Drafted 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 236 Zoning Ordinance Rewrite\ZO Complete ~ In Progess Report 7-6-10.doc 


	AGENDA: July 12, 2010
	COVER MEMO
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET
	ROLL CALL:
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	C-1 Presentations:
	Presentation Recognizing Sam Lamerato, Superintendent of Fleet Maintenance and the City of Troy’s Fleet Division for placing #1 in the 100 Best Fleets Award Program sponsored by Government Fleet Magazine.


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Bostick Rochester Road Development, LLC – Rescind Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate – 1400 Rochester Road
	E-2 Axle Tech International, LLC – Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate – 1400 Rochester Road

	PUBLIC COMMENT:
	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	G-1 No Postponed Items

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: Board of Zoning Appeals
	H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:
	Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled
	City Council Nominations: None Scheduled

	H-3 Adoption of Amended Rules of Procedure for the City Council
	H-4 Pre-Medicare Reinsurance Subsidy Availability
	H-5 Driving While Distracted Ordinance
	H-6 Request for Closed Session

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted
	I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Printing of Troy Today, Quarterly Newsletter:
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership Dues and Membership Renewals Southeast Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOC)

	I-5 Application for New SDM License for E-Mart, LLC
	I-6 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Detention Purposes for Stone Haven Park Site Condominium – Mondrian Properties Stone Haven Development, LLC, Section 20, Sidwell #88-20-20-226-080
	I-7 Request for Recognition as Nonprofit Organization Status from Leonette Ciepielowski – Chairman of Troy Youth Assistance
	I-8 Request for Recognition as Nonprofit Organization Status from Diane Claeys of Troy Women’s Charitable Association
	I-9 Liberty Investments I, LLC v. City of Troy

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at some future point in time): None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	K-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS
	L-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS
	M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – March 8, 2010
	Election Commission/Final – March 29, 2010
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – May 12, 2010
	Library Advisory Board/Final/Amended – May 13, 2010
	Planning Commission/Draft – June 8, 2010
	Planning Commission/Final – June 8, 2010
	Library Advisory Board/Draft – June 10, 2010
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – June 14, 2010
	Election Commission/Draft – June 24, 2010

	M-2 Department Reports:
	2010 Second Quarter Litigation Report
	City Council Expense Report – Month of July 2010

	M-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	E-mail Received from Sue and Mike Quinn Commending the Troy Police Department
	Note of Appreciation to the 2010 Board of Review from a Hardship Recipient

	M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted
	M-5  Michigan Public Service Commission – Notice of Hearing for the Electric  Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-16262
	M-6  Troy/Birmingham Transit Center – Joint Troy Planning Commission and Birmingham Planning Board Meeting Schedule
	M-7   Discontinue Service-Niles Community High School, School Resource Officer
	M-8   Program Year 2010 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Allocation
	M-9  Placement of Historical Marker on Krell Property Site – (North Side of Square Lake, East of Livernois at John’s Market 88-20-03-301-077)
	M-10  Business Attraction Project: Witzenmann, USA
	M-11  Cost of Organizational Restructuring
	M-12  Report Regarding Comments Made by Mr. Benjamin Blaszak at the June 28, 2010 City Council Special Study Meeting

	STUDY ITEMS
	N-1  Restructuring of the Engineering Department
	N-2  Project Update – Zoning Ordinance Comprehensive Rewrite (File Number: Z-234)

	CLOSED SESSION:
	O-1 Closed Session – Andrew Zurowski v. City of Troy

	ADJOURNMENT

	Reset: 


